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into a pure consumer company as the divestment of the non-core
petroleum and related products distribution business was fully
completed. Our turnover now comprises purely the fast growing core
consumer businesses. With a clear corporate structure, our future
prospects are more transparent to investors.
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Our supermarket business
strives to meet each of our
customers’ needs and bring you

SUMMARY OF NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING a great shopping experience.
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As the best selling national
brand, “SNOW” caters for
different tastes from all walks
of life.
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Ouﬂ;l" operatlon reported.a.iao% l
,,%crease in earnings with strong,same
store growth and margin improvement.
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Record beer sales
volume of close to
7 million kiloliters
driven by the
spectacular growth
of “SNOW”,
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Our food business offers you
an array of premium food

. products from fresh meat to
seafood delicacies.
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Qur high-quality textile products
give you a touch of comfort to
ensure total satisfaction.




2.

EE%%%EEBB%

the expanding portfolio of pnv
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MAKO yarns sales exceeded
9,400 tonnes, reinforcing
our position as the largest
manufacturer of MAKO yarns
in China.
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our years of continuous efforts have made 2001 one of CRE's best years ever. We finighed the year with record earnings
and earnings per share. There was @ I1z% increase in underlying profit for the full year as core consumer-reiated businesses
reported 8 soL% wndertying profit growth filling the earnings gap after divesting the petroleum busingss in June 2001t

2001 was a8lso 8 year of transformation for CRE as we fully compieted the divestment of the petroleum business and
ushered into @ new era of growth with turnover generated entirely from the eore consumer busingsses. A ywmber of
sirategic investments were made at the same time t0 sirengthen owr consumer busingsses.  Capital expenditure of last
year, indeed, inereased by 15 times from that of 200b. In thig rapid process of market consolidation, 1 am particularly
gratified t0 see owr ability to infegrate newty aequired businesses and markets. With a clear corporate strueture, you can
read our futwre prospects easily ang confidenty.

o efforts in focusing on what we are good at bear fruits as CRE share price surged 50% during the year, ovtperforming
the market by g% We continue 10 increase our basic divitend payments for the sixth conseeutive year, with annual basie
payout ratio increased from Auth 0 wia%h. There was a speciat dividend of HKowo per share for the disposal of peiroteum
distribution operation in Hong Kong - the 1ast asset of the petroleum busingss.

We sirive 1o improve investor relations and énhanee corporate govérnance. The awards and recognitions we received
dring the year as set out On page 16 speak volume for our commitment in this regard.  There is alts0 @ new seetion
on ccrporate social responsibility this year 0 show how we fulfill our role as a corporate citizen. The fonowing pages
will walk you through CRE from different perspectives, enabling you t¢ gain 8 better understanding of CRE oehind its
financial figures.

Our aspiration 0 be the largest congumer company in ching is the driving force behind CRE. Looking ahead, T 4ray believe
we will reglizé thig vision with a team of talented and committad employees.

chairman

3l March 2008
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COMPANY PROFILE

EHAEFRAR ([ FEBHE ) s58BATSFLHNAT -
$BELEPEAEREEMEELY REMURATERALIED
HBEAEATK - AERMEE  FEERERE A% KRS
VB O ERNEER - BUMISEEMA - SEERERERELSE
TERBEERRME  BPAS  RGaRHBERATEEMRERERN
—85 - RAAEBNERFRERSEE -

China Resources Enterprise, Limited (CRE) is a listed
company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with business emphasis
on the consumer sector of the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong.
Our mission is to become the largest consumer company in China.
To achieve this, the Group has already established leading presence
in our core business domains of retail, food, beverage and textile.
There are operational synergies among these consumer-related
businesses. Notably, food, beverage as well as textile form part of
the supply chain for the retail business, together driving the Group’s
overall development.

10 GMARERA T China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 S8
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

@ ZEHAREBRAE

China Resources Enterprise, Limited

R m

Beverage

REMIRAEEH
Food Processing and
Distribution

A A

Textile

eht%robeﬁy

RERHMER

Investments and
Others

B -

AEMR_PTEFAA-ThOERLEBNREEN
AHEEEY AERESFENTAROMEREH

RigebEs -

BET SRR RS 1o E A A 8
Supermarket and Brand-fashion
Logistics Distribution

HtZBEE
Other Retail Stores

EHEEWRER A6 (51%)
China Resources
Snow Breweries Limited (51%)

MK
Purified Water

BERNIENE R
Faod Processing and
Stock Raising

ReniB i
Foodstuff Distribution

EFE - #EwkEf
Abattoir Operation,
Transportation and Others

T g i i HAth
Spinning and Weaving Garment QOthers
wmEmE

Investment Properties

HIT Investments Limited
(10%)

Note:

and related products distribution business.

Hutchison Ports Yantian
Investments Limited

(10%}

The Group completed the disposal of its petroleum distribution operation in Hong
Kong an 29 June 2007 and thereafter no longer has any interest in the petroleum

LRAMEAR ST China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual repost 2007 §38
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE-—FF+E+_H=+—HiEEF For the year ended 31 December 2007

“Bet+EF TEERE —EEFE
HMEHET HBETET EREST
2007 2006 2005
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
— - —— S e .. e
BEH Turnover® 62,123 ‘ 65,437 53,891
|
ARl E Profit attributable to ‘ 4,961 I 2,776 2,220
FEfREA shargholders of the Company’ 1
SRERER (B T) Basic earnings per share’ (HK$) $2.09 $1.19 $1.02
BRES (HE%T) Dividend per share (HK$)
==): Interim So.15 $0.14 $3.13
-1 Final $o0.30 $0.26 $0.25
So.45 $0.40 $0.38
42715 5 Special interim $0.60 $1.00 —
i -
1 BERTBRECESHHEES SRR RIERE RS  THEANESSUREs BEEDRFEEELT - RER LA S EBI ERBRC RN RER
R R R R E -

2. EBREFBHDEREEEEIRAEADEEROMIME TS - BETORES SR EHI SRALRFEN 00T ( ZFFTHF  BMo3T) 0
3. A REES EICFRSESEN LG -

— - el o ;_ -
P NS Y, g
EREFET Equity Attributable to
Basic Earnings Per Share Shareholders of the Company
AETHKS AT B ITTHKS million
2.5 25,000
22,871

2.0 20,000

1.5 15,000
102

10 10,000

0.5 5,000

o
2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007

12  #@WAIZAM2E China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 £3§




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

K_-RetF R_FFRF BN-E2TRF
+=A=t+—8 +=A=1+—H +=-A=+-—8
B%EET BERHET AETERL
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2005
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
— e _ T . . .
FRBIRE RN ERS Equity attributable to 22,871 19,141 18,196
shareholders of the Company
LR A Minority interests 7,293 5,824 4,747
BtES Total equity 30,164 24,965 22,943
FetEREE Consolidated net borrowings 4,004 1,781 3,283
A itk 3 Gearing ratio’ 13.3% 7.1% 14.3%
mEILLE Cutrent ratio 1.05 1.08 112
BT EAE - Net assets per share: $9.59 $8.12 $8.15
BRI (8T ) book value {HK$)
Notes:

1. These amounts include turnover and profit attributable to shareholders contributed by the Petroleum and Related Products Distribution division, which is
presented as discontinued operation accerding to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5. The respective amounts of the discontinued operation

are separately disclosed in the analysis of turnover and profit.

2. Basic earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year. The amount includes basic earnings per share of the discontinued operation of HK$1.09 (2006: HK$0.43).

3. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total equity.

SREEIN . BEE

Net Assets Per Share: Book Value

FEMTLHKS

10

2005 2006 2007

—

TR RSO H

Retumn on Average Equity

B 57t Percentage (%%}

25

20

2006

2007

WAM#ER DS China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F 4
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BERBMAEAE - BB - TELEHIAN DR
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA®

HE-FFLHFF R+ —HILFF For the year ended 31 December 2007

l
! BIEBH > & %m

Turnover by segment

17%

451%

38%

1%

8%

12%

Q 0, L+
21% 1% 7% 9%

BEBB2ATALS - BHA - TINRRBEITRR
EBITDA by segment

33% 3%
19%

23% 4%

19%

14% i

6% 10% 6% |12%
|
' T # ARSI REH i
. Retail . Beverage . Food Processing and Distribution . Textile
! H fitg=g e - BAREREREYE ( CEIELEEEE) . EREERRILRS
Investments and Others

Petroleum and Related Products Distribution
{Discontinued operation)

Investment Property

BPME#HE 25 China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 £




ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA

—BetH TBERF #in (R )
BWHET AEEET Increased/
2007 2006 {Decreased)
HKS$ million HK$ million %
BREXB2EXET Turnover by segment
B ER Core Businesses
28 Retail 26,008 20,418 27.4%
fha Beverage 13,304 9,455 40.7%
AR T REH Food Processing and Distribution 7,381 6,092 21.2%
Bigk Textile 4,713 4,453 5.8%
RAYME Investment Property 375 349 7.4%
Pt Subtotal 51,781 40,767 27.0%
R Other Businesses
AREAREREHY Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 10,610 25,100 (57.7%)
(BRI EER) (Discontinued operation)
RERE R Investments and Others - —
Pt Subtotal 10,610 25,100 (57.7%)
62,391 65,867 (5.3%)
HEEBEZRS Elimination of inter-segment transactions (268) {430) (37.7%)
A Total 62,123 65,437 (5.1%)
BIRMK AL
BiE - TREENEATREF  EBITDA by segment
Bl Core Businesses
T Retail 1,536 1,044 471%
R Beverage 1,514 1,306 15.9%
RRNTREH Food Processing and Distribution B4 703 10.6%
fatf =3 Textile 463 346 33.2%
REDE Investment Property 836 783 6.8%
/et Subtotal 5,188 4,182 24.1%
Hit## Other Businesses
bR ARE R Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 2,677 1,273 110.3%
(BERIEEEE) (Discontinued operation)
LERAhER Investments and Others® 250 253 (1.2%)
Mt Subtotal 2,927 1,526 91.8%
M Total 8,115 5,708 42.2%
& - Notes:
1. EBITDA RAFFIE - B - fTRRBHEARH - 1. EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and amaortization.

. BARAMEEEERMBEAARAFEARNEAR 2

1A -

Investments and Others include share of net result of associates less cerporate overheads,

#MEKEERAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 Fi
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ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

BE-—EF+EF-H=1—81FEF For the year ended 31 December 2007

— - SRSt N

FIEHEH 2 RREEHRA
Profit attributable to shareholders by segment

8% 10%

6%

14% 7% |6%

10% i
15%

3%

50% 34%

13%

BB RREYEEERHEEEASORE REFR R RE G
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of investment property revaluation and
major disposal of non-core assets/investments by segment

19%
22%
21% 10%
8%

0, .
8% 4% 21%

11%

26% s '
5% 21% 1% 3%
RE #an BEMT RS Foifd
! .} Retail . Beverage . Food Processing and Distribution . Textile
l o RS- K ES . MR IEMEREE ( DEIHEEER) . BERAMERE
= |nvestment Property Petroleum and Related Products Distribution Investments and Others

j (Discontinued operation)

16 EHEAREWAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§




ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHCOLDERS

—RBtE ZERAE O HNSURLD)
BRTET BYEET Increased/
2007 2006 (Decreased)
HKS million HK$ million %
j !
BEREE 2 Profit attributable to shareholders é .
BRERm{GRH by segment i :
B R Core Businesses ! !
i Retail 521 217 140.1% |
:455 Beverage 303 174 ! 74.1% ;
BRRNTEFH Food Processing and Distribution 531 435 | 221% |
g Textile 144 61 136.1% |
BRME Investment Property 648 647 ' 0.2%
E Subtotal 2,147 1534 | 400% |
HiubkH Other Businesses " [
Tk R A R iR i Petroleum and Related Products Distributicn 2,582 1,002 157.7%
(DL AFEEER) (Discontinued operation) ;
A R EA R Investments and Others 429 421 ‘L 1.9% !
e Subtotal 3,011 1,423 111.6%
5,158 2,957 74-4%
DRBHFISFEREA  Net corporate interest and expenses (197) (181) 8.8%
B Total 4,961 2,776 78.7%
BEEBNBRRENE  Profit attributable to shareholders 1
HEBREEEEHFRZL  excuding the effect of investment property
BE#REEg-KRR revaluation and major disposal of non-core
i g assets/investments by segment
B SR Core Businesses
B Retail' 500 203 ! 146.3%
T Beverage 303 174 74.1%
BRI BT Food Processing and Distribution® 471 435 8.3%
ahig? Textile? 122 59 106.8%
BAMR Investment Property* 240 215 11.6%
PE Subtotal 1,636 1,086 50.6%
ReeEFH Other Businesses
T B BRI E G B Petroleum and Related Products Distribution® 183 519 (64.7%)
(OEILEEEE) (Discontinued operation)
RERHEMER Investments and Qthers 429 421 1.9%
P Subtotal 612 940 (34.9%)
2,248 2,026 11.0%
RAMREFSFEETRA  Net corporate interest and expenses (197) {181) 8.8%
e Total 2,051 1,845 11.2%
HitE - Notes:

1.

ITEHTEEBABE I IR ANBHEREDEYon €
(2N %o B ) BFEEERERD -
RENIEEHRBORATRIEHSBEAARGHNMNEY
o6 BT ZBWRF &) -
ITERBAREBARBAL IR MBS EERRNEY ol
(ZFTAF BN 08T BHEWEREFHMES 0BT
(ZFESF . 8D TRRERREAT -
BANERENLATRERRASRNARL8BT(ZTFX
FoAMeE ) NERARBEEEETREMEENEAW
R

R-FTEFAAR  SRFERBLERAR ML EMERFHER
2R SR AR N 24 (BIUEH - B PE RS R AMER
EWEEOZRNE s —_TEAFOBREMESEREBGRE
TRELE -AREAEFHRFEEIME REM 48287

1.

2.

3-

Net valuation surplus of approximatety HK$21 million (2oo06: HK$14 million) arising mainly from
industrial building held by the Retail division has been excluded from its results.

Net gain on disposal of associates amounting to approximately HK$6o million (2006: Nil) has been
excluded from the sesults of Food Pyocessing and Distribution division,

Net valuation surplus of approximately HK$1z million (2006: HK$2 million} arising mainly from
industrial building held by the Textile division and 2 gain on disposal of an associate amounting to
approximately HK$10 million {2006: Nil} have been excluded from its results.

Net valuation surplus and disposal gains of certain non-core investment properties with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$408 million {2o06: HX$432 million) have been excluded from the results
of the Investment Property division.

The disposal of the Group's 100% equity interest in the Petraleum and Related Products Distribution
husiness was completed at the end of June 2007 with a total gain of approximately HK$2.4 billion.
The gain was excluded from the result of the division. Net gain on disposal of an investment and net
valuation surplus with an aggregate amount of HK$483 millien had been excluded from the 2006 results.

FEMEAEM ST China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual repart 2o07 F3
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TS FERER
MILESTONES IN 2007

interest in Anhui
Shengli Brewery

in Inner Monzgolia
Batehan Brewery

Company Company Limited
Limited was was completed.
completed.

s ERKBLRE « TREERAESE
HEEAR R HEBERRDAR
90% HEEE ° Fl100% MR ©
The acquisition The acquisition of AP@
of a 90% a 100% interast

ah

o mRX MR E B
(W) BEREA
AN
The acquisition
of Blue Sword
(Group)
Coripany
Limited was
completed.

REFIAEK 0607T ©
The disposal of the
petroteum operation
in Hong Kong was
completed and a
special dividend of
HK%0.60 per share
was declared in the
following month,

F T s ¥
N e TALEFEAME o BITHCREER)HEHE
/\H % dRBREIRRH AT THsECEERRA

Z—
The Group was commended
as one of Asia’s Best
Companies for Corporate
Governance by Corporate
Governance Asia.

o MMEESRRERA
PR FIRL A BT
A% 65% NI R A]
Hangzhou United
Meat Group
Company Limited
became a 65%
subsidiary of the
Group.

18 FEMAIEAM AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report zoo7 #4§
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ERIE R -
The Group
entered into a
HK%$3.2 billion
revolving credit/
term loan facility
agreement with
a syndicate

of banks.
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The Group was
named as gne
of the “Best
in Corporate
Governance,
China” by The
Asset.

MILESTONES IN 2007

RRMmER -

highlighting

conducted.

o ETTRMREGE  EA
HETERT AT - fRA

A global roadshow
supermarket,

beverage and food
businesses was

our

HMEBERKEBRS
FEE>ERR
£

The purified
water operation
became wholly-
owned by the
Group.

—
- A
- SEP

ET A AEER
Evangof£ &
FeA o

Vango, a new
convenience
store format,
was opened in
Shenzhen,

(B REHES
5,000,000 FH * &
HEREEAERE
|

With a sales volume
exceeding & million
kilotiters, “SNOW”
became one of the
leading beer brands
in the world.

HEMALHM AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 54§
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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EhBLEEEDERENENRET  AREEN
RESOCHBEY  ERBIFRLEERE - <
TETHENEERANR BE_FRLF
+-RA=+—-BUIEE  FonlRREETRE
RARMNREE 4960118 BE_FEREE
12h078.7% @ REEE L TKNE - EREF
g T R W 2090 - ML DT
TAEES 1197 - FIKEILHS -

“ETHEAA - FRETREEFRELEERD
SRR EELR - BRWAEEY 23.99(8
e BIRCHELEThEEBESRTHEERN2E
HEN - ~ERHECFTLE+H=T—H
L EENESSEHENEE s15a3 8T - thATE
BN 27.7% °

BEOMBERRRGDY  BAEHDSEREHA
FINRE  BRRREMREEREAKESE
OBRGEFE  ERUHBREHER s0.6% 6T
BT BRE_EELHFT_A=+—HULEE
By 4D RIRR B PR A A S I R EE AR S I I FE R A0

11.2% °

[::3=%

EESREN -BENEAA+ZAkEE - A
—BENER A RARNEARIREEMD
BHEEBR -TTHFEFRERE  SRiE¥o30
T ZFFAF ERE¥ o261 ) - TEHE
HARE  SRPHRSSEE o =F
SHFENRBHABETRE 04 ( =
TERNE: SRE osn )  BETREF
#in13% « REBLELFERPEARAAM
BIBEREHESR  RZBTLENAHAEC
FEANF+R - SRR EE RS FIRE
¥ 060 R BB 1T .

Final Results
With the flourishing economy in the Chinese Mainland and Fong Kong,

reinforced by the Group’s parallel efforts to expand core consumer
businesses and realize the value of non-core assets, the Group
reported another record year in 2007. The Group’s consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2007 amounted to approximately HK$4,961 million,
representing an increase of 78.7% over that of 2006, the highest since
our listing, Earnings per share, on a weighted average basis, was
HK$2.09, also a new high, compared to HK$1.19 in 2006.

The disposal of the entire interest in the Group’s non-core petroleum
distribution operation in Hong Kong was completed in June 2007
and generated a gain of HK$2,399 million. Excluding thz turnover
contribution of the discontinued operation in petroleum and related
products distribution, the Group’s consolidated turnover fcr the year
ended 31 December 2007 amounted to approximately HK$51,513
million, representing an increase of 27.7% from the previous year.

The strong performance of core consumer-related businesses had
compensated for the loss in profit contribution from this divested
operation. Excluding the aftertax effect of revaluation of investment
properties and major disposals, the Group’s underlying consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders would have increased
by 11.2% for the year ended 31 December 2007 driven by the 50.6%
growth of the core consumerrelated businesses.

Dividends

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.30 per share for
2007 (2006: HK$0.26 per share} payable on or about 13 June 2008
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of
the Company on 26 May 2008. Together with the interirn dividend
of HK$0.15 per share, the total distribution for 2007 will amount to
HK$0.45 per share (2006: HK$o0.40 per share). This represents an
increase of 13% over 2006, excluding the payment of special dividends.
Special dividends of HK$0.60 per share and HK$1 per share were paid
in August 2007 and December 2006 rtespectively in respect of the
sequential disposals of the Group’s petroleum and related products
distribution operations in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

20 EMAIZEEMD A China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual repart 2007 £
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REEHETT

REER
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FRERFERREELDE  FALMBRN 230K
BhoE - REERAE - BMBEXTESAES
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BRI - AEESRDEREOEFHEENR
SR Z RIS EE - RESA - HM
A ofEn  RETENDHEHER 8
B EER 23,9987 AMEIREREHE
i‘%ﬂﬁ&%_—;ﬁt%‘a‘ﬂmﬁi °

AEEERAZEGEFHEAORE - BADEH
BERE - AERNRER - R RSSEBRER
RETHEHESN D LHARREE &
RETGEEANTHEETERA - X - BKH
HtRBER AR AHfEEz - 4%
BETTHZEN FiE | WE - §H8%I0E
AR R B AHERT o

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Closure of Register
The Register of Members will be closed from 26 May 2008 to 29 May

2008, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible for the final dividend,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the share registrars of the Company,
Tricor Standard Limited of 26th Floot, Teshury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2008.

Strategy Implementation

Corporate Strategy

To accomplish its objective of becoming the largest consumer company
in China, the Group has been investing in the core consumer businesses
to enhance market position, improve competitiveness and develop
platform for future growth. For the year ended 31 December 2007,
the Group incurred nearly HK$1o billion on capital expenditure, 1.5
times more than that of 2006, with a majority on beverage and retail
businesses. Major acquisitions during the year included the residual
minority interest in the brewery operations in Sichuan Province and
seven breweries in Liaoning Province, Anhui Province, Hunan Province,
Guizhou Province as well as the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region,
In addition, there were investments in the greenfield breweries under
construction and existing breweries under renovation for capacity
upgrade. The capital expenditure on our supermarket operation last
year was mainly for new store opening and purchase of staore properties.
A total of approximately 230 supermarket stores were opened during
the year. Our food business also upgraded its marine fishing fleet and

added a meat processing company in Hangzhou.

Concurrently, the Group has been divesting businesses or assets which
are outside our core portfolio or which lack critical mass. Last year, the
petroleum distribution operation in Hong Kong was divested in June
for HK$4,000 million and generated a gain of HK$2,399 million. This
completed the disposal of the entire petroleum and related products
distribution business.

The Group is also making satisfactory progress in the implementation
of our retail-led distribution strategy. The Group’s food, beverage and
textile businesses have started to form part of the supply chain for our
supermarket operation. In particular, the food business, which has a
long history of supplying fresh meat, vegetables, rice and other food
products to our supermarkets in Hong Kong, is currently one of their
largest suppliers. “SNOW", our national brand for beer, is also sold

extensively in our mainland supermarkets.
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Turnover by geographic region

The Group has also been accelerating its investments in tte Chinese
Mainland. For the year under review, about 66.7% of turnover and
31.3% of profit before tax was from the mainland, compared with 55.3%
and 41.4% respectively in the year ended 31 December 2006, The
reduction in significance of pre-tax profit from the Chinese Mainland was
mainly due to the distortion caused by the gain from the divestment of

non-core petroleum distribution operation in Hong Kong.

REAEMESD
Profit before tax by geographic region
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Business Strategy

Whilst the mainland consumer market is full of opportunities, the
Group adheres to an overall principle of district dominance so that
economies of scale can be achieved swiftly in the targeted district. A
culture on cost efficiency in daily eperation, looking for concurrent
cost control and productivity enhancement, has also been promulgated
internally. Effective means include centralized procurement, sireamlining
management functions as well as strengthening supplier relationship.

Differentiation via branding is crucial in the highly competitive mainland
consumer market. Our brewery business is developing “3NOW” as
a national brand complemented by other district and local brands.
“SNOW™ targets the younger generation, with marketing theme
associated with “great expedition”. On the other hand, our supermarket
operation promotes its leading presence in the Chinese Mainland and
the image of a distinguished retailing chain via enhanced service and
store format innovation. The “Ng Fung” brand of high quality food,
including fresh meat and general food items, has been well established

by our food business, commanding a price premium in the market.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Besides, the hypermarket of our supermarket operation has adopted a
trade up strategy by improving its merchandise mix and layout as well
as adding more fashionable and higher end products. Taking some
attributes of a department store, complementary tenants in apparel,
lifestyle and food are introduced. Our beverage business has been
reforming its distribution channels to enhance distribution efficiency,
Our food business is exploiting the mainland fresh meat market for
growth with three projects in Shanghai, Shenzhen and Hangzhou. Our
textile business focuses on the niche products, including MAKO yarns,
denim casual wears and nylon textured yarns. A gradual increase is
expected in the value-added yarn and fabric products following its
technology upgrade program.

Consumer demand is increasingly complex pursuing not just price
competitiveness but also quality and personal touch. We pursue an
ongoing re-modeling exercise so as to improve core competence. After
three years of refinement, the high-end lifestyle supermarket stores,
Olé, is now more mature. This format has strong appeal to upscale
shoppers. The Group has also piloted the convenience store “Vango”
in Shenzhen and Hong Kong. In Hong Kong, Chinese Arts & Crafts H gk
has strengthened its private labels - Artistic Palace X T & in apparels
and Home Art KEJE in handicrafts. A specialty jewelry store targeting
the younger generation has also been opened.

Operating Environment
The mainland consumer market continues to develop rapidly although

it is still fragmented. In 2007, retail sales in the Chinese Mainland
increased by 16.8% to about RMB8,921 billion.

Last year, the growth of the mainland brewery market remained robust
with total production volume increased by 13.8% to 39.3 million
This is to be compared with 12.7% in 2006. In 2007, the
Group’s brewery operation enjoyed a market share of about 18%
whereas the top three players accounted for approximately 41% of the
market, compared with 39% in 2006 and 36% in 2005.

kiloliters.

In 2007, the production of cotton yarns and fabrics in the Chinese
Mainland increased by 15.9% and 15.1% over the previous year
respectively. Qur focus on technology upgrade and rationalizing
products with the aim to produce more upmarket products remains
unchanged. Quality high-end yarns are gradually replacing low-end
yarns and fabrics in our product mix. During this adjustment process,
our yarns production increased by 13.4% and fabrics production

decreased by 13.1% over 2006.
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As disposable incomes rise and living standards improve, the proportion
of household earnings on good quality food will increase. However,
pig farms in the Chinese Mainland were disrupted last year by a severe
disease outbreak among hogs and higher feed prices. Coupled with
growing affluence of the Chinese economy and the cyclical supply
shortage, the mainland pork industry suffered from a contraction,
leading to an estimated decrease of approximately 9% in consumption
in 2007 and a sharp rise in retail pork prices.

The Hong Kong economy further strengthened last year. Ratail sales
increased by 12.8% alongside rising domestic consumer confidence
and buoyant tourism. Supermarket sales and department store sales
increased by 5.9% and 12.7% respectively in 2007 over the previous
year, For fresh meat consumption, imported and locally produced live
pigs and cattle amounted to about 1,767,000 heads and 41,000 heads
respectively in zoo7. This represents a decline of 11% for both when
compared to 2006. The reduction in supply of livestock had stimulated

the demand for frozen pork and beef, which rose by 6% to a total of
about 205,000 tonnes last year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Corporate Governance
The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance

for the continued success of the Group’s business and in meeting the
reasonahle expectation of its shareholders and other stakeholders that
the Group conducts all business activities with the highest standards of
responsibility, integrity and compliance with all laws.

Transparency and information disclosure are two key elements of
the Group’s corporate governance framework as access to adequate,
accurate and timely information enables the proper monitoring of
the conduct of its business, thereby enhancing accountability. Since
November 2002, the Group has been preducing quarterly financial and

operational review on a voluntary basis. It is the first conglomerate

company among the constituent stocks in the Hang Seng Index to
initiate such a move, well before the Hong Kong Stock Exchange made
it a recommended best practice for main board listed issuers.
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The Board has & long-standing commitment to good :zorporate

governance practices and its efforts in pursuing this underiaking has

been consistently recognized in recent years. In 2007, “he Group
received the following accolades:

* it was named as one of the “Best in Corporate Governance, China”
by The Asset;

e it was selected as one of the recipients of the “Recognition Awards
2007 — Asia’s Best Companies for Corporate Governance” by
Corporate Governance Asia;

e it was rated one of the companies with the best corporate
governance and best investor relations in China by FinanceAsia; and

e it was named one of the outstanding enterprises among blue-chip
companies in Hong Kong hy the Economic Digest.

The Board believes that an effective corporate governance framework
is essential to the Group’s sustained performance and upholding it will
continue to be a high priority at the Company.

Internal Control
The Board is responsible for the development and effective

implementation of the Group’s systems of internal control to =nsure the
accomplishment of corporate goals, smooth running of the operations,
assets and stakeholders’ interest are safeguarded as well as reliability of
financial statements. The Group adopts the control frameworks outlined
by both the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COS0™) in the United States and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants as our standards in establishing control
systems and the best practice among our group companies.

The Board conducts regular review of the Group’s internal control
system. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Board has reviewed
and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s current internal
control system in place. A detailed elaboration of the Group’s internal
control system is set out in full in the Corporate Governance Report of
this Annual Report.

Investor Relations
We believe keeping the investment community fully informed of the

Group’s latest strategies and business developments encourages
shareholders and potential investors to properly assess the Company’s
value and boosts investor confidence. To this end we seek to have an
active, open and ongoing dialogue with investors and analysis and has
implemented a tripartite communication system among investars, senior
management and operational management,
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

We take a multifaceted approach to reach out to the investment
community. During the year, we continued our practice to conduct
an annual global roadshow and the focus was on the supermarket,
beverage and food businesses. Senior management of the headquarters
together with chief executives from the businesses met with institutional
investors in Europe, the United States and Asia. In addition, we hosted
the Corporate Day for analysts and fund managers. During the three-day
tour, the Company led the participants to visit the supermarkets in
Shaanxi Province and our brewery operations in Sichuan Province. |In
2007, top management along with senior management of different
business units met with over 1,300 analysts and fund managers in about
240 meetings including one-on-one meetings, site visits, luncheons as
well as conferences arranged by financial institutions.

Share Performance

CRE’s share price rose 49.9% to HK$33.50 in 2007, outperforming the
Hang Seng Index by 7.6%. During the year, its daily closing share price
hit a post-Asian financial crisis high of HK$35.65 on 11 October z007.
The lowest closing price was HK$19.76. CRE’s market capitalization also
grew 51.6% to HK$79,889 million in the year.

ERAEH —_ SR =—E_RRtFNFRUTHRTE

Year-end closing price and market capitalization of CRE for 2003-2007
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Dividend Payout Ratio

The Group has long had a goal of gradually improving its basic cash
dividend payout ratio and has continuously delivered upon this goal.
We plan to pay basic cash dividends that balance the cash generated
from the growth of the company’s earnings with the cash needed to
fuel future profit growth. In addition, special dividends would be
considered for exceptional events, subiect to the prevailing financial
position, funding needs and market environment. In 2007, a special
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419 share in China Resources Cement Holdings Limited for every ten
shares of the Company in 2003 in specie, HX$1 per share in cash in
2006 and HK$0.6 per share in cash in 2007.
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cash dividend of HK$0.6 per share was paid following the disposal
of the Group’s petroleum distribution operation in Hong Kong. Over
the past five years, special dividends were also distributed in 2003
and 2006 during which the non-core assets in building materials and
piped gas and chemical distribution operations in the Chinese Mainland
were divested.

Total Shareholder Return

With the gradual re-alignment of our business focus on the consumer
sector, robust operating performance and good corporate governance
practices, CRE's shares achieved a total return for shareholders
of 506.0% over the past five years, as measured by share price
appreciation and reinvested dividend. This is considerably higher than
that of the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng Commerce & !ndustry
Index. For the year 2007, the total return for shareholders was 54.8%,
compared 1o the average 43.2% of the Hang Seng Index and 59.6% of
the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry Index.

CRPCERRLFEMAXRNOH2HRY AT ERNOERR

Total shareholder return of CRE relative to market indices for 2003-2007
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In 2007, the Group once again achieved record results, underlining the
tremendous progress of our transformation into a focused consumer
play. With the exit from the petroleum business now completed,
the Group will devote all resources to the core businesses for solid
future growth.

Beginning with a modest presence, our supermarket operation has

gradually built up a leading market share in the targeted districts of the
Chinese Mainland, and profitability has increased accordingly. To push
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business performance, we emphasize same store growth, cost efficiency
and supplier relationship; and the results have been encouraging. Last
year's same store growth of 9.5% was indeed the highest in recent
years and margins improved further. To maintain this momentum, the
major tasks for this year will be operational streamlining, execution of
national supplier contracts and store format standardization.

Annual beer consumption per capita has doubled in the Chinese
Mainland over the past ten years to about 30 liters in 2007 driven by
the increase in household income, urbanization and marketing efforts
of the major brewers. To capitalize on the market opportunities,
we have been expanding in a disciplined manner via acquisitions,
greenfield investments and capacity upgrade. With a 30.7% growth
in sales volume last year driven by the 68.6% growth of our national
brand, “SNOW”, our position as the largest brewer and the owner of
the single largest beer brand on the mainland in terms of sales volume
has been further strengthened. While the brewing industry is facing
rising input cost pressure, we have been enhancing our procurement
and operational efficiency as well as passing on part of the impact to
consumers. Our underlying progress in recent years will carry on,

As their incomes rise, Chinese consumers are demanding greater quality
and safety in food. The meat processing projects in Shanghai and
Shenzhen reported overall increase in slaughtering velume lzst year in
spite of the surge in pork prices. Coupled with the initial contribution
from the Hangzhou project, there was higher profit contribution from the
mainland projects. Our food business has firmly established a business
platferm for future expansion in the major mainland cities., In Hong
Kong, the opening of the market of live pig imports from the Chinese
Mainland has increased competition. We will embrace the challenge by
further enhancing our supply chain efficiency and developing “Ng Fung”
brand as high quality fresh meat, commanding a strong premium brand
image. Our network and reputation will put us in a favorable position
to compete with others.

The Group’s textile business reported strong recovery ir 2007 in
line with our re-positioning to concentrate on products with better
competitiveness and margins. Textile trade restrictive mezsures are
now gradually removed but lower end market remains very competitive.
In view of this, we have established our niche in higher end yarn and
nylon products to match strong overseas demand for high quality shirts
and stockings. We are also targeting denim casual wears to lead our
garment export. Measures will be considered to further enhance the
value chain of fabric products.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Chinese economy continues to develop at a rapid pace. However,
consumption’s share of Gross Domestic Product {(“GDP") remains low
for the Chinese Mainland as compared to the developed countries,
offering the Group tremendous growth opportunities. Following the
central government's efforts to boost consumption for balanced and
sustainable economic development, its significance is rising relative
to investment and exports. Hong Kong economy was vibrant in 2007
with marked improvement in employment and consumer sentiment.
Although economic growth is expected to be slower this year, it will
still be a respectable level in the region backed by closer economic
integration with the Chinese Mainland.

The worsening economic environment in the United States, triggered by
its housing market and subprime mortgages, has created ripple effects
an global economies and credit markets. Whilst the situation may
deteriorate further, China is well positioned to mitigate the negative
effects with sound economic fundamentals. Despite the central
government's efforts to curb inflation and prevent the economy from
overheating, maintaining a stable and relatively fast economic growth
remains a priority. These factors present excelient opportunities for our
consumer businesses to further grow and prosper.

Appreciation
On behalf of the Beard of Directors, | would like to take this

opportunity to express our sincere thanks and appreciation to Mr.
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph, Mr. Qiao Shibo, Mr. Xie Shengxi and Mr. Zhu
Dan for their valuable contributions to the Company during their years
as directors and vice president of the Company. | am extremely pleased
to welcome Mr. Du Wenmin and M. Li Fuzuo, who joined the Board
as Non-Executive Directors in September 2007 and February 2008
respectively, and to congratulate Mr. Chen Long and Ms. Guoe Jinging on
their promotions to Vice Presidents.

The sterling results for the Group are only passible with the dedication
and efforts of our people at all levels and | thank them sincerely for
their considerable achievements in 2007. | also wish to express our
utmost appreciation to our shareholders, customers, business partners
and other stakeholders for the confidence and support they have
shown us.

Song Lin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2008
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The Group is committed to the pursuit of profitable and sustainable
growth. To achieve this, the Group strives to maintain its financial
strength and optimize its profits to return long-term value to our
shareholders, while at the same time conducts its businesses in a
socially and environmentally responsible way in line with the interests
of our customers, employees and other stakeholders.

Environment
There are programs and initiatives in place across the Group to manage

the environmental impact of its operations, and in many instances
cost savings are also created. Our supermarket operation has been
upgrading the lighting and air-conditioning systems in it¢ southern
China stores with the use of more energy efficient components and has
started to promote the use of recyclable paper for its printing materials
on a nationwide basis. The operation has also actively encouraged its
customers to use fewer plastic bags and participated in the “No Plastic
Bag Day” program in both the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong, and
the event in Hong Kong raised more than HK$130,000 in 2007. Joining
hands with other local retailers, our supermarket division in Hong Kong
has entered into a voluntary agreement with the Government to reduce
the use of plastic shopping bags by 15% or above, and the pledge was
fulfilled last year.

Our beverage business has started to adopt a new boiling system that
can simultaneously reduce steam consumption and enhan:e product
quality. Many sets of new wastewater treatment equipment were also
added during the year in a bid to meet higher emission standards
set by local governments in the future. In addition, relevant staff
underwent technical training on wastewater treatment system and a
working committee was also formed to effectively raise the standard of
wastewater management.

The abattoir of our food business in Sheung Shui as well as a
number of the manufacturing factories of gur textile busiress in the
Chinese Mainland have obtained 15014001 certification in relation
to their respective environmental management systems. The Sheung
Shui abattoir has long been working on the establishment of an
environmental management system. It is the first food manufacturing
and processing company in Hong Kong to receive this recognition. in
2006, the abattoir continued to receive the new edition of 15014001
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Carporate Social Responsibility

certification. Our sewage and waste treatment, noise control and
odor filtering level fully comply with the environmental protection
requirements, amang which the standard of our wastewater treatment
exceeds that of the environmental protection license, Qur solar energy
collection system also helps raise the Company’s energy efficiency and
contributes to the community in terms of energy conservation. At the
headquarters level, last year the Company started to allow shareholders
to receive corporate communication by electronic means through its
website and in order to encourage them to opt for this environmentally
friendly option, the Company has offered to donate HK$136 to
charitable causes for each shareholder who does so.

Community
During the year, the Group made donations in cash and in kind to

suppaort various charitable causes and aid disaster relief efforts, and
worked with several charitable organizations to encourage its customers
and employees to get involved in fund raising activities, We also
mobilized our employees to provide volunteer services to the local
community in which they are engaged.

The Group's fulfillment of corporate social responsibility goes beyond
philanthropic donations of money and goods. Our beverage business
has been launching the “The Great Expedition with SNOW (FEHE -
BMXAE) " campaign for the third consecutive year, In 2007,
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{ “The Great Expedition with SNOW” campaign launched in 2007.
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The expeditors helped building a primary school with a library in
Yunnan Province.

the focus of the campaign was to explore the learning condition and
environment of students in the rural districts along the national border.
The expeditors helped building a primary school with a library in
Yunnan Province. This campaign also supported an undergraduate paid
internship program, offering 100 students in their fourth year of study
with outstanding academic results the opportunity to have on-the-job
training. Our mainland supermarket operation assisted the Red Cross
Society in Baoan, Shenzhen, together with other local institutions, in
organizing a symposium and other activities to promote the World Blood
Donor Day 2007, It aimed at increasing public awareness of voluntary
non-remunerated blood donation and the safety and efficiency of blood
transfusion. In 2007, the theme was “Safe Blood for Safe Motnerhood”.

Workptace

Employees are our most important assets and assuring their health and
safety in the workplace is a key to the Group’s continued success. Each
of our businesses has formulated its own occupatianal health and safety
guidelines and policies in accordance with its unique commercial and
local conditions. At the same time, delivering values to our stakeholders
and securing the Group's long-term profitable growth are founded on
releasing the potential of our staff and thus we put great emphasis on
their training and development. Individual businesses have established
a wide variety of training programs covering areas such as leadership,
technical, sales and marketing and interpersonal skills. We believe that
the existence of appropriate nurture and development programs will
boost the quality and retention rate of our employees.
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Posters of charity events supported by our retail division.

Product Quality

The Group applies specific selection criteria for suppliers to ensure
that the products supplied to us are up to standard and safe for
consumption. Where manufacturing is involved, its entire process is
subject to vigorous supervision to make sure that the end products
meet the predetermined quality standard. Our supermarket operation
has implemented wide-ranging measures to manage and monitor the
quality of products it sources from third parties, and our beverage
business has obtained .the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points
(HACCP) certification, reflecting its commitment to food safety. As a
major supplier of live pigs to Hong Kong, we attach great importance
to the guality and safety of meat products. We assist the Government
to establish a rigorous meat product tracing system and a product
recall system, which can trace the meat products back to the upstream
registered mainland pig farms and master information on product flow
in the downstream retail market. At the same time, we have implemented
our stringent management control of the abattoir and intreduced the
HACCP certified system in order to uphold the highest safety standard
of meat products in Hong Kong.

Supply Chain

The Group is aware that how its suppliers conduct their businesses
will impact on our operations. We have set up internal guidelines
stipulating the requirements for the selection and management of
suppliers. For instance, our supermarket operation in the Chinese
Mainland has devised the “Code of Conduct of Suppliers”, which sets
out the standards in terms of legal compliance, labor practice, working
condition, corporate citizenship, product safety, intellectual property
rights and business ethics expected from the supptiers.
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The Group's retail division mainly comprises three business segments:
(1) supermarket and logistics; (2) brand-fashion distribution in the
Chinese Mainland and (3) other retail stores operation.

The Group's retail division showed an encouraging improvament in
its operating results in 2007, mainly contributed by sustained organic
growth in the retail operation and the robust economy in both the
Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong. Turnover and attributabte profit
amounted to HK$26,008 million and HK$521 million respectively,
representing an increase of 27.4% and 140.1% over 2006.

For the year under review, price inflation and bank lending accelerated
in the Chinese Mainland triggering further macrceconomic acljustment
measures from the central government to prevent the econemy from
overheating. The mainland economy remained robust in 2307 with
a 11.4% growth in GDP. Improvement in the people’s wealth and an
increase in disposable income have fuelled personal consumption and
driven up the level of retail sales. A year-on-year 16.6% growtn in total
retail sales of consumer goods was recorded. [n addition, the consumer
price index increased by 4.8%, mainly due to a substantial increase in
food prices. The Group’s consumer businesses have thus benefited as
a whole.

With flourishing economy, improved employment market and buoyant
real estate market in Hong Kong, local consumption expenditure showed
steady growth in 2007.
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and “BFE SUGUO”. Major store formats are hypermarket, superstore,
supermarket and convenience store. Particularly, several convenience
stores under the brand “Vango” were opened in Shenzhen and Hong
Kong at the end of last year. In terms of geographical contribution,
Eastern and Central China, Southern China, Hong Kong and Northern
China respectively accounted for 58.5%, 26.9%, 9.8% and 4.8% of the
operation’s turnover for the year under review.

The turnover for the year under review increased through rew store
openings and organic growth. Over the years, the operation has
adopted a multi-format approach and a district dominance strategy.
Stock turnover has improved via enhancement of product mix, category
and assortment management to cater for customer preferences as well
as store and supply chain management. Coupled with be:ter price
negotiation with suppliers and stringent cost controls, profitability
improved accordingly throughout the same period, and the peration
continued to repost remarkable result in 2007. Overall same store
growth of 9.5% was recorded for the year, in particular a 10.2% increase
was achieved for the Chinese Mainland. In terms of geographical
segment, Eastern and Central China, Southern China, Hong Kong and
Northern China respectively recorded same store growth of 8.6%,
14.9%, 2.2% and 3.1%. The consolidated earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA™} for 2007 amounted
to MK$1,051 million, representing a 35.9% growth over that of 2006.
The EBITDA of the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong operations were
HK$785 million and HK$266 million respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To further increase the market share in Eastern China, certain
superstores were opened in Ningbo and Shaoxing, but their preliminary
performance still needed improvement and has lowered the attributable
profit from the Eastern China operation. The operation is making
efforts to rationalize the supply chain in the regions in order to reduce
purchase costs. In addition, cost pressure from escalating store rentals
upon tenancy renewal will also impact its profitability.

To brave the prevailing keen competition in the retail market, the Group
aims to improve operational efficiency to drive profitability and focus
on the development of hypermarkets in the current year. The Group
will continue to enhance existing operation, open new stores in target
districts and explore acquisition opportunities in order to raise market
presence in the regions.
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Brand-fashion Distribution
The brand-fashion distribution segment reported turnover and

attributable profit for 2007 of HK$2,029 million and HK$98 million

respectively, representing an increase of 30.7% and 276.9% over 2006,

For the year undar review, the “Esprit” brand reported satisfactory
growth in turnover by active product promotions, store facelift and
enhanced product design, together with improved operating, efficiency
and economies of scale. As at the end of December 2007, the “Esprit”
brand distribution network comprised over 840 self-operated and
franchised stores in the Chinese Mainland. Both self-opercted stores
and franchised stores achieved satisfactory results with the former
recording same store turnover growth of 15.2% for the year. The
cessation of distributing certain brands in 2006 also partly accounted
for the improvement in profitability.

Other Retail Stores
Other retail stores segment reported turnover and attributabla profit for

2007 of HK$791 million and HK$60 million respectively, representing an
increase of 16.7% and 53.8% over 2006, As at the end of December
2007, the Group’s chain of retail stores consisted of 5 Chinese Arts &
Crafts F7 %% stores in Hong Kong and 41 CR Care ZE & stores in Hong
Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

For the year under review, the retail industry was buoyant with strong
consumer sentiment. Consumers became more receptive to the
premium perceived value and quality products. Increasing recognition
of the Chinese Arts & Crafts 1% brand and its private labels as well
as revamped store displays contributed to the increase in sates of
jewelry and arts and craft products, which has continued to support the
increase in turnover and profitability of Chinese Arts & Crafts &% for
the year with overall same store turnover growth of 7.1%.
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BAHBERAEMT  STHEEERPERFER Rising health awareness amongst the local community has increased the
BEROTRA - REBEFERN - SEEERMN market demand of traditional Chinese medicine and health food. For
HEBESER  FEEENEXEEEMREE R the year under review, the increase in sales of certain premium products
ISR - BRRS EEEEE 22.8% NBEE delivered strong contribution to the increase in turnover and the
BE - BEMHESRB TR ENAHBEXAK operating margin of CR Care 2%, which recorded remarkable overall
AREH EHE_TTEFNBREREEHEE same store turnover growth of 22.8%, Despite the cost pressure from
B8R escalating store rentals and labor costs, the CR Care FEPE operation
recorded a turnaround in profitability for 2007.

FEMETR-_SLLFEL-A=+—ENHEDH
Geographical distribution of the Group's supermarkets as at 31 December 2007
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The beverage division reported turnover and attributable profit for 2c07
of HK$13,304 million and HK$303 million respectively, reprasenting an
increase of 40.7% and 74.1% over 2006.

Beer Operation
The beer operation reported turnover and attributable profit for 2007

of HK$12,345 million and HK$239 million respectively, reprasenting an
increase of 40.7% and 57.2% over 2006. The sales volume of beer in
2007 rose by 30.7% to approximately 6,935,000 kiloliters, including
organic growth of 18.6%. In particular, sales volume of cur national
brand “SNOW” reached 5,120,000 kiloliters, representing 73.8% of
the total sales volume and impressive growth of 68.6%. The increase
in sales volume was mainly contributed by organic growth with a
notable sales volume increase in the Liaoning, Jiangsu, Beijing/Tianjing
and Zhejiang regions, driven by successful brand integration through
initiatives in the “SNOW” promotion and market distribution. On the
other hand, the Chinese Mainland economy continued to grow vibrantly
and the increase in consumer income further boosted the market
demand of beer.

For the year under review, the Group had further enriched product mix
in most of the regions so as to cater for the increasingly demanding
consumer taste. The increase in average selling price per kiloliter
compensated for the increase in production cost; and overall gross
profit margin remained comparable. However, considerable investment
was expended on building sales distribution channels and popularity
of the “SNOW” brand during preliminary market expansion in certain
regions. As a result, the increase in average selling and distribution
expenses per Kiloliter offset the contribution of sales volumsa increment
to profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Sales volume of beer over the last three years
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The Group increased the equity interest in its existing 14 brewery
companies in Sichuan by 38% and a brewery factory in Guizhou by
100% through the completion of the acquisition of the entire interest in
B (EM) AREMDET Blue Sword (Group) Company Limited) in
April 2007. The increase in attributable profit of the Sichuan region to
the Group further boosted profitability of the division, offsetting the loss
incurred by new breweries that were acquired or commenced operation
in the year under review.

As at the end of December 2007, the Group operated nearly 60
breweries in the Chinese Mainland with an annual production capacity
of approximately 10 million kiloliters. With a strategic move to

b 3 X a3 ZEENTF 14

2007 2006 Change
AEEHET EEEEE -V (%)
HKS million HK$ million

L8 Turnover 13,304 9,455 41%
b F| Attributable profit 303 174 74%
FitFle - BUE - EBITDA 1,514 1306 16%
TEEHHEMERN . y

ek Capital expenditure GEED 1,744 257%
B E and new acquisitions
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »» BEVERAGE
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reinforce the Group’s market position and to supplement the operations
in existing and target regions, the Group continued to expand its
production capacity through acquisitions, investments in greenfield
breweries and capacity upgrade of existing breweries. During the year,
the Group completed the acquisition of a 90% interest in 22 1 2 1 &8
AR DA (Anhui Shengli Brewery Company Limited), a 103% Interest
in RRETEHEEZRMD AR 2T (nner Mongolia Batehan Brewery
Company Limited) and i f7 B 3 18 B 5 R & £ 2 &) (Hunan Xinghua
Brewery Company Limited), a 80% interest in EEMEFTIEHHEME
fB27] (Liaoning Yalujiang Brewery Company Limited), and the related
brewing assets in FHE S H @B H R 2 5 (Hueludao Juhua Brewery
Company Limited) as well as 77 # ¢ 18 &R i£ 5 B & 5 (Anhui Wanpi
Brewery Company Limited) with a total production capacity of 705,000
kiloliters to further complement its existing operations in Anhui, Inner
Mongolia, Liaoning, Hunan and the nearby regions.

As the economy of the Chinese Mainland maintains its rapid growth and
domestic consumption increases, it is expected that the beer market will
continue to expand. Being the largest brewer in the Chinese Mainland,
the Group will strengthen its geographical coverage, increase production
capacity and enhance operational efficiency so as to capitalize on the
growing market demand for beer.

Purified Water Operation

The purified water operation, with “Cestbon &8 ~ purified water as its
major product, reported turnover and attributable profit for 2007 of
HK$959 million and HK$64 million respectively, representing an increase
of 41.0% and 190.9% over 2006. The completion of the Group's
acquisition of the 49% minority interest in the purified water business
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

in May 2007, together with the operational improvements, explained the
surge in attributable profit of the year.

The sales volume of purified water in 2007 rose by 31.0% to
approximately 1,074,000 kiloliters, with bottle water and barrel water
rose by 40.8% and 19.8% to approximately 615,000 kiloliters and
459,000 kiloliters respectively. This is a strong demand for purified
water in the mainland market. Through active launch of promotional
campaigns, local popularity of “C'estbon 15%" brand was spread
nationwide. With the distribution network expanded from Guangdong
to other districts including Sichuan, Nanjing and Beijing, the operation
recorded satisfactory increase in sales volume as well as turnover
and profitahility.

Looking forward, to strengthen its competitive advantage, the Group
will be prudently expanding into new markets and undertaking merger
and acquisition to maintain growth in market share.

EMMPARR SR FE+ A=+ BN ESH
Geographical distribution of the Group's breweries as at 31 December 2007
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »> FOOD PROCESSING AND DISTRIBUTION
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The food processing and distribution division reported turnover and
attributable profit for 2007 of HK$7,381 million and HK$531 million
respectively, representing an increase of 21.2% and 22.1% over 2006.
Excluding the disposal gain of certain equity interests in non-core
investment in the year, attributable profit of the division for 2007
increased by 8.3%.

Through securing supply, marketing of new products as well as
expansion in the mainland market, frozen food, aquatic products and
other assorted foodstuff distribution reported satisfactory growth in
both turnover and attributable profit. However, cost pressure from tight
supply of mainland livestock, high transportation cost and appreciation
of Renminbi had lowered the attributable profit from the livestock
distribution business for the year under review. The increasingly
competitive environment in Hong Kong live pig market following the
opening up of the mainland pig imports in July 2007 and volatile pig
prices will continue to pose pressure on the profitability of the foodstuff
distribution operation. Underpinned by the Group’s strorg premium
brand image as high quality fresh meat provider, its competitive
expertise and supply chain management, the operation is expected to
be in a favorable position to compete with the other authorized agents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INLES

NG FUNG BRAND
LMTRBER

Despite high fuel costs, the marine fishing and aquatic products
pracessing operation reported notable growth in turnover and
atiributable profit for the year under review. This was mainly
contributed by the approximate 39% increase in sales volume as well as
a rise in gross profit margin from enhanced catching capability. Further,
regular on-site review of fishing fleet fuel utilization and cost saving
measures were implemented to keep the production costs under control,

Supported by its competitive edge in sourcing, slaughtering and
fresh meat production, the division accelerated its investments in the
mainland meat processing business targeting the major cities. Both
Shenzhen and Shanghai operations reported satisfactory results for
the year under review. The newly acquired Hangzhou operation also
provided further profitability momentum. The Group will continue to
capture investment opportunities in the branded food distribution in the
Chinese Mainland in the foreseeable future.

SRR LF Ekoped e
2007 2006 Change
HMERT R %)
HKS million TSI
wERY Turnover 7.381 6,092 21%
i S 2l| Attributable profit 531 435 22%
FEFE  BUE - EeBrDA 703 20%
HE R EEnEn
AFERER Capital expenditure 158 266%
HWHETRA and new acquisitions
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »> TEXTILE
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Turnover and attributable profit of the textile division for 2007 were
HK$4,713 million and HK$144 mitlion respectively, representing an
increase of 5.8% and 136.1% over 2006. Excluding the dizposal gain
of an associated company and the after-tax effect of revaluation of
investment properties, attributable profit of the division for zo07
increased by 106.8%.

Turnover growth in 2007 for the division was mainty attributable to
the increase in sales of yarn products. Through the Group's focus on
technology upgrade over the past few years, the production and sales
of high-end yarn products with better competitiveness and margins
have increased. However, rising production costs such as direct
material, labor and utility during the year affected the profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AR NS SR NERTE - R ERSERRE Due to the turnaround in profitability of a weaving factory in Jiangsu

AN ERF - BF - —FFNFEHE—IH Province, the spinning and weaving operation recorded an improvement

MBI HETEFHAR - in the operating results for the year, Moreover, the one-off worker
compensation incurred in 2006 adversely affected the profitability for
the same year.

Al BRELEFRAMYREERMHIER - 1§ Nevertheless, high labor costs and rising alert of domestic environmental

BT EENSEE - BRERBSEEHETZE protection will continue to impact the textile industry in the Chinese

HRATEEMEESE  FEBHEFTTELR Mainland. To uplift our competitive advantage under the increasingly

SEERNR RS HRARSNEIEESML competitive operating environment, the divisions focus on technology

HEERES upgrade and product mix rationalization by increasing the proportion of
guality high-end products will remain unchanged.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »> INVESTMENT PROPERTY
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The investment property division, which mainly comprises retail
property rental segment, reported tumover for 2007 of HK$375 million,
representing an increase of 7.4% over 2006. Attributable profit for
2007 amounted to HK$648 million.
surplus and disposal gains of certain non-core investment properties
with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$408 millian (2006:
approximately HKS432 million), attributable profit of the division for

Excluding the after-tax valuation

2007 increased by 11.6%.

Retail rentals continued to edge up during the year under review. Given
the robust economy and the growing number of visitor arrivals, the
increase in local and tourist spending sustained an upwarc trend for
retail sales, which drove up retail rentals.

For the year under review, our retail properties located in Tsimshatsui
and Causeway Bay were fully let out with satisfactory increment in
rentals. JD Mall, the newly redeveloped multi-storey retail property
at Jordan with occupancy rate reaching 60% in March 2008, provided
further growth impetus to the Group’s retail property segment,

Backed by the operating expertise in retail properties in Hong Kong, our
property division has started its shopping mall operation in the Chinese
Mainland since 2006, part of its space is for our supermarke: use. The
mall JTF9$5 03k at Jiangmen and the new shopping mall at Kaiping
already recorded satisfactory occupancy rates.

—RENE B
2006 Change
BEEHET (%)

HKS million RS
BEm Turnover ‘ .‘_%3'75 349 7%
iR Attributable profit | 647 0%
FEHFE - BiE - EBITDA 783 7%
B RB AN
ARRX Capital expenditure 165 68%

PRAREM AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report zo07 48



b iR e i e L

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEEER » LA REMESEH
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »» PETROLEUM AND RELATED PRODUCTS DISTRIBUTION
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The disposal of the entire interest in the Group's petroleum distribution
business in Hong Kong was completed in June 2007. Turnover and
attributable profit contribution of the division up to the disposal date
amounted to HK$10,610 million and HK$2,582 million respectively.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »> INVESTMENTS AND OTHERS
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Attributable profit for 2007 amounted to HK$42¢9 million (2006: HK$421
million).

Container Terminal
The Group has a 10% interest in HIT Investments Limited and Hutchison

Ports Yantian Investments Limited. The Hong Kong and Yantian
deepwater port operations continued to maintain a stable profit
performance in 2007,
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Capital and Funding
As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s consolidated cash and bank

balance amounted to HK$8,443 million. The Group's borrowings as
at 31 December 2007 were HK$12,447 million with HK$4,044 million
repayable within 1 year, HK$7,468 million repayable after 1 year but
within 5 years and HK$35 million repayable after 5 years. Committed
borrowing facilities available to the Group, but not drawn as at
31 December 2007 amounted to approximately HK$1,300 million.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the shareholders’
funds and minority interests, the Group’s gearing was approsimately at
13.3% as at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006: 7.1%).

The Group's principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. As at
31 December 2007, 33.7% of the Group’s cash deposit balances was
held in Hong Kong dollars, 45.5% in Renminbi and 17.0% in US dollars;
whereas 49.7% of the Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and 40.3% in Renminbi with 7.7% in US dollars.

Taking into account of the Group’s strong cash position and relatively
low gearing ratio, management believes that the volatility of current
credit and financial market arising from the subprime crisis in the
United States has no direct significant impact on the Group’s source of
financing and the Group is expected to have sufficient working capital
to finance its operations and capital expenditures in the years to come.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2007, assets with a carrying value of HK$248 million

(31 December 2006: HK$153 million} were pledged for total borrowings
of HK$272 million {31 December 2006: HK$214 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2007.

Employees

As at 31 December 2007, the Group, excluding its associated companies,
has a staff size around 125,000, amongst which more than 94% being
employed in the Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly in Hong
Kong and overseas. Remuneration packages are assessed in accordance
to the nature of jobs duties, individual performance and market trends
with built-in merit components, paid in the form of cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN SHULIN

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2008
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Mr. SONG LIN aged 45

was appointed Chairman of the Group in December 2004, He is concurrently Vice
Chairman and President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources Mational Corporation, Chairman of China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited, China Resources Land Limited as well as China Fesources
Microelectronics Limited. Mr. Song is the Deputy Chairman of China vanke Co.,
Ltd., which is a listed company in China. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited and The Bank of East Asia {China)
Limited. Mr. Song has extensive experience in corporate management and is
currently responsible for the overall business development and strategic p anning of
the Group’s business. Mr. Song holds a Bachelor's degree in Solid Mechanics from
the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai, China. He joined China Resources Holdings)
Company Limited in 1985.

Mr. CHEN SHULIN aged 54

has been an Executive Director of the Group since December 1998 and was
appointed Managing Director in March 200s5.
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation as well as Chairman of Ng Fung Hong Limited and China
Resources Vanguard Company Limited. Prior to joining China Resources Holdings)
Company Limited, Mr. Chen was a senior official with the MOFTEC (Ministry of
Commerce) and a commercial attaché in Australia and New Zealand. He obtained his
Bachelor's degree from Beijing Foreign Languages Institute, China and MBA degree
from Victoria University, New Zealand.

He is also the Director and Vice

Mr. WANG QUN aged 5t

has been an Executive Director of the Group since January 2000 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Wang is a Director of China Resources
(Holdings} Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation. He is also
an Executive Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible
for the entire operation of the Group's brewery business. Mr, Wang has a Bachelor
of Finance degree from the People’s University of China. He has previous y worked
in the China National Economic Committee and held key management pocition in a
Shenzhen based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1994.

Mr. LAU PAK SHING aged 58

has been an Executive Director of the Group since 1997 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in March 2006. He graduated from the Hong Konz Baptist
University (formerly known as Hong Kong Baptist College) and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Committee of Hong Kong Cold Storage Merchants Association Limited as Chairman

Mr. Lau represented the Executive

for many years. Mr, Lau has around 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
corporate finance, property, godown and cold storage businesses and he is currently
in charge of the Group’s Hong Kong property division and logistics business,
Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 1994.

56 BAAEEM LT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report zo07 4R




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

& 8 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BNERAESE msm+=5
RoRR-F_AMAREMBETBAN
- YR-BRAS= ABERAASNTRD
12« BRESVREEEAREBEL DN BES
AYXASTEERBELSE - ARMNEHTELR
RELAHNARIEFEE  FAGEITAES
BEr8A  BRERBEeEHEa MBS -
BHFFREARTZ TESE - R R ENRE
TOBRIE - BEHBRBRURS H N
EE TRURBRASHAREAORES
K e

Mr. KWONG MAN HIM aged 43

joined the Group as an Executive Director in February 2002 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Kwong has a Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Kwong has extensive experience in corporate planning,

He is also a member of the Hong

financiat analysis, equity research and merchant banking. He is in charge of the
Group's finance and treasury function, corporate planning and development as
well as merger and acquisition activities. He also manages investor relations and

promotes corporate governance.
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Mr. YAN BIAO aged 46

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in 1994 and was a Deputy Managing
Director before his re-designation as a Non-Executive Director in March 2006.
Mr. Yan is a Director of China Resources {Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation and is the Director of Legal Affairs of the China
Resources Group. Mr, Yan is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Land
Limited. He has a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking University, China and an
MBA degree from the University of San Francisco, USA.

Mr. JIANG WEI aged 45

has been a Director of the Group since 1995. Mr. Jiang is currently the Director,
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited and China Resources National Corporation.
Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Land
Limited, China Resources Microelectronics Limited, China Resources Logic Limited
as well as China Assets (Holdings) Limited. He is also an executive director of

Mr. Jiang is a Non-Executive

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Greentown China Holdings Limited and is also a Director of China Vanke Co., Ltd.,
which is a listed company in China. Mr. Jiang obtained both his Bachelor’s degree in
International Trade and Master's degree in International Business and Finance from
the University of international Business and Economics in Beijing, China.

Mr. WANG SHUAITING aged 52

was appointed Director of the Group in March 2006. He is the Director and Vice
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
Natienal Corporation.
Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in the electricity industry in the
PRC. Prior to joining China Resources {Holdings) Company Limited, he worked
far the General Office of the Government of Jiangsu Province from 1985 to 1987

Mr. Wang is currently the Chairman of China Resources
He is also an Executive Director, Vice

and was subsequently the Head of the Industrial Office as well as the Deputy
Secretary-General of the Government of Xuzhou City. Mr. Wang holds an EMBA
degree in business administration from China Europe International Business School.
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MR. LI FUZUOQ aged 43

was appointed Director of the Group in February 2008. He is currently an Assistant
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and General Manager
of its Strategy Management Department. He is also a Non-Executive Director of
China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Microelectronics Limitec and China
Resources Logic Limited. Mr. Li obtained both his Bachelor's and Master's Degrees
in Mechanical Manufacturing Engineering from the Beijing University of Aeronautics

and Astronautics, China in 1987 and 1990 respectively.

MR. DU WENMIN aged 44

was appointed Director of the Group in September 2007. He is the Fresident of
the Internal Audit Department of China Resources (Holdings) Compaiy Limited.
He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Land Limited, China
Resources Microelectronics Limited and China Resources Logic Limited. Mr. Du
has an MBA degree from the University of San Francisco, USA and also holds the
professional qualification of Economist issued by the Ministry of Commerce and the
Evaluation Committee of China Resources {Holdings) Company Limited.
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DR. CHAN PO FUN, PETER BBS, MBE, |P, FCPA(Practising), FCPA(Aust),
aged 86

has been a Director of the Group since 1973. He practiced accountancy in Hong
Kong for 60 years. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum Technology and
Modern Chinese Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater
Technology. DOr. Chan is a trustee of the Hong Kong Shue Yan Univers ty (also as
its Research Professor} and the United College of Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He was the Chairman of The Kowloon Stock Exchange, a founding Director of The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited and has served three terms as the Chairman of
the former Hong Kong Federation of Stock Exchanges.

MR. HOUANG TAI NINH aged 54

has been a Director for the Group since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon
Investments Limited, Sino Petrochem Development Limited and China & Overseas
Resources Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies degree
from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.

DR. LI KA CHEUNG, ERIC FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP, aged 54

has been a Director of the Group since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of Li, Tang,
Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising), member of the Tenth Mational
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and former member
of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He holds directorship in a number of
listed companies including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Benk Limited,
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited, Wong's International (Holdings) Limited, CATIC International Holdings Limited,
RoadShow Holdings Limited, Sinofert Holdings Limited, Meadville Holdings Limited,
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
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DR. CHENG MO CHI GBS, OBE, JP, aged 58

has been a Director of the Group since November 2005. He qualified as a solicitor
in Hong Kong, United Kingdom, Victoria Australia and Singapore and is the Senior
Partner of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co., a firm of solicitors. He is currently Director of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and had served as a member of the
Legislative Council from 1991 to 1995. Dr. Cheng is the Hon. President and Founding
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Disectors. Presently, he holds directorship
in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore, inctuding Beijing
Capital International Airport Company Limited, China COSCO Holdings Company
Limited, China Mobile Limited, City Telecom (HK} Limited, Guangdong Investment
Limited, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (formerly known as K. Wah Construction
Materials Limited), Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited, ARA Asset Management Limited, Shui On Construction and Materials Limited
as well as Tian An China Investments Company Limited.

THE HON. BERNARD CHARNWUT CHAN GBS, IP, aged 43

was appointed a Director of the Group in November 2006. He is the Executive
Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance
Company Limited. He also acts as an Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Apart from the roles in the business community,
Mr. Chan also serves as Deputy to The National People’s Congress of the People's
Republic of China, a member of the Legislative Council representing the insurance
industry and a non-official member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR.
In addition, Mr. Chan holds directorship in a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage
Holdings Limited, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited, Wing Lung Bank Limited
and Yau Lee Holdings Limited.

MR. 51U KWING CHUE, GORDON GBS, CBE, IP. aged 62

was appointed a Director of the Group in November 2006. He had been a
government official for over 36 years before his retirement from the civil service
in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary, Government Secretariat in 1993
and served a number of high-ranking government positions, namely the Secretary
for Economic Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and
eventually retired from his {ast posting as Secretary for Planning, Environment &
Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Transport
International Holdings Limited and two of its subsidiaries, ICEA Finance Holdings

Limited as well as Television Broadcasts Limited.
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MR. LAU KIN SHING, CHARLES aged 52

was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He heads the Group’s
Internal Audit Department. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and
Master’'s degree in Business Administration as well as in Informat on System
Management. He is a chartered accountant, New Zealand, Austrulian FCPA,
a Canadian certified general accountant and U.S. certified internal auditor. He has
extensive experience in internal auditing, financial management and operations

review. Mr. Lau joined the Group in February 2000.

MR. CHEN LANG aged 42

was appointed Vice President of the Group in February z008. He is the Vice
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited
and the Chairman of Suguo Supermarket Company Limited. He is also a Director
of China Resources {Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National
Corporation. Mr. Chen joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1989,
He was previously the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources
Logic Limited. Prior to that, he was the Chairman and General Managar of China
Resources Development and Investment Company Limited and was ir charge of
a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics cegree from
Anhui University, China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of San Francisco, USA.

MS. GUO JINQING aged 42

was appointed Vice President of the Group in February 2008. She has been the
Managing Director of Ng Fung Hong Limited since 2001. She joined Ng Fung
Hong Limited in 1991 and assumed the role of Deputy Managing Director in 19g6.
Ms. Guo holds a Bachelor of Economic degree from the University of International
Business and Economics, China and a Master of Business Administration degree
from Murdoch University, Australia. She has substantial experience in t-ading and

corporate management.
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MISS CHEUNG SIU LING aged 45

is the Deputy Chief Financial Officer of the Group. She holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Newcastle, United Kingdom. Miss
Cheung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Certified General Accountants Association of Canada. She worked for an
international accounting firm for over 13 years. Miss Cheung joined the Group in
January 2001.

MISS HUI LEUNG CHING, PATRICIA aged 40

is the Head Legal Advisor overseeing the Group's Legal and Secretarial Department,
Miss Hui holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from King’s College, University of London,
and is qualified to practice law in Hong Kong as well as England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Group, Miss Hui has warked in private practice and with a listed company
and has substantial experience in corporate and commercial legal work, regulatory
compliance and company secretarial matters. She joined the Group in October 2006.

MR. SHI SHANBO aged 42

was appointed Managing Director of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited in 2006. Mr. Shi holds a Master's degree in Economics from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics, China. He joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1991 and has been the Vice Chairman and General Manager
of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited since June 2003. He has over a
decade of experience in corporate finance, human resources management and
strategic planning.

MR, TANG XU DONG aged 48

is currently the General Manager of China Resources Retail (Group) Company
Limited as well as the Chief Executive Officer of Tactical Solutions Incorporated,
a joint venture between the Group and Esprit Holdings Limited, specialising in
the distribution of apparel, fashion accessories and cosmetics. Mr. Tang holds
a Bachelar of Business degree from the Liaoning University, China and a Master
of Economics degree from the People's University of China. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tang worked for the CITIC Group. He is also a member of the Shanghai
Changning District's Chinese People's Political Consultative Committee. Mr. Tang
joined the Group in November 1997.
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate
governance framework is essential to the successful growth of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value. The Company
is committed to attaining and maintaining high standards of cerporate
governance and adopts principles of corporate governance emphasising
a quality board, accountability to all stakeholders, open cormunication
and fair disclosure.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

On 8 April, 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance
Practice Manual {(“CG Manuat”). The CG Manual incorporates almost all
the Code Provisions of the Code on Carporate Governance Practices (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and includes the implementation details for the Code Provisions
and, where appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. The CG
Manual can be downloaded from our website and copies are available
on request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with all the Code Provisions in the €6
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2007, with deviations
from Code Provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 of the CG Code as summarised
below. The Company has also exceeded the requirements under
the Listing Rules and the CG Code in various areas of ite corporate
governance practices.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annuzl Report is
intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the corporate zovernance
practices of the Company and their development throughout the
reporting year and to invite our shareholders’ views thereon.

The Board
The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company's affairs,
The Directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance shareholder
value and to conduct themselves in accordance with their d ity of care
and loyalty.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their decisions

include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial objectives
of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments, disposal
of assets or any significant capital expenditure of the Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

6. Review of the financial performance and results of the Company;
and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final dividend
and the declaration of any interim dividends.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts of each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. Since
November 2002, to enable the shareholders to appraise the operations
and performance of the Group, the Group has been releasing quarterly
fnancial highlights and operating review. The financial statements are
prepared and presented to enable a clear and balanced assessment of
the financial position of the Group. Regular management reports on the
financial position and prospects of each business unit of the Group are
reviewed by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2007, and up to the date of

this Report, there were the following changes to the membership of

the Board:

(1) Mr. Xie Shengxi resigned and Mr. Du Wenmin was appointed as
Non-Executive Director on 6 September 2007.

(2) Mr. Qiao Shibo resigned and Mr, Li Fuzuo was appointed as
Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2008.

(3) Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph resigned as Executive Director on
15 February 2008,

As at the date of this Repaort, the Board comprises 16 Directors,
including the Chairman, the Managing Director, three Deputy
Managing Directors, five Non-Executive Directors and six Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out on pages 56 to 59 of this Annual Report and can also be found
on our website. The relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of
the Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent,

The experience and views of our Independent Non-Executive Directors
are held in high regard and contribute to the effective direction of the
Group. The Company exceeded the minimum requirements under the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent
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Non-Executive Directors with six Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Two of our independent Non-Executive Directors have appropriate
accounting qualifications, which also exceeds the reg:irement of
the Listing Rules. Throughout the year of 2007, the Company has
maintained the proportion of its Independent Non-Executive Directors 1o
at least one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme for its
newly appointed directors. Continuing development and information
are provided to the Directors to keep them abreast o” the latest
developments involving the Group’s businesses and operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of
skills and expertise appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Company. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination Corimittee are
then put to the full Board for decision.

All Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directars) are not
appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary
term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility to organise
the composition of the Board to serve the needs of the Group. All
Directors are subject to re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the annual general meeting following their appointment aid at least
every three years on a rotation basis. The Articles of Association of the
Company require that one-third of the Directors (including Executive
and Non-Executive Directors) shall retire each year. The Directors who
are required to retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board
during the year and those who have been longest in office since their
election or re-election. A retiring Director is eligible for re-election.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held
separately by Mr. Song Lin and Mr. Chen Shulin respectively. The
segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Managing Director
ensures a clear distincticn in the Chairman’s responsibility "0 manage
the Board and the Managing Director’s responsibility to manage the
Company’s business. The respective responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Managing Director are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Bue to impaortant business appointments overseas, Mr. Song Lin was
not in Hong Kong on 31 May 2007 and therefore could riot attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on that day. The
Managing Director and either the chairman or at least on2 member
of the audit committee, compensation committee and namination
committee attended the annual general meeting to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
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HLEGE4R S ARMSTEREE ( KNEES The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
H—R) SRXETONNERE - BRTEHEHE approximately quarterly intervals to review the financial performance of
S HHEEAEFRAMEER  UESREEE the Group. Between these regular meetings, the Board meets to discuss
KB (TR ETHRAIEERE ) RAMTFENR and consider major issues {whether or not required by the Listing Rules)
FEEEAENSE - FENSENER®S and also on other occasions when board decisions are required. With
ERHtu RAERSENERRIRRES respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors receive at least 14
BENEZES=RMRXHHEEREBEREX days prior written notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting
- EHMEREMESR  TRTHFIS TR Board papers no less than three days prior to the meeting. With
BAE - 5 MEBRTRERARERERN respect to other meetings called, Directors are given as much notice as
ERAEEERMB I ERTR - is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances, The Directors have
full access to information on the Group and independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

BHGR-TRLFEABR RS - HER The Board met on 11 occasions during 2007, The attendance of the
TERLTHENESSMRTEZRAGEAN Directors at Board meetings and principal Board committee meetings
FERRTE held in 2007 is set out in the table below:

HER | mpzae |yME0AY| nGSae |\GBEaeY | mesae
oar Audit Compensation| Executive Finance Nomination
@ | Committee | Committee” | Committee

R [ Committee | Committee

FHITESE Non-Executive Directors

FHIFEEE | Mr Qiao Shibo

RIS E Mr. Yan Biac

fr3i-Fok Mr. liang Wei 1

FRELEE | Mr Wang Shuaiting 1

HEEEEY | M Xie Shengxi®

HYRE4E® | Mr Du Wenmin® 1|1

B3 4477 KW Independent Non-Executive Directors

[E R oL b Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter 6 4 1

WAWHEE | Mr. Hovang Tai Ninh 4 1 7 4 1 1
Egidihe Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2 5 4 1 1
BRE®ML | Dr. Cheng Mo Chi 3 | 7% 4 1

FRERBHME |The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan | 4 | 6 3 1 1
PR %L | Mr Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 4 | 6 1 1
117 M Executive Directors

RHMgE Mr, Song Lin 1 7

BEIHMELE | Mr Chen Shulin 3| 3 1 9 7

EEEEE | Mr Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 4 | 7 1 8 7

THEE: Mr, Wang Qun 1 5 7

BIER%E | Mr Lau Pak Shing 4 | 3 9 7

Wxmad | Mr Kwong Man Him 4| 7 9 1
ZR¥WLFEHMAAN " . . 0 , .

Total number of meetings held in 2007

513 R: EHIQIE Regular Meetlng
Notes:  S:  FERILNIR Special Meeting
M R-FTLFEANA  BHEACRARARIESSAOZIESH -
The functions of the Compensation Committee and the Share Option Ind d Directors ¢, ittee were cf ined on 4 April zco7.
(2) WHEREEMEAFKITER  H-FRLERASBEH
Mr. Xie Shengxi resigned as Non-Exerutive Dicector with effect from & September z007.
() HXEREHR_FTLENAANARSEHANITES -
Mr. Du Wenmin was appointed as Non-Executive Director with affect from 6 September 2007,
(6 —®TEERZMEEDANARSUBERREL AR -
The resolutions of Finance Cammittee in 2007 were passed by way of written resalutions,
() REXDAREEANF 064 - HE—RORSAEMTATEEER
At one of the board meetings, Dr, Cheng Mo Chi attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the Company's Articles of Association.
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Delegation by the Board
While the Board retains at all times full responsihility for guiding and

maonitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are

delegated as follows:

(a) Committees — various committees have been established by the
Board to administer certain specified functions of the Company’s
affairs. The main committees include: the Executive Committee,
the Finance Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Compensation Committee. The terms of
reference of the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Compensation Committee which set
out, among other things, the duties, functions and composition of
these committees are set out in the CG Manual and available on the
Company’s website;

(b) Managing Director — the day-to-day management of the Company's
business is delegated to the Managing Director who is accountable
to the Board; and

() Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate and
operating management are delegated to senior management of the
Company within the parameters as specified by the Board,

Nomination Committee
As at 31 December 2007, the Nomination Committee comprised four

Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houarg Tai Ninh
(chairman), Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan
and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive Director, Mr.
Kwong Man Him. The duties of the Nomination Commitiee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendation after such review and to assess the suitability and
qualification of any proposed director candidate. The recom nendations
of the Nomination Committee are then put forward for consideration
and adoption, where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee which set out its duties and precedures
are available on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 December zo07, the Nomination Committee

held one meeting. The work of the Nomination Committee included the

following recommendations te the Board:

s The resignation of Mr. Xie Shengxi and the appointment of Mr. Du
Wenmin as Non-Executive Director.
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Compensation Committee

As at 31 December 2007, the Compensation Committee comprised five
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
(chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Dr. Cheng
Mo Chi and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive Director,
Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph. The duties of the Compensation Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy
and structure of remuneration of Directors and senior management,
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on remuneration and determining the specific remuneration packages
for all directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the
Compensation Committee which set out its duties and procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

The functions of the Compensation Committee and the Share Option
independent Directors Committee were combined on 4 April zoo7.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives is determined
with reference to the performance and respensibilities of the individual,
the performance of the Group, prevailing market conditions and
remuneration benchmarks from comparable companies. Directors
and employees also participate in bonus arrangements based on the
perfermance of the Group and the individual.

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met once

and passed resolutions on matters including:

¢ Approval of the remuneration packages 2007 for Directors and
senior management of the Company.

Audit Committee
As at 31 December zoo7, the Audit Committee comprised five

independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
{chairman), Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi and The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan. Two of its members have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. No member of this Committee is a member
of the former or existing auditors of the Company. The membership
of the Audit Committee has exceeded the Listing Rules requirement
that the majority of its members must be independent and one of
whom must have appropriate professional qualification. The existing
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are modeled on “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committee” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and have also adopted the principles set out in the
CG Code.
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The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making

recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment

and removal of external auditors, review of the Company's financial

information and oversight of the Company’s financial report system and

internal control procedures. During the year under review, the Audit

Committee met on four occasions. The work of the Audit Ccmmittee in

2007 included reviews of:

s the external auditors’ report to the Audit Committee in respect of
2006 audit;

» the 2006 annual report and annual results anneuncement;

» the external auditors’ internal control memorandum in respect of the
2006 audit;

* connected party transactions;

¢ the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March, 2007 and
the related results annocuncement;

¢ the 2007 interim report and interim resuits announcement;

e the guarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September, 2007
and the related results announcement; and

* the quarterly reports of internal audit activities.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the external
auditors on three occasions without the presence of any Executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and independence
of the external auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee
concludes that the independence of the external auditors of the
Company has not been compromised by non-audit services performed
for the Group. During the year under review, audit fees paid and
payable to the Company's external auditors amount to approximately
HK$21 million (zoo6: approximately HK$21 million); fees related to non-
audit services paid and payable amount to approximately HK$2 million
(2006: approximately HK$0.6 million).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The interests held by the Directors in the Company's securities as at 31

December 2007 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 78 to
84 of this Annual Report. On B April 2005, the Company hés adopted
a Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions (*Code of Ethics™) which
incorporates the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code™) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. The Code of Ethics has been amended and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company on 6 April 2006 and 4 Aptil 2007.
The prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure requirements
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in the Code of Ethics also apply to specified individuals who include
the Group’s senior management and persons who are privy to price
sensitive information of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December, 2007.

Internal Control
The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to establish

and maintain a sound and effective internal control system to
ensure the smooth running of the operations, safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholder's interest as well as ensure the reliability of
financial statements.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the frameworks
recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission in the United States and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants as the standards in establishing control
systems and the best practice among our Group companies. The
Group’s internal control system includes five key elements, namely
the existence of an effective control environment, risk management,
communication and information system, cost effective control activities
and proper monitoring mechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks and
impact on the respective business unit at least once every year. The
executive management team of each business unit is accountable for
the conduct and performance of each operation in the business unit
within the agreed strategies and similarly the management of each
operation is accountable for its conduct and performance. Policies and
procedures are designed for safeguarding corporate assets, maintaining
proper accounting records and ensuring transactions are executed in
accordance with management authorisation. Monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operation indicators are
reviewed by the Executive Committee of the Board. Regular meetings
are held with the executive management team of each business unit to
review the actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Department, reporting to the Audit Committee and
Managing Director respectively, is responsible for assessing the Group's
internal control system, formulating an impartiat opinion on the system,
and reporting its findings to the Executive Committee and the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department conducts independent
reviews on the Group's internal contrel on an on-going basis.
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Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual
business units, the scope of work performed by the int2rnal audit
function covers all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit Committee
at least once every quarter and the corrective actions are taken by the
relevant business units. The Board conducts regular reviews of the
Group's internal control system through monitoring the activities of the
Group’s Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Board and the Audit Committee believe that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded and there is no significant area of concerns that may
affect shareholders.

Investor Relations
The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular

communication and fair disclosure of information to its shareholders.
Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for shareholders to form their
own judgment on the operation and performance of the Group.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Corporate
Planning and Development Department is responsible for investor
relationship functions and will respond to such shareho .ders' and
analysts’ enquiries.

The Company's website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with informatian on the
Company's corporate governance practices. Copies of such information
can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon written reguest.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHEN SHULIN

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2008
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food processing
and distribution, textile and property investment businesses. The
principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are shown on pages 177 to 185. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in note 6 to
the financial statements.

Group Profit
The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 97 and
shows the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Dividends
An interim dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$357 million was paid to shareholders during the year,

A special dividend of HK$0.60 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$1,427 million was paid to shareholders in August 2007.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.30 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately HK$716 million payable on or about 13
June 2008 to all persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on 26
May 2008.

Fixed Assets
Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Properties
A schedule of the principal propetties of the Group is set out on pages
186 to 189.

Share Capital
Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note 30
to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
note 31 to the financial statements respectively.
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Charitable Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year amoaunted to

approximately HK$3 million.

Directors

The directers who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:

Chairman
Mr. Song Lin

Managing Director
Mr. Chen Shulin

Deputy Managing Directors
Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Mr. Wang Qun

Mr. Lau Pak Shing

Mr. Kwong Man Him

Directors
Mr. Qiao Shibo
{Non-executive Director)
Mr. Yan Biao
{Non-executive Director)
Mr. Jliang Wei
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Wang Shuaiting
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Xie Shengxi
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Li Fuzuo
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Du Wenmin
(Non-executive Director)
Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter

(Resigned on 15 February 2008)

(Resigned on 1 February z008)

(Resigned on 6 September 2007)
(Appointed on 1 February 2008)

{(Appointed on & September 2007)

(independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

(independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

(fndependent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

The Hon, Bernard Charnwut Chan

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

(independent Non-executive Director)
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Directors (continued)

tn accordance with Article 110 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Song Lin, Mr. Chen Shulin, Mr. Kwong Man Him, Mr. Houang Tai
Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi shall retire by
rotation and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Article of Association,
Mr. Du Wenmin and Mr. Li Fuzuo shall retire and are eligible for re-
election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Biographical Detfails of Directors and Senior Management
Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out on
pages 56 to 61.

Share Option Schemes

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to the
objectives of the Company by the participants (the “New Scheme”),
in addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under a
share option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was
terminated on 31 January 2002 {the “Old Scheme”).
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on 20 August
2004 by an ordinary resolution passed hy shareholders, and shall
expire on 31 January 2012, The board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible participants including any executve or non-
executive directors of the Group {or persons proposed to be appointed
as such), any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established
by any employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group,
any executives and employees of, consultants, professional and other
advisors to the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such),
chief executive, substantial shareholder of the Company, associated
companies of the Group, associates of directors, chief executive and
substantial sharehotder of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholder and where a substantial shareholder is a company,
employees of subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder.

Subject to the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities {“Listing Rules™ on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange™), the exercise price shall be such price
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion. The
maximum entitlement of each participant under the schemes (including
options to be granted to the directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates} is
equivalent to the maximum limit permitted under the Listing Rules.
The scheme mandate limit under the New Scheme was refreshed and
renewed by an ordinary resolution passed by the sharehoiders at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 20 August 2004 which enabled
the grant of further share options to subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares
representing 10% of the shares in issue as at the said date. As at the
date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the New Scheme is
159,766,321 shares which represent 6.7% of the issued share capital of
the Company,

Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over a period
of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant
and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately after the date
of grant.

Save as disclosed betow, no share options have been granted {or
granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled cr lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the relevant share option scheme during
the year in relation to each of the directors or their respective associates,
employees, and other participants of the share option schemes.
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BB Share Option Schemes (continued)
(F) ABREBRA (a) Directors or their associates
R_BELFH+_HA=+—HBRAFEH As at 31 December 2007 and during the year, the following
B FRERHEIRERQRMTIRE directors had interests in respect of options to subscribe for
T RRA T ) AR 2R - B ERERIERT shares granted under the New Scheme of the Company. Share
Bl - HREFHORRENT options held by directors granted under such schemes are set out
below:
i:tueh L 4sR
Number of share options'
HETTE2
210l
S|
[Eangl-Eis
BIPE-LF AT
k-5 St 2 +=H Price of
1M —H—H BEEE BARER naER PAARERE =+—H8 Company's
it P BFRITHE g’ 34 id] 354 HRITE shares
A Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed OQutstanding for options
EERR Date of Price at during during during during at  exercised?
Name of director grant HK$ 112007 the year the year the year the year 31122007 HK$
RUFNTHES
tndependent
Non-executive
Directors
BRHEF ozfo6f2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
Chan Po Fun, Peter
BEKE a2fo6f2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
Houang Tai Ninh
FERE 02/o6{2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
Li Ka Cheung, Eric
A Total 660,000 - - - - 600,000 -
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

{b) Employees and other participants
Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the Company
are employees of the Group and details of share options held by
them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above. Summary of share
options granted to employees of the Group (other thzn directors
of the Company) and other participants are set out below.

(i} Employees (other than directors of the Company)

iaEsa
Number of share options’
HEFTEZ
FERREZEAR
A
RoFTHEF Eilo
W_EFtH +=8 Price of
TTEEm —~A—8 BREH BEFE BEEE BEREE =+—H Company’s
ML HAETE g [grd B3] 34 AT shares
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding for options
RieH Price at during during during during at exercised?
Date of grant HK$ 1f1/2007 the year the year the year the year 31122007 HK$
M
0Old Scheme?
20/06/2000 7.19 475,000 - 161,000 - - 314,000 24.492
21112000 7.08 945,000 - 132,000 - - 813.000 28.042
"\ Sub-total 1,420,000 - 293,000 - - 1,127,000
i 18 ]
New Scheme
o7fo2/2002 7.17 634,000 - 350,000 - - 284,000 27.970
19/04/2002 7.40 284,000 - 40,000 - - 244,000 32.000
o2/08/2002 8.32 720,000 - 350,000 - - 370.000 27.701
24f/01f2003 7.25 50,000 - 50,000 - - - 24.750
14f04f2003 6.29 274,000 - 70,000 - - 204,000 26.153
01/08f2003 7.10 80,000 - 40,000 - - 40,000 25,600
08/10/2003 8.90 352,000 - 230,000 - - 122,000 26,741
14f01/2004 9.72 15,113,000 - 9,516,000 - 400,000 5.197.000 26.291
20fo4f2004 .89 2,892,000 - 2,052,000 - - 840,000 29.114
25/05/2004 9.15 4,154,000 - 2,438,000 - - 1,716,000 26,759
22/67/2004 9.80 160,000 - 50,000 - - 110,000 33.25C
o4/10f2004 10.35 17,622,000 - 7,726,000 - - 9,896,000 28.760
17/01/2005 1140 120,000 - 40,600 - - 80,000 27.400
22fo7/2005 12.50 720,000 - 230,000 - 80,000 410,000 27.813
M #t Sub-total 43,175,000 - 23,182,000 - 480,000 19,513,000
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
(b) Employees and other participants (continued)
(iy  Other Participants

EAERE"
Number of share options*
HEITEZ
FRRYIE 7 R E]
iR EREe
BRoRTFLF BT
it = 3 +=A Price of
1] —-B—B8 HEER FAES MREF 33133 =+-—H Company’s
BB MATTE 4] i i £ BRITHE shares
Exercise CQutstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Quistanding for options
pad A=) Price at during during during during at exercised?
Date of grant HK$ 11/2007 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2007 HK%
wHa
New Scheme
o5/03/2002 7.35 3,365,000 - 2,716,000 - - 649,000 20.831
14fo4f2003 6.29 120,000 - 120,000 - - - 26.153
‘b Sub-total 3,485,000 - 2,836,000 - - 649,000
Mg - Notes:
1 FBERHER B {RERRRIE AT B 2 A0 RIARIRRS - 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the
Company covered by the share oplions.
2. HEMNEEBREAERZRLOARGME - B 2. The price of the Company's shares disclosed for the options exercised during

FIEMEAE T 2 AT - AR RN R A AR SR T
M2 AT -

ME R TR HE M A0 B ST R B
FEE=EA -

HHWER TR -F-H=+—BTUHEL- -8
WA - RO ERUR RS G B L TR ALE -

ExHREEHZBREZFREREL IR
+HEZAER MEXBHBREOREY
5L -

HRREAFEEE AR LB - YERREET
A .

AR — AR ENES 2 800 TRt B IR AT iR I
RACFEZERAMT  EREMFL Y BRETE
BHERITHE -

the year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock
Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of optiens.

The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out in note
2P to the financial statements.

3. The Old Scheme was terminated on 31 January 2oo2, and thesefore no options
have been granted under the Old Scheme since then.

4. All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the date
falling 1en years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is
HK$1.00.

5. As no share options were granted during the year under review, no price
disclosure is applicable.

6. Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over a period of time

up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant and exercisable
within a period of not more than 10 years immediately after the date of grant.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company In the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of The Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong {the “SF0"), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant 1o Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions
which the directors and chief executive of the Company are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are
required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

il Company

| AR

1BH B 5rtre

T8 WE AR g e . Aggregate

e Long position/ fine B Number of percentage of

Name of Directors Short position Number of shares underlying shares* interest® (%)

Kbk A 1,700,000 - 0.07
Song Lin Long position

R % e 1,932,000 - 0.08
Chen Shulin Long position

Ra:Ed e 60,000 - 0.01
Wang Qun Leng position

EE] HAE 400,000 - 0.02
Lau Pak Shing Long position

| ihr Ha 1,194,000 - 0.05
Kwong Man Him Long position

Figig e 1,120,000 - 0.05
Qiao Shibo Long position

eif::E) He 500,000 - 0.02
Yan Biao Long position
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(a) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

B )

Company (continued)

HEHAS

Name of Directors

$FE W
Long position/
Short position

AR

B EFil-

HRipEE Aggregate

RInEE Number of percentage of

Number of shares underlying shares® i.nterest2 (%)

& A 240,000 - 0.01
Jiang Wei Long position
HXR HE 100,000 - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
g aE 136,000 200,000 0.03
Chan Po Fun, Peter Long position
HE 170,000? - -
Long position
HAE e - 200,000 0.01
Houang Tai Ninh Long position
EHEE FaE - 200,000 0.01
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long paosition
Notes:
1, This refer to underlying shares of the Company covered by share options

|

BiiE -

1 EEXTRRRR T3 | — et B R R AR IR AT B,
e R REMERLE - RS RRAIE LA
DRYMREFTETA -

z HERTRRG ZAMBR G I BRIES QTR
“EFLF+AZT-RERTTRARENES
b

1. FENOF S M I R % BITREZ AN
#E-

4. BB B ERIEE S SRENBER #mE
HHEURMATAZ ROHE -

granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share Option Schemes”,
such options being unlisted physicalty settled equity derivatives.

2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share capiial of the

Company as at 31 December 2007,

3. Such interest is held by a company of which Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter is
interested in 88.25% of its issued share capital.

4. Save as otherwise specified under note 3, interests disclosed hereunder are
being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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Directors' Interests in Securities (continued)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations

As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the issued
ordinary shares and underlying shares covered by opticns granted
under the share option schemes of associated corporations {within
the meaning of SF0), such options being unlisted physically
settled equity derivatives:

() Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
China Resources Land Limited (*CR Land”):

RRAE 2 HERS

i ARITEE TR | RAGHER

BiERE BT B5Lke

HERE g e Number of Exercise Aggregate

BEAE Long position/ Number  share options Price FHE Percentage of

Name of Directors  Short position of shares outstanding? HK$ Date of grant interest® (%)

KA HE - 900,000 1.230 o01/06/20052 0.02
Song Lin Long position

N ey 100,000 250,000 1.270 a2fo6/2005? 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Long position

it WHE 700,000 - - - 0.02
Qiao Shibo Long position

i3] Ha 1,992,000 - - - 0.05
Yan Biao Long position

LEL iE 892,000 - - - 0.02
Jiang Wei Long position

TabiE HE 200,000 540,000 1.590 04/03/20025 0.02
Wang Shuaiting Long position

HYXER HE 790,000 250,000 1.230 01/06/2005* 0.03
Du Wenmin Long position

80 EAMEZHMLT China Resources Eaterprise, Limited | annual report zoo7 %48




B BHEE
() HEBZNCRITSEREAMEORE

Byl
B -

|
|
‘ L BAREEE RS R B R e a
: mitmm -

2. BEAETI R 2 B 25 T EEMAT
= BRUEBASH - BHARTAEN T
3. FERYHER] A U HIR T - Al R B %N
| ZETL - ZTRARZETAFSACH
EZF-AENA-BLEEMITE - BH6
R .

4. BERAIEHEET - A FTN
=99  ZRFNRIFEAERA—H
EZQ-RAFRRAZ+—BILIARTTE - &
HE R UAER T -

|

|

|

!

| 5. BRAErI R — SR _F=ANOE_8——
| F—RA=+-—-B1LEMEGE - BHnaftfa
A%

|

6. HES O RS R IE AN TE 0 AR 1 22 ARNE AR (2
BN R —_RPLFEr_A=+—8
ERTRTBENES T -

7. LXHRERZ AR BhEARURSES
AZBIFHH

REPORT QF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(b)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations (continued)
Notes:

1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
of CR Land covered by the share options.

2. Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of
grant, Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

3. Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable over a period
frem 2 June 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively to 1 June 2015.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

4. Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable over a period
from 1 |une 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively to 31 May 2015.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

5. Options are exercisable from 4 March 2002 to 31 January 2012.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

6. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share capital of CR
Land as at 31 December 2007.

7. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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HEz2#5ER0 Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(Z) WHEBRETECRTEEREAREA+TE (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
BRI associated corporations (continued)

(i} WE—MERIE-Z2HHEER (i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
LEN[EERENeRTERRR under the share option schemes of an issociated
BB MR EEAR R RMRITE corporation, China Resources Logic Limited (*CR Logic™):
ABATHE 2 B8
W ARITE iTEE Hipes
FEARHER R FEHTT Batk:
WEHE B fn s E Number of Exercise Aggregate

HHgR Long position/ Number share options Price RILEH Percentage of

Name of Directors  Short position of shares outstanding® HK$ Date of grant interest? (%)

FR7 55} 2,500,000 2,000,000 0.906 13/01/2004? 0.16

Song Lin Long position

) ES s 1,824,000 - - - 0.06
Lau Pak Shing Long pasition
e i - 720,000 0.820 09/04/20024 0.03
Jiang Wei Long position
TAbIE ey - 540,000 0.820 09/04/20023 0.02
Wang Shuaiting Long position
HYE e 540,000 - - - 0.02
Du Wenmin Long position

BT - Notes:

1. AR ERAEA R ERRRARR R 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of CR
- Logit covered by the share options.

2. RGO RN ERNDERA ARG D8EE 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
PR R-_SSLEFE+_-_A=+-—-BAEHITRER underlying shares of CR Logic to the total issued share capital ol CR Logic as at
BREGSE - 31 December 2007.

3. BRRR G O] 2 12 S RORE AR 4 B BAAL R+ F BRIATT 1. Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of grant of
£ - BHAMNAESTT - the relevant options, Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

4 BRESARERT  MH-F$F_FEALH - 4. Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable on g April 2002, 1 January
—O9=¥ - —ETEFE-_TFIEF—A—HE 2003, 2004 and 2005 1o 8 April 2012, Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.
—R—=FEANB LERMITE - BT AEN
1L °

5. EXHER BN OB EUNSEAAZY 5. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as

AR -

beneficial owner.
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BB/ HF M Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(Z) RERZECRTHEEREABRODE (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
aHaEE associated corporations (continued)
(i) WBE—EHEEEE-EREHER (ii) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
BFROAEBRADSHITER under the share option schemes of an associated

B RABEEEE N BT BN

corporation, China Resources Power Holdings Company

FIEREE 187 Limited (“CR Power™):
HWHEITE T8 HibER
fRRRES B BT Btk
e E Eisiag 2 4E| Number of Exercise Aggregate
- Y Long position/ Number  share options Price FH A Percentage of
Name of Directors  Short position of shares outstanding® HK$ Date of grant interests (%)
7 g5 1,260,000 800,000 2.80 12/11/2007%? 0.06
Song Lin Long position 540,000 3.99 18/03/20053
Bt ba) - 240,000 2.80 12/11/2003 0.02
Chen Shulin Long position 400,000 3.99 18/03f20053
TH# HE - 500,000 2.80 12/11/200%? 0.01
Wang Qun Long position
2B/ HE - 200,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Long position
g g 200,000 600,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.03
Qiao Shibo Long position 300,000 3.99 18/03/20053
- 30,000° 2.80 12f11/2003°
iy -] e - 240,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
Yan Biao Long position 320,000 3.99 18/03/20053
gz 0E - 1,000,000 2.80 12/13/2003? 0.04
Jiang Wei Long position 600,000 3.99 18/03/20053
TebiE HeE 3,450,000 900,000 2.80 06/10/2003* 0.12
Wang Shuaiting Long position 540,000 3.99 18/03/2005"
HIR g8 270,000 180,000 2.80 12/11/2003* 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
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HH o BHESm Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(Z2) FEBZECRTERREEMROTE ()]

ARMEA ()
HiEE

1. BRI 21 B IRARER R P78 B 22 10 0 15 R
Bir@s -

2. BRES MR - RSS2+ Al
BHEHMEERER  RELARE—H
FEY - EHBREER_F-ZE+ARX
BER - LRSREHMRTIAEE

3. BRESARAL  SHEsz=1tH
BiE BB AR REHARE—
BEESE  2HBRESNR_2-EFZA
TARER - s REEARNAEY
7o

4 BRERTR RN E B ATE A R +F
FRTTEE -

5. AR EaERAR ARG R ARG S
BEEARAR-_FSLE I -A=+—H
ZEETESRBNENLL

6. Bitg A IR AR A HALMBZ 30,0008
MG 2 -

7- Bt TeBRAFRIBLN - EXRBZHAAE
NS HEARBER AL ARG -

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations {continued)
Notes:

1, The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
of CR Power covered by the share options,

2. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each aaniversary of
the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
grant. All options expire on 6 October 2013. Consideration for each of
the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

3. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each ainiversary of
the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
grant. All options expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration fcr each of the
grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

4. Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from date of grant of
the relevant aptions.

5. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of
CR Power as at 31 December zoo7.

6. Mr. Qiao Shibo was deemed to be interested in the 30,000 underlying
shares through interests of his spouse.

7. Save as otherwise specified under note 6, all other interests disclosed
above are being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial
awner.
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Shareholders with notifiable interests
As at 31 December 2007, other than the interests and short positions as

disclosed above, the following persons have interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as they fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

FENECMARERERE SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company:
BHEEEA
HRAER
ERBRAEE
Number of
shares in which
R HKE the interested ERRESH
Long position/ party is deemed Percentage of
HEEREAER Name of interested party Short position to have interests shareholding (%)
R E AR China Resources National HE 1,232,764,380 51.69
{([#FER@LE]) Corporation (“CRNC") Long position
FEHEERIG ARG China Resources Co., Limited g 1,232,764,380 51.69
(B aEr) {Note 1) Long position
CRC Bluesky Limited CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1} iFE 1,232,764,380 51.69
(F1Ee) Long position
FE( M) F/RAT] China Resources (Holdings) e 1,232,764,380 51.69
(TERHmE)) Company Limited (“CRH") Long position
(B &%) {Note 1)
SN IBERIT(FTEE2)  Commonwealth Bank of HaE 168,573,767 7.07
Australia (Note 2) Long position
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. |.P. Morgan Chase & Co. HaE 121,652,844 5.11
(Fi4#E3) (Note 3) Long position
RE 600,000 0.03
Short paositien
P EE - Notes:
L BRME ACRC Bluesky Limited 2 EHB R - 1. CRH is a 100% subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to

MCRC Bluesky Limited BB BB AR 2R HE
ANDR - MEARGERAANHENBD R

H99.98%HEH

2. REEH A RADEVvEE-RE=F8BRT 2.
EA2RFREOTHART - ZERG RN BR
TR R R R T 100%T FIiE 2 2 MET g -

100% by China Resources Co., Limited, which is in turn held as to 99.98% by

CRNC.

According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO, these shares were held by corporations controiled

directly or indirectly as to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.
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BEARRERNRE G

FiieE - (4

Shareholders with notifiable interests (continued)

Notes: {continued)

3. 1B (EHs RHRRFDEVBE _REZGEBRT 3. According to the information disctosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and
BELABERATRER - &S5 H).P. Morgan 3 of Part XV of the SFOQ, these shares were held by ].P. Margan Chase & Co.
Chase & Co. R H S (FEL  FHLT - and corporations controlled by it {Nate 4) in the respective capacity as detailed
betow:
BHOEB
Number of shares
iTE WE
515 Capacity Long position Stort position
WEHEBA Beneficial owner 8,256,535 600,000
RREBIE Investment manager 29,570,000 -
RATHRE Approved lending agent 84,126,309 -
4. BEH(ES RN EREXNVEE_RE=95HEE 4. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divicions 2 and 3
AL FHEFEAFERT - B2).P. Morgan Securities of Part XV of the SFQ, other than J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. which was 98.95%
Ltd. R e3}.P. Morgan Chase & Co.3§7398.95% i 2% held by J.P. Margan Chase & Co., all these corporations were contiolled directly
5h o BR¥E R M4 R).P. Morgan Chase & Co B or indirectly as to 100% by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.
18 R R B 100% 1T HIHE -
ERRE2ESATIE Specific Performance Obligations on Controlling Shareholder

WEETERGSE  THEHETSERELR
alEP3s%AERRMEZRINAA R ERLT L
FE-BRAMRE GG (TRARRERRHE
REAMBEHAFMER) - RZFFLF+=-A
=+—B8  AFRERITLRREZ HRREE
LiEWecooB B ZAEWABER % ——
F+—RAZEIER °

BEXS

1.

R_RELF—FAZA  ForEEN%
BHEZHBATIRHASEBRETR AR
(EREe ) HES(ER)FRTERE
(TES DA B ZERIE G ARTSLIBE: -
AR & X8 A R¥ 2,500,000,0007C © W
MER IR - BEZER  Ea
MiETEE  USERRBEBRERENZE
E TERERFEAPEAMTIIA1ER
EE DR H38%E R LR ENE —RKEE
TR Z100%HE S + 3Z00) 1| B 14 KWE QR
R8T 62%ER - CHEBSTEHEE - |
BERERSHNOIE 4 REYELE6
HES - - SRERTEHERNEENE
BB EH LSRR EhE - AR E
PREZEHREERNN06%ERNES
TRAT ) %14 KU HE O 7] (R TIE LR
BRAMES - Bt - ZMEMTAL
PGB ES R AL HiERS -

According to certain lean agreements, CRH is required to remain as a
beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of tha Company
or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly cr indirectly
through its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at 31 December 2007,
the aggregate amount of the facilities subject to such obligation were
HK$6,600 million. Such facilities will expire before November 2012.

Connected Transactions

1 On 3 January 2007, China Resources Snow Breweries Limited (*CR
Snow"), a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, eatered into
an agreement with all the holders of equity interest in B8 (&
H) AERIEELT (“Blue Sword™) for the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in Blue Sword at a cash consideration of RMB2,500
million. Under the agreement, Blue Sword would undergo a
restructuring so that the assets of Blue Sword upon completion
would mainly consist of the 38% interest in 14 brewery companies
in Sichuan Province and a 100% interest in a brewery company in
Guizhou Province, The remaining 62% interest in the 14 Sichuan
brewery companies was owned by CR Snow. The acquisition
enabted the Group to consolidate its interest in the 14 Sichuan
brewery companies and to further enhance the operational
efficiency of, and the control of the Group in, these breweries. As
two of the vendors, who together had an approximately 10.65%
interest in Blue Sword, were also directors of the 14 Sichuan
brewery companies, which were subsidiaries of CR Snow, that part
of the acquisition attributable to these two connected persons
constituted a connected transaction of the Company.
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REPORT QF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions (continued)

2.

On 14 September 2007, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“Ng Fung Hong"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with FUINEEREELEE (BR) 26 (“Hangzhou
Commercial Assets™) for the acquisition of 19% equity interest
in MBS AMEEAR AT (“Hangzhou United Meat”) at a
cash consideration of RMB76,520,000. The principal activities of
Hangzhou United Meat and its subsidiaries are pigs slaughtering,
meat distribution, meat and food processing and the provision
of cold storage and refrigerated food trading services. Upon
completion of the acquisition, Hangzhou United Meat became a
subsidiary of the Company in which it has 65% equity interest.
Therefore, the acquisition provided Ng Fung Hong an opportunity
to gain further control in Hangzhou United Meat, expand its
business in Hangzhou and seek strategic synergy with nearby
operations such as Shanghai, amidst the growing economy of
China. It also strengthened Ng Fung Hong's competitiveness
against local and overseas operators of food industry in the
Chinese Mainland. Hangzhou Commercial Assets is a connected
person of the Company by virtue of its being a shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company and therefore, the acquisition of
19% equity interest in Hangzhou United Meat from Hangzhou
Commercial Assets constituted a connected transaction of the
Company.
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BEX Bun

3. FAFHHMBEMIATHEITETFRS &
SEAREEERATSMERAREHR
LA EWEE DS fRES
5| 2GS MBETHABT ETHRA
BA 46BN PHATE - BEEGETER
&

() RABRERETIHN

RoBEREFE-A—RB  #£8AH
BROF{HEBEA]) (RORR
—EERFEFEEBUBME AT
LESERMBOR]) REAEN
BRETAMMEDHERE - fahlR
ARRIMERRTERN(RE)EE
AE([EMER D REREMAN
B 2 7] Art Bill Investment Limited
(TABILI)ETSZEhmithas - AR
HEROHhMERSREAEE -
HEABHREEAT  H-RET
F-A—BEEH - BREFEA
BEHUENTAT -_BBLES
AZ+hBRX  ETBERLA
HHEBLR - RBEE-_FRLF
+ZA=+—81LFE  BEHGH
£ B #5835 R R M B ABIL Y
TR R RS L A% 70,800,000

ﬁ:n

R-RREF—A—80  #HRE
RABILER#EBLL(EEA)HR
ARTENAE D) (ZARR-FT
PEEREBNETREAQFN
2EMRBAF)REERERAMIE
HEBRRGE  MEERE{CELE
MERGR - R ERRTAR
nF - REFERN - BEHHEL
ALE=BB+FAAEZt+NER
K HTEHEX2aANEBLE -
REBE-F2+LF+-H=Z+—8
L&EE  EHHEERABLIEENR
LM EE TN ERES &
BE¥9,996,0007T °

Connected Transactions (continued)

3.

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected
transactions™ under the Listing Rules. Details of those continuing
connected transactions which are subject to the reporting
requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules are
summarised as follows:

(@ Tank storage agreements and facilities management
agreements
On 1 January 2000, China Resaurces Petroleum Company
Limited (*CRPC™), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company after being acquired in late 2009, entered
into a tank storage agreement with each of China Resources
{Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH"), the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and Art Bill Investment
Limited (“ABIL"), a subsidiary of CRH, for the usage of
storage capacity at the Chai Wan and Tsing Yi cil depots,
respectively. As the qil depots were crucial to the operation
of CRPC, the tank storage agreements were entcred for a
term of 21 years commencing on 1 January 2000, During the
year, CRPC ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company upon
completion of its disposal on 29 June 2007. The aggregate
starage fee payable by CRPC to CRH and ABIL, before the
disposal of CRPC, was HK$70,800,000 for the year ended 31
December 2007.

On 1 |lanuary 2000, each of CRH and ABIL entered into a
facilities management agreement with China Fesources
Petrochems (Group} Company Limited (“CRPG"), which
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company after
being acquired in late zooco, in respect of the provision
of management services by CRPG for the Chai Wan and
Tsing Yi oil depots, respectively. The facilities management
agreements also have a term of 21 years. During the year,
CRPG ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company upon
completion of its disposal on 29 june 2007. For the year
ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate management fee
payable by CRH and ABIL to CRPG, before its disposal, was
HK$9,996,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(b}
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Facilities management agreement and godown management
agreement

On 28 June zoo06, Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown Company
Limited {*Yuen Fat”}, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, renewed a facilities management agreement with
CRH, the controlling shareholder of the Company, for the
provision of management services by Yuen Fat on the port
premises and facilities developed on a site owned by CRH in
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat had
paid CRH a monthly fee of HK$1,000,000 in consideration
for the right to keep, as the service fee payable by CRH to
Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all cargo handling fees,
service charges and other payments collected by Yuen Fat
at its own expenses from independent third parties. This
agreement was for a term of 3 years commencing on 1 July
2006.

On 28 June 2006, Yuen Fat also renewed a godown
management agreement with Dragon Rider Development
Limited (“DRDL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH, for the
management, by Yuen Fat, of a godown owned by DRDL in
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat had
paid DRDL a monthly fee of HK$2,000,000 in consideration
for the right to keep, as the service fee payable by DRDL to
Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all licence fees and other
payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses from
independent third parties. This agreement has the same
term as the above facilities management agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate receipt
of service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat
amounted to MK$227,283,000 while the aggregate payment
of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to
HK$36.,000,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(<)

Foodstuff agreements

On 3 June 2005, Ng Fung Hong, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the foodstuff agreements
for a term ended on 31 December 2007 with each of the
connected persons below in relation to the sale andfor
purchase of foodstuff products with these parties. Under
the foodstuff agreements, Ng Fung Hong and each of
these connected persons agreed that in the event that
any member of the Ng Fung Hong group and any of these
connected persons or any of its associates entered into a
foodstuff transaction, such transaction would be conducted
on normal commercial terms. The prices paid or received
by any member of the Ng Fung Hong group to or from the
ahove parties or their associates would either be at market
prices or at prices no less favourable to the Ng Fung Hong
group than those available to or from independent third
parties. Details of these transactions for the year ended 31
December 2007 are summarised below.

BEZEELF
+ZAZ+—AL
ERMTEEE
Amount of transactions

MEAL B & ZHME for the year ended
Connected person Relationship Nature of transactions 31 December 2007
(%)
(HK$)
TETREREHOAR HARLST HHELT49% BERM 46,277,000
Shanghai Foodstuff rERR AR Purchase of foodstuff
Import & Export Corp. 49% shareholder of a
subsidiary of Ng Fung Hong
FHEERER LT BAHAET—RMHERF20% BEREM 615,723,000
Cerpilfood Development WA AR R ERE A Purchase of foodstuff
Company Limited an associate of a 20%
: shareholder of a subsidiary
of Ng Fung Hong
PRk ER LT BERET  RHBE2FlL0% HEEM 147,179,000
China National Fisheries Corp. IR = Sale of foodstuff
49% shareholder of a BEAEm Nil

subsidiary of Ng Fung Hong

Purchase of foodstuff
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Connected Transactions (continued}
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Textile agreement

On 3 June 2005, China Resources Textiles (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRT"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the textile agreement with China
Resources National Corporation ("CRNC™), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, for a term ended on 31
December 2007. Under the textile agreement, CRT and CRNC
agreed that in the event that any member of the CRT group
and any member of the CRNC group (other than the Group}
entered into a transaction of textile related merchandises,
such transaction would be conducted on normal commercial
terms, The prices received by any member of the CRT group
from any member of the CRNC group would be either at
market prices or at prices no less favourable to CRT or
its subsidiaries than those available from independent
third parties. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the
aggregate amount of sale of textile related merchandises to
the CRNC group amounted to HK$31,000.

Tenancy agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the tenancy
agreement with CRNC, the ultimate holding company of
the Company, for a term ended on 31 December 2007. The
CRNC group is a conglomerate with significant property
investments including residential, commercial and industrial
premises in Hong Kong and the PRC. Under the tenancy
agreement, the Company and CRNC agreed that in the
event that any member of the Company entered inte a
lease arrangement with any member of the CRNC group
(other than the Group), the terms of the lease would be
on normal commercial terms and the lease term would not
exceed 31 December 2007. The rent, management fees and
other charges set by any member of the CRNC group to any
member of the Group would be either at market prices or at
prices no less favourable to the Group than those available
from independent third parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate
amount of rental, management fees and other related
charges payable by the Group to the CRNC group was
HK$55,446,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
(/)  Decoration agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the decoration
agreement with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia™), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of CRNC, for a term ended on
31 December zo07. Under the decoration agreement, the
Company and Uconia agreed that in the eveni that any
member of the Company granted a contract to ary member
of the Uconia group or any of its associates for the design,
decoration and furnishing of the Group’s offices, retail
outlets and investment properties, the services rendered
would be charged on normal commercial terms as described
in the decoration agreement. The prices charged by Uconia
or its subsidiaries or any of their associates to any member
of the Group would either be at market prices or at prices
no less favourable to the Group than those avai.able from
independent third parties. For the year ended 31 December
2007, the aggregate amount charged by the Uconia group
or any of its associates totalled HK$21,212,000.

The directors engaged the auditors of the Company/subsidiary
to perform certain agreed procedures in respect of continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The procedires were
performed solely to assist the directors of the Company to
evaluate in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules
whether, the above continuing connected transactions:

(a)  had received the approval of the directors of the Campany;

{b) had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

{¢¢ had been entered into in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve proavision of
goods or services by the Group; and

(d) had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2007.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

The auditors of the Company/subsidiary have reported their factual
findings on these procedures to the directors that the samples the
auditors selected were in agreement in respect of items {a) and (b)
above. In respect of item (c), the samples selected were, where
applicable, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group. In
respect of item {d), the auditors compared the aggregate amount
for each type of connected transactions as set out in section 3(a)
to 3(N above and reported that such aggregate amounts had
not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the year ended 31
December 2007.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions, on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(€ in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasanable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Subsidiaries and Associates
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2007 are set out on pages 177 to 18s.

Transactions in Securities of the Company and Subsidiaries
Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the
Company are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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FEEFRUER Major Customers and Suppliers

REFA - FEERALERHREGZGBEER During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate purchases

FERTAEFERIEZBEXBELRLRAEE attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers and the aggregate

BEBHREXEE 7 30% turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30% of the Group’s total value of purchases and total turnover,

BB Auditors
g« MEETESHMITHRERRERATF S Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming
fEmEiR - WEEBREET - annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment.

AR On behalf of the Board

B CHEN SHULIN

HHFEEE Managing Director

& —2BENEZA=1+-—H Hong Kong, 31 March 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kang with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group™) set out on pages 97 to 18s,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 December 2007, and the consclidated profit and loss account, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of principal
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audi; evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud cr error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers interial control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s Internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2008
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meBER
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

BRE_FFLEFEF+-AZ+—BLILFEF For the year ended 31 December 2007

—eeLs “FFA

|
‘ 2007 2006
' BiE BYERT ENEEL
| Notes HKS million HK$ million
(&)
(Restated)
g3t bl - ek g Continuing operations
MR Turnover 6 51,513 40,337
HER A Cost of sales (38,950) (30,401)
EF Gross profit 12,563 9,936
H b A Other income 7 1,668 1,237
HERSHEHAR Selling and distribution expenses (8,033) (6,238)
—METHES General and administrative expenses (2.419) (2,021
B AL A Finance costs 8 (480) (386)
RS R B REUFH  Share of net results of associates 353 333
BB AT R Profit before taxation 3,652 2,861
W Taxation 13 (764) (562)
RIREEz BB Profit for the year from continuing
REFEFERT operations 9 2,888 2,209
[BY:Jd 4 Jok 8. 3 Discontinued operation
DRI 2 G Profit for the year from discontinued
ZAFEERT operation 9.15 2,582 1,026
NEEHF Profit for the year 5,470 3,325
pag Wi Attributable to:
AR RS Shareholders of the Company 4,961 2,776
BT AT Minority interests 509 549
5,470 3,325
SHRERN Earnings per share 16
RO ERDEILEE  From continuing and discontinued operations
ZETB
XK Basic HKS2.09 HK$1.19
Y Diluted HKS2.07 HK$1.17
RS 2% From continuing operations
B Basic HKS1.00 HK$0.76
#H Diluted HKSo.99 HK$0.75
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HeEAERER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R-FFLEF=AR=+—F At 31 December 2007

—HELF

v =
¥
CRERE!

2007 2006
FitsE HAYEET RLAEE
Notes HKS million EEK$ million
R0 ] Non-current assets
EERE Fixed assets
—{eE R - Investment properties 17 7,299 5,899
—IEaRAMBRIERY - Interests in leasehold land held
dohbAERE for own use under operating leases 17 2,488 1,650
— R by - e — Qther property, plant and equipment
R 17 20,089 15,191
= E Goodwill 18 6,133 3.481
HitmpERE Other intangible assets 19 81 13
REBHORZ M Interests in assaciates 21 L4647 1,153
atied Available for sale investments 22 46 53
AR EAE] Prepayments 23 205 467
BIERERE Deferred taxation assets 29 119 123
37,907 28,430
RHEE Current assets
e Stocks 24 9,080 6,725
RS RH W ERIE Trade and other receivables 25 5,241 5,366
STEEBMTR Derivative financial instruments 26 - 163
BEAEE: Taxation recoverable 20 14
EIEIRRITATE Pledged bank deposits 38 -
BEBRITER Cash and bank balances 8,405 7,056
22,784 19,324
FBHEM Current liabilities
RE R ZE Trade and other payables 27 (16,565) (12,554}
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 26 (& (167}
BHASEER Short term loans 28a (4.944) (4.597)
FEA IR Taxation payable (268) {208)
(21,781) (17,926}
mBRERE Net current assets 1,003 1,398
ARESRRBDAE MK Total assets less current liabilities 38,910 29,828
FRBAM Non-current liabilities
EHAf Long term liabilities 28b (7.503) (3.840)
EEpEamn Deferred taxation liabilities 29 (1,243} {(1,023)
30,164 24,965
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

—eets

BTN

2007 2006
Fifat YT R AEMEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
BRERHE Capital and reserves

il Share capital 30 2,385 2,358
R Reserves 3 20,486 16,783

AL RHEM GRS Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 22,871 19,141
SEBREEE Minority interests 7,293 5,824
e Total equity 30,164 24,965

it Chen Shulin
B Director ITFE Director
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EERER

BALANCE SHEET

RIFELF+=-HF=1—H At 31 December 2007

—RRLE

2007 2006
ok BYENT RMEER
Notes HKS$ million HJE($ miltion
ERBRE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets
—RAYE — Investment properties 17 51 51
—H g - #HaR - Other property, plant and equipment
PEL 17 5 5
RHBOR R Interests in subsidiaries 20 15,317 16,684
15,373 16,740
RERE Current assets
BoEA AR Trade and other receivables 25 1,758 1,079
RERROTBET Cash and bank balances 1,579 622
3,337 1,701
RE AR Current liabilities
H 5 R AR IR Trade and other payables 27 (125) {71
FEBLIR Taxation payable 3) (1)
{128) (72)
REREFEHE Net current assets 3,209 1,629
BEREHADAN Total assets less current liabilities 18,582 18,369
FREAM Non-current liabilities
EAEBEA G Deferred taxation liabitities 29 8 (8)
18,574 18,361
BAxER S Capital and reserves
e Share capital 30 2,385 2,358
e Reserves 31 16,189 16,003
18,574 18,361

B Chen Shulin
H#HF Director
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FRIRETMNER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BE _SPtET_A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2007

—RetE

2007 2006
Witk BYEET AMTEL
Notes HKS million HK$ million
gEgEHoRsRA Cash flows from operating activities
HEGeRE Cash generated from operations 32A 5,680 5,388
BAEEFIEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (164) (208)
BB SR Chinese Mainland income tax paid (457) (332)
BTN Overseas profit tax paid {1) 2
REEHERER Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded - 7
RERPEMMATER Chinese Mainland income tax refunded 3 2
BEEN2HBERATHE Net cash from operating activities 5,061 4,855
RAZHZRETR Cash flows from investing activities
HEETAEMBZIE  Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 116 184
it €8 ] {148 5 P IR IR Proceeds from disposal of available for
sale investments 3 1
S EAFRE Dividends received from associates 67 206
S AMEIeE AR S Dividends received from available
for sale investments 4 7
£ e FILE, Interest received 295 269
BABERE Purchase of fixed assets (6,152) (3.127)
BEAeES Prepayment for rental deposits 36) {57)
BEEIESRN Prepayments on purchase of interests in
SRBHLH leasehold tand held for own use under
EHEzRAR operating leases - s6)
RITFERIEREHRT Bank deposits pledged for short term
| Bz bank loans (28) -
HEHB LT ER Disposal of subsidiaries/business (net of
(HRiurHeR cash and cash equivalent disposed of}
REEHE) 328 3,036 1,970
S EBS AR AR FOR Proceeds from disposal of associates 16 8
WRBH BB, 2% Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
(R RERS 2 RE {net of cash and cash equivalents
RIBREME) acquired) 32C (984) (583}
BIEH A Bl R Purchase of additional interests
in subsidiaries {2,400) (17}
AREETIHZRRSE Net cash used in investing activities {6,063) {1,195)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

—RWLE

— - Lo

SETX
2007 2006
AEENT AEEOET
o 7 o HKS million P'!!<$ 'T'"”O[“
RETDH AR Cash flows from financing activities
SAFRRE Dividends paid (2,401) (3,265)
EACL AN Dividends paid to minority
28 shareholders of subsidiaries (48) {156)
EARARANER Finance lease charges paid - (1)
EFE Interest paid (478) (786)
B[ITH RIS HATE  Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 250 1,107
AR RHME MRS Proceeds from bank and other borrowings
P 15,254 10,110
R TRAMER Repayment of bank and other borrowings (11,148) (11,245)
mERGHNZ Capital elements of finance lease
B ER i3 rental payment (1) 7
PERFEE Contribution from minority shareholders 772 633
REENELE/ Net cash from/(used in} financing actlvities
(BRA)Z2ERE 2,200 (3,610)
FRERRSEENN Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,198 50
ER@ERspE Effect on foreign exchange rate changes 146 8o
BR—A—EBZH&R Cash and cash equivalents at 1 january
HEEH 7,056 6,926
Bt+=-A=+-HBz Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
RERESEE 8,400 7,056
RERREFELER Analysis of the balances of cash and
294 cash equivalents
BeRPITERE Cash and bank balances 8,405 7,056
RITEX Bank overdrafts (s) -
8,400 7,056
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GeRREREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_FEHEF+_B=1—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2007

g7
i1 B!
FAARRALEH Minarity Total
Equity atiributable to sharehotders of the Company interests equity
| I T - S
! L L
Employee
BE RN GENR shmbmed  ERER ERER GEdEH
Share Share  Valuation compensation Hedge  Exchange  Retained &kt
apital  premiem reserve teserve Teserve reserve profits Total
E¥EEn BMONL BEEEBNL AMRAR AYRERn AMEERL BNBET MRER IMBEL AYEER
HES million  HK$ millon  HK$ milion  HK$ milion  HKSmillion  HK§ milion  HX$ milion  HES milion  HKS milion  HKS million
RZSSTF-R-B Altlanuary 2007 238 12,606 6 168 (t13) 506 3510 19,141 B2 24965
FE Exchange rate adjustments - - - - - B9 - 89 5 1264
BREELFEE  Share of reserves in associates - - 3 - - 2 2 Y - 1
GEEIEAR Surplus on revaluation of properties - - 3 - - - - ] - 3
ERFASRTA  Recognition of changes in far value
AhRERE of derivative fnandial instruments - - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
HEERAEES  Nebincome recogeised directly in equity
WAZE - - 6 - 1 501 12 a0 10 1325
REETERATHAY Release dus to disposal of available for
sale investments - - f) - - - - {2) - @)
BHERBLTGHY  Release due to disposal of subsidiaries - - - - () ) - ) - @®)
RUEBBLATHY  Release due to disposal of associates - - - - - {4) - {4) - )
BsngEi Prefit attributable 1o shareholders - - - - - - 4,961 5,961 509 5,470
FERDREAUTHE Total tecognised income and expenses
for the year - - § - g T T T .7/ o4 68t
e E Shares issued at premium 7 24 - - - - - 1 - 21
BERORA Shares issue expenses - [ - - - - - () - ()
YBHRA Aoquisition of subsidiries - - - - - - - - m I
KIRMEARRE  Purchase of additional interest in
sudsidiaries - - - - - - - - (546) (346)
Be Dividends - - - - - - () fam) 68 (atg)
SERETE Contribution from minceity shaveholders - - - - - - - - 784 78
RRAREEH Employee share opticn benefits - - - 4 - - - § - 4
i 4 § 4 9 8ot 150 3730 1469 5:16%
Rog9RrE At 31 December 2007
+zRzt-1 238 128y 10 ve) 6 3y 6082 7203 306
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CONSOCLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

7
EREE A
E0REREEAY Minarity Tota!
Equity attributable to sharehelders of the Company intesests equity
L1 LS
HRRA
Employee SRR
Bx  ROER BEHE sharebased BR  ERNR  ENER R
Shre  Share  Valuafion compensaion  Wamant  Hedge Exchange  Retained &t
qpiel  premum  reseve  msee resee  reserve  fesenve profits Total
EERE; A45EL EMEET B%EERN IMGET ARANT AMAET AEEND AMEEL BYEES A¥EES
Rx$ million  HKS milion HK$ millon  HKS million HES milion  HKS million HKS million  HKS million  HK$ miflian HXS miEion HES million
RoERAE-A-B At tlanuary 2006 227w 4 18 18 j 88 1B Bns 4 298
gzz2 Exchange rate adjustments - - - - - - 33 - 163 126 9
AELAN L MASE Fair velue adiustment on
available for sale investments - - 2 - - - - - 2 - 2
AEASHTA  Recognition of changes in
DhRARE fair value on derivative
financial instruments - - - - - (14} - - (1) - (1)
HEEREEEY  Netincomeflexpense)
YA/ (HE)SE  recognised directly in equity - - 2 - - () 33 - 351 126 P
REBITESBIA  Release upon settlement of
il e derivative finandial
instruments - - - - - {2 - - 7] - )]
it | Release due to disposal of
i b subsidiaries - - - - - - (tg) - (&) - &)
BRREHH Profit attributable to
shareholders - - - - - - -k urh 9 3325
REERBIEE  Total recogaised income and
=i expenses for the year - - 2 - - {16) 38 1776 3,080 75 3,755
FERFTRE Shares issued ai gremium 1 983 - - - - - - 18 - 1108
BIRARE Shares issue expenses - i - - - - - - ] - f)
e AN Aequisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - . . - 53 5
BENGLTEE  Purchase of additiona interest
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - ) @
nEfgRa) Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - {119) (ug)
BEZESEHTA  Relesse upon repayment of
i h compound finarcial
instruments - - - - (168) - - 148 - - -
B Ofvidends - - - - - - - G2k G fsH Gax
R Contribution from minority
sharehalders - - - - - - - - - t33 633
FARRERH Emplayee share option benefits - - - 3 - - - - 3 i 3
125 982 ? n (168) (1) 38 {39 945 W7 2,022
Rog¥RE At 31 December 2006
+-A=1-A 1358 12,606 6 168 - n 506 350wl sf2 6
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1.

D

General

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company as at 31 December 2007 to be China Resources National
Corporation (*CRNC”), a company established in the Chinese
Mainland. The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the annual report.

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food
processing and distribution, textile and property investment
businesses. The principal activities of the Company are property
investment and investment holding, and the activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on pages 177 to
185,

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the
principal accounting policies as set out in note 2, the financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standard, amendment
and interpretations

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued
a number of new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS™ and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRS™)
that are effective or available for early adoption for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2007. In the current year, the Group has
adopted the following standard, amendment and interpretations,
which are relevant to the Group’s operations for the financial year
ended 31 December 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7
HKFRS Interpretation 7

Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 “Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies”

HKFRS Interpretation 8 Scope of HKFRS 2
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HKFRS Interpretation 9

HKFRS Interpretation 10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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@

<

General (cortinued)

Adoption of new and revised accounting standard, amendment
and interpretations (continued)

The adoption of the above standard, amendment and
interpretations had no material effects on the Group’s and the
Company’s results and financial position and did not result
in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. No
prior year adjustment has been made. However, as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 7 and HKAS 1 (Amendment), certain
information presented in prior year under the requirements
of HKAS 32 has been removed and the relevant comparative
information based on the reguirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment)
and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first time in t1e current
year,

Accounting standards, amendment and interpretations that are not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new ard revised
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate F nancial
Statements

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellation

Business Combinations

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HKFRS Interpretation 11

Operating Segments
HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HKFRS Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKFRS interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HKFRS Interpretation 14  HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Fuiding
Requirements and their Interaction

The directors of the Company anticipate that the agplication
of these standards, amendment or interpretations will have no
material impact on the Group’s results of operations anc financial
position.

Principal Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
financial statements of the Company and of all its direct and
indirect subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group’s interests
in associates on the basis set out in note 2C below. The results
of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during
the year are included from the effective date of acqu sition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All material
intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.
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NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital
or controls more than half of the voting power, or where the
Company controls the composition of its board of directors or
equivalent governing body. in the Company’s balance sheet,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable,

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee. The results and assets
and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in assoclates are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate. In the consolidated balance sheet,
interests in associates are stated at the Group's share of net assets
of the associates plus goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into
effect the policy on goodwill in note 2D.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired subsidiary/ associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested for impairment at the reporting date and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
and is not reversed in a subsequent period. On subsequent
disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued) :

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 continues
to be recognised as a deduction from equity and sho.ld not be
recognised in the consotlidated profit and loss account when
the Group disposes of all or past of the business to which that
goodwill relates or when a cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acguisit:ons on or
after 1 January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
or an associate represents the excess of the Group's interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of
acquisition over the cost of acquisition. Discount on acquisition
of a subsidiary is recognised immediately in the consolidated
profit and loss account. A discount on acquisition arising on
an acquisition of an associate is included as income in the
determination of the Groups' share of results of associate in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’s financial assets are classified as "financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss", “available-for-sale investments”,
“loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity Investments”
dependent on the purpose for which the assets are acquired.
Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabilit es at fair
value through profit or loss” and financial liabilities other than
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {other
financial liabilities). Details of classifications and measurements
are as follows:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or toss are
initially measured at fair value and have two sub-categories:
financial assets held for trading and those designated at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. At
each balance sheet date subseguent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the profit and loss account in the period in which
they arise.
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2.
E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b

(o)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market which are initially measured at fair value.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group's management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are initially recognised in the halance sheet
at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are
stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(c}

(d}

Held-to-maturity investments (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective irterest rate
computed on initial recognition.

Objective evidence of impairment includes default
or delinquency in interest or principal payrments and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with the operations of the investment.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impa rment toss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the profit and
loss account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-cur-ent assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within twelve months from the balance sheet date.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities,
that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be measured reliably.
These available for sale investments are stated at cost
less impairment losses. Apart from this, availabe for sale
investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
directly in equity, until the financial asset is dispoased of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the equity
investment is impaired.
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E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(d

{e)

0

Available for sale investments fcontinued)

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with the operations of the investment.

The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
investment and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset, Such impairment losses will not
reverse in subsequent periods. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such equity investments is recognised
directly in equity.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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2.

F

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets

@

(b}

(c)

investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
in respect of which construction work has been completed
and which are held for long term rental andfor for capital
appreciation. Such properties are carried in the balance
sheet at their fair value. Changes in fair value of investment
properties are recognised directly in the profi: and loss
account in the period in which they arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, rent or administrative purposes
or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalised and other relevant expenses directly zttributable
to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are trarsferred to
the appropriate category of fixed assets when available for
use.

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and
construction in progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)

{c)

(@)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off
the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method. The residual values and
useful tives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 20 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over

the unexpired term of
lease, whichever is shorter

- Vessels

- Cold storage facilities

- Plant and machinery

- Furniture and equipment
- Motor vehicles

5 to 15 years
10 years

5 to 25 years
3 to 10 years
3 to 8 years

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of other property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit and loss
account,

Leased assets

iy Assets acquired under finance leases
Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards incident to ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases and are accounted for as
if purchased whereby an amount equivalent to cost
is recorded as fixed assets and as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided in accordance
with the Group’s depreciation policy. Payments to the
lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged to the profit
and loss account.
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2.
F

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)

(@)

{e)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)  Operating lease charges
All leases which do not transfer substant ally all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating
leases (net of any benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease)
is recognised in the profit and loss account on a
straight line basis over the periods of the respective
leases except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the user’s
benefit.

The cost of acquiring tand held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property.

impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal ard external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that fixed assets other than
investment properties are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated
and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the profit and loss accolnt.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to “he revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment toss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the profit and loss account in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on the straight
line method over their useful lives with amortisation commences
when the asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives of
other intangible assets with definite useful lives are as follows:
Brand names 10 to 20 years
Patent royalty 50 years
These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each
balance sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts. Where indication of impairment exists,
an impairment loss is charged to profit and loss to reduce the
assets to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount.
Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance sheet
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred
taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred taxation
is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.
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Principal Accounting Policies (coninued)

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the
case of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out
basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling
price less all further costs of production and the relatad costs of
marketing, selling and distribution.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at
each balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading
financial assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified
as effective hedging instruments. The Group has entered into two
types of hedge relationships, including fair value hedges and cash
flow hedges.

(@  Fair value hedges
Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value
of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge atcounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments and
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised
in the profit and loss in the periods in whick fair value
changas arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

(b) Cash flow hedges
Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows
that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting,
the effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the
changes in fair value of hedging instruments is initially
recognised in equity and transferred to the profit and loss
account when the hedged item affects the profit and loss
account. The ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the profit and loss account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the associated gains or losses are removed
from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are
classified as held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken
directly to the profit and loss account.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business and
net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss

account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders' rights to receive payment have been established.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reirburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder™) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payrient when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in consclidated profit
and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and
charged to the profit and loss account in the year incurred,
except for costs that are directly attributable to the zcquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
that assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and
debt securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each indiviclual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies} are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary iteris that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
profit and less account in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principat Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's
exchange reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account in the peried which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before
1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items
of the acquirer and reported using the historical cost prevailing at
the date of acquisition.

Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and
other participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for
shares of the Company in accordance with the Company’s share
option scheme. The fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-
based compensation reserve).
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Critical Accounting Estimates

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually
by independent valuer on market value for existing use basis or
calculated on the net rental income and allowing for raversionary
income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditicns existing
at the balance sheet date and appropriate capitalisatian rates of
the net rental income. These estimates are regularly compared to
actual market data and transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2D. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amounts have
been determined either based on value-in-use calculations or the
cash-generating units’ fair value less costs to sell. Details of the
calculation are disclosed in Note 18.

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 2007, a deferred tax asset of HK$28 million
(2006: HK$54 million) in relation to unused tax .osses has
been recognised in the Group's balance sheet. The recognition
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future assessable profits or taxable temporary differer ces will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future assessable
profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of

deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recogrised in the’

profit and loss account in the period such a reversal ta<es places.

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner,

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2007, the Group's maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due "o failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financizl assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies
{continued}

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable on trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, bank balances and
derivative financial instruments entered into.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk on trade
and other receivables as its customer bases are widely spread
across diverse industries and geographical locations. For its refail
businesses and some transactions in its beverage businesses,
sales of products are made in cash. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that open account customers are financially viable
and with an appropriate credit history. To minimise its credit risk
exposure, credit evaluations are performed for the determination
and approval of credit limits granted and other monitoring
procedures are implemented to ensure that follow-up actions are
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, regular reviews on
aging and recoverability are performed to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts,

In respect of bank deposits and transactions involving derivative
financial instruments, the Group has procedures and policies in
place to ensure they are made to counterparties with acceptable
credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set
out in note 35, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk,

Liquidity risk

The Group’s manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash
and the availability of adequate committed credit facilities to
fund capital, prospective investment opportunities, debt servicing
obligations and dividend payments. Management also closely
monitors the Group’s rolling forecast and actual cash flows and
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Other than short term loans, long term liabilities and derivative
financial instruments, all other financial liabilities of the Group are
non-interest bearing. The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
interest bearing financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (inctuding interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. For derivative instruments settled on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash (inftow)/outflow is presented. Whereas they
require gross settlement, the undiscounted gross (inflow)/outflow is
presented.
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2007
Fixed rate borrowings
Other loans

Yariable rate borrowings
Trust receipts and overdrafts
Bank loans

Finance lease

Derivatives - et settlement
Interest rate swaps

2006
Fixed rate barmowings
Other loans

Variable rate bormowings
Finance lease
Bank loans

Derivatives - net settlement
Interest rate swaps

0l future contracts - inflow
Oil future contracts - outflow

Derivatives - gross seftlement

Foreign currency forward contracts

- inflow
- putflow

4. Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies
(continued)
B Liquidity risk (continued)

ga-58 gRMEE GHEEL 2]
DRARE PREE REinne
Mare than Hore than Total
K2 —£R 1 year but 2 year but RATE contractual KEf
Effective Within 1 less than tess than More than undiscounted Camying
Interest year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
e A¥ENT BEERL AYANT AMANR ALERn AMERT
% HXS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
- 7 37 66 3 151 151
5.64 Pl - - - 29 2%
452 5401 899 7223 ] 13,527 12,267
1053 2 - - - 5 .
5432 899 7233 4 13,558 12,296
5,449 936 7.289 3] 13,709 12,47
- 4 - - - 4 4
- 3 35 82 - 130 130
148 3 1 - - 4 3
415 5353 126 3,965 4 9,448 8,704
5,356 127 3.965 4 9,452 8.707
5,369 162 4,047 4 9.582 8537
- n - - - 2 16
- (161) - - - (161) (161)
- 151 - - - 151 151
12 - - - 12 6
- {1,505) - - - (t.505) (L505)
- 1,503 - - - 1503 1503
{2) - - - (2) {2)
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NCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its long
term and short term borrowings, Borrowings at fixed and floating
interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk respectively. To cover interest rate
risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in a preferred fixedf
floating interest rate mix and review regularly. To avoid undue
concentration of risk, the Group entered into interest rate swaps
to mitigate current and future corporate profitability from interest
rate volatility.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liabaility
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the
whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all
other variabtes were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2007 would decreasefincrease by HK$122
million (2006: decreasefincrease by HK$88 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a
hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used
for reference purpose and should not be considered a projection
of the future profits or losses.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong
and have their local currencies as their functional currencies.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk,
Approximately 6.26% of the Group’s sales are demoninated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group entity
making the sale, whilst almost g7% of costs are denominated in
the group entity’s respective functional currencies.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
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N MEERREEREAERBEE @

T ®¥ERG®

AEE Renminhi
=TT US Dollars
PR HK Dollars

4.

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies
{continued}
Currency risk (continued)

—RL+E —EERE
o S 2007 2006
RE % gz | am
Assets Liabilities Acsets " Liabilities
EMERT AMEET SMEEL BEEAR

HES million HKS million HK$ million H!(EB million

165 34 183 106
1,513 1,670 3.733 1,367
74 156 39 -

TREMBESARG TR E R FEE
MR - (EBRBEERHIET - Binix
AMEXEZERTEAEAMBERE B
2B EDRBESN - JHERBES
WESEUIMNEHENEYIRE - FERK
AEEMR MRBRINEERN;REE -
ETRY  EHEEEBEEARSAE
5% - A REMEEE EEN - HERE
ARBEES% - HEA MRS E S
BHFERARNEE -

AE¥ Renminbi

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase or decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi.
(Under the linked exchange rate system, the financial impact on
exchange difference between Hong Kong doilar and US dollar
will be immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.} The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and acljusts their
translation at year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and other
equity where the Hong Kong dollars strengthens 5% against
Renminbi. For a 5% weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and other equity.

BB ER (BR)
RREUFINER

Effect on profit/(loss) after
tax and retained profits

Sl EER
BREEE
Effect on other
companents of equity

~RBEFE ZREARF —R®EF  IFTAF
2007 2006 2007 { 2006
EMEET B¥EEL BYEER SB¥AET

HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million HI‘E($ million

(28) (@) - -

Lo DR A L RE R RR TR E
7T REBEAT BRI FEBN
2 - FREERBUSTRAESE - TE
iR e R R A2k IR A TR A -

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumplions con a
hypothetical situation. in reality, market exchange rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used
for reference purpose and should not be considered a projection
of the future profits or losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 28, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the raise of bank borrowings or the redemption
of existing debt.

Turnover and Segment Information

—TEAF

“ROLF
. 2007 2006
' BAMENT AMEET
| HKS million HK$ million .
BEREEELSRRMNALR Turnover represents sales
AAREEZ2H8; BEXH by the Company and its
THEE 2ZWA subsidiaries to outside
customers and comprises
revenue from:
HEER Sales of goods 59,431 63,235
PRELARKS RO A Rendering of services
and others 2,324 1,854
HalA Rental income 367 345
rp<tES Sales of properties 1 3
62,123 65,437
SRR K Discontinued cperation (10,610) (25,100)
51,513 40,337
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N, HEERSEIHEG 6. Turnover and Segment Information (cortinued)
TEREAE — RHEBHS Primary reporting format — business segments
: - - Co S
RAREN
L3
(281
BE-¥8)
.13 0 #R8%  Petroleun
i7" ZEX  and Related
food RKE &4 Produds
Processing FReE  HERE Continuing  Distribution
" e and {#  bvestment  Investments B#  Operations (Discontinued &t

Retail  Beverage  Distribution Textile Propety  and Others  Elimination Tolal  Operatior) Total
H¥EEr  A¥EET  ANEEL  RMEEL  IMEEn  AMEIT BMEET  BWEER I¥ER)  AMEER
HK§ milion ~ HKS milion KX milion  RK$milion  H{Smilion  HK§ millon  HK$ milion  HKS milion  HKS$ million  HK$ million
- - - - B F— . R -
BE-RQLET=H For the year ended
=1-ALEE 31 December 2007

3171 TURNOVER
HiMpE Extemal sales 25,643 13,279 7132 &7 36 - - 51513 16,61 62,123
2EHHE Irter-segment sales* 5 5 149 - 3 - {268) - - -
&t Total 26,008 13,304 738 473 375 - (268) 51513 10,61 62,13
FEER Segment result 7 8y 682 265 830 @) 359 n 3,846
E g LN Unallocated corporate (94) - (54)
T EXDenses
FREA interest income byl 1 3
HECH TR Profit on disposal of
LRMEEN discontinued operation - 238 2399
B Finance costs (z8c) (23) (503}
BEBBRTEE  Share of nel results of
22 assaciates - - 9 () - 315 33 - 31
Fge| Taxation (76) (s8) {822}
AEERH Prafit for the year 2888 2582 5470
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TREE
il N 1
SREHRE

FEOER
AESENAT]
B

RARERE
Al

AEAR

BHER

e

FHERNE
A

el E

HERH

L35
hRESN

FEaE
iR

As 2l 31 December
2007
ASSETS
Segment assets
Intterests in assoclates
Defered tasation
assets
Taxation recoverable
Linallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated tatal
assels

LIABILITIES
Segment liablities
Taxation payable
Defemed taxation
liabilities
Unallocated corparate
liabilities

Consalidated tofal
Gabilities

OTHER
INFORMATION
Capital expenditure

Depreciation and
amortisation
Impairment loss
regognised

HYEET
HK$ mitlion

" 4]
Refall  Beverage
BMEET

HK$ million

15,757 3,272
71593 12,409

2,129 6,234

5% 630

7 55

6.

ARNI
it 2
Food
Processing
and
Distribution
BNHET
HKS million

5,126
190

1209

542

150

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

LARER

Egay

(28

g5258)

ERBE  Pelroleom

288 and Related

3 I &% Poduds

REAE  HERE Continuing ~ Distribution
R Iovestment  lovestments HE  Opentions (Discontinoed ait
Tetle  Property  and Others  Elimination Totdl  Operation} Totat
B¥EET  BMEED  BMEED  BMEET  BMBET  BMEER  EMEEC
HKS milion ~ HKS milion  HKS milion  HKS milion  HKS milion  HKS million  HKS$ million
5,640 7.406 1 57,242 - 57,262
40 - 1217 1447 - 1447
119 - 19
20 - 20
1,863 - 1,963
60,591 - 60,601
2,058 7 § 23,650 - 23,650
268 - 268
1243 - 1,243
5:366 - 5,366
30,527 - o527
746 277 2 9,936 2 0,932
197 & 2 1,58 % 1610
| - 6 n - i}

WROUMAMLA China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 ¥

127




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. HRWESETEGD 6. Turnover and Segment Information (cortinued)
FEPRESE — BRRBEI Primary reporting format — business segments {continued)
GAREH
EgEY
(281
FR2ER)
#2001 HAEY  Petrolems
i1 B8 and Related
Food RRR &% Produds
Processing aeE  ENER Continuing  Distribution
™ EE and &M bvestment  lovestments Operations  (Piscontinued ait
Retzil  Beverage Distribution Tetle  Property  and Others Totdl  Operation) Tobal
F¥RET  BRAET  4MAER  R¥EET  AMEED  #MEED E¥EET EMEE  S¥EED
HX§ milion  HKS milkon  HKS milion  KK$ milion  K{S milin  HK$ milion HKS millior ~ HKS milion ~ HKS million
BEZQYAETCZA Forthe year ended
Zt-AiER 31 December 2006
i1 TURNOVER
Hihge External sales 20,363 0,432 5,769 1453 320 - 033 2,10 85,437
RRgEE Inier-segment sales* 5 3 373 - % - - - -
&it Toial w0418 9455 6092 4453 39 - £0,337 25,100 £5437
L Segment result 47 753 559 169 5 ) 2726 84 1390
FEAENDT Unallocated corporat
i eXpenses (0] - (90)
HagA Interest income " 0 m
HeEtRoE Profit on disposal of
RBHRER discontinued operation 3 42 517
159 Finance ¢osts (386) (t8) (154}
ABAL: Share of et resufts of
058 assadiates - - 1 {3) - B 5] - m
)] Taxation (582) {t2) (644)
EEFER Profit for the year 2299 1,0:6 1335
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Primary reporting format - business segments (continued)

FAREN

ERRE
(B8
.1 kg3
RENT {ikBY  Petmoleum
1.5 2K and Related
Food 5 1A &% Produts
Processing EXaY  RiRR Continuing  Bistribution
" te and G Investment  Investments H¥  Operations (Discontinued att
Retal  Beverage Distribution Textle  Property and Others  Elimination Total  Operation) Total
HYAEL  AROER  AMAEn AMEER  AMEER  AYAEL  AMEEn  AMEET  G¥EER AY¥EER
Bk$ million ~ HK§ million  HKS milion  HX§ million  HKS milion  HKS milion  HKS milion  HKS millon  HK$ million  HKS millon
R-B¥AE As at 31 December
t-A=1-H 2006
BE ASSETS
ABEE Segment assels 11,107 13,703 399 4793 6752 5% 549 WH 1558
RRERFZEE Interests in associates - - 186 4 - 923 1153 - 1,153
REREAE Defered taxation
assets 13 - 123
AEEH Taxation recoverable 1 2 i
FIABHAA Unallocated comporete
13 assels 1,266 - 1,266
GARESE Consalidated total
o5t 43,473 378 87,754
o1 | LIARIITIES
il Segment [iabilties 5,528 5,024 1154 1,605 134 4 14849 2190 17,039
ERKR Tasation payable 166 2 08
LRERRG Deferred taxation
[iabiities 1,003 20 1023
FIARY Unallocated corparate
EH:1 fiabilities 4,519 - 459
GaRaRE Consolidated total
liabifities 0537 2,52 2,78
RUER OTHER
[NFORMATION
- E325 Capital expenditure 1,714 1784 u§ 852 165 1 1724 216 3940
FEREY Depreciation and
amortisation 547 553 144 182 § 1 143t 127 1558
HEERE impairzent loss
3= recognised 2 3 - 4 - - % - %
* BBREHEE MR ER MR IR R * Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates
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NOTES TOTI-TE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N HRERSEIISED 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
RERHSHE - REBHS Secondary reporting format - geographical segments
B it HizgR
HFH Chinese Other =110
Hong Kong Mainland Countries Total
BMEET BEREL E%EET HBYEERL
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million |
BLE-9RLEF Turnover for the year
+=-B=1+—-8 ended 31 December
I EEERE 2007 17,331 41,434 3,358 62,123
R-VSSLF As at 31 December
+=A=+-H 2007
PRAE Segment assets 12,082 43,966 1,194 57,242
FOOHARE Additions to segment
assets 127 9,717 88 9,932
BiL—R®9~F Turnover for the year
+=H=+-H ended 31 December
IHFEENRSE 2006 23,441 18,786 3,210 65,437
R-S|XEF As at 31 December
+=A=+-8 2006
TEAE Segment assets 13,182 29,888 2,128 45,198
RESAARE Additions to segment
assets 161 3,676 103 3,940
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Income

Other income includes the
following:
Continuing operations
Dividends from unlisted
available for sale
investments
Interest income
Valuation gain on
investment properties
Fair value gain on
derivative financial
instruments
Profit on disposal of
substdiaries/business
Profit on disposal of
interests in associates

Discontinued operation

Dividends from unlisted
available for sale
investments

interest income

Valuation gain on
investment properties

Profit on disposal of
fixed assets

—ZEERE-

2007 2006
BYaRT AMEERL
HKS million HK% miltion

3 4
278 243
567 526

98 108
- 35
78 1
1 3
13 30
- 2
- 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AL BBAE 8. Finance Caosts
ZRELE TETARE
2007 2006
AMEE T AEEET
HKS million H<% million
g pid ek £ Continuing operations
B AR #9F) 2 Interests on finance leases - 1
HRDFREHMES Interests on bank loans and
BITERREAERFE other loans wholly
repayahle within five years 469 373
BERAFAERINREZ Interests on other foans not
HEXRFE wholly repayable
within five years - 5
BAXH Financing charges 11 10
480 389
A ABEREERAERALZ Less: Amount capitalised
B EAEE in cost of qualifying
assets* - 3)
480 386
=F:Jd ii-Jrk 2. ] Discontinued operation
HARTFAEHNR Interests on bank loans and
HITEREEMERTE other loans wholly
repayable within five years 18 65
BEZH Financing charges 5 3
23 68
503 454
. AX{LEBEIHRDESABAENEAR * The amount capitalised represents the borrowing cost of loans which are
AR K8 FERL TR o borrowed specifically for the purpose of abtaining the qualifying assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit For the Year

Profit for the year has been

arrived at after charging:
Continuing operations
Auditors’ remuneration
Staff costs (including
directors’ emotuments)
Depreciation
- Owned assets
— Assets held under
finance leases
Impairment loss recognised
on fixed assets (included
in general and
administrative expenses)
Impairment loss recognised
on other intangible assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses)
Amortisation of other
intangible assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses)
Operating leases charges on
land and buildings*
Cost of goods sold
Loss on disposal of
fixed assets

Discontinued operation
Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments)
Depreciation
— Owned assets
— Assets held under
finance leases
Amortisaticn of other
intangible assets
{(included in general and
administrative expenses)
Operating leases charges on
land and buildings
Cost of goods sold
Loss on disposal of
fixed assets

—ewts
2007
EMERR

HKS million

21

4,481

1,574

20

4

1,459
38,618

29

63

22

19
10,108

—EEaE !

— TSN .
2006

BEBEERT

HK$ million

23
3,449

1,411

24

16

1,198
30,109

232

104

15

46
23,641
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

h. FTEEBRRD

9. Profit For the Year (continued)

-
~b P -
IEER

—RRtE
2007 2006
BEEET A% EEIT
HKS million HIK$ mitlion
Wk And after crediting:
BAEB 2R Continuing operations
HeWAEH Gross rental income 366 344
W AEREE Less: Related aut-goings (33) (33)
BEBATRR Net rental income 333 311
EAILBE ¥R Discontinued operation
HEWATHE Gross rental income 1 1
PR el Less: Related out-goings - -
HEWAGE Net rental income 1 1
* EREAAHSAER 1B R (ZFTRE: * including contingent rent of HK$231 million (2006: HK$196 riillion).
106 BEIT) °
+. O0ElE 10. Directors’ Emoluments
=Y 1 R LEERE
2007 2006
BYEEMT A TET
HKS million HE$ million
Mk Fees 1.84 112
BAFE R Basic salaries and allowances 12.89 13.19
N R Provident fund contributions 1.09 1.15
BT Bonus paid 5.67 4.01
21.49 19.47
BARRAR RE U 2K Share-based payment - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| +. TIBEEi®um 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
ne b:dic]. [
) _Fees o _Othe_r Emolumentsr S o
BE¥E

RER  LMEER mt 1 St

Basic Provident H)

Salaries and Fund SR CH) 2006

“RPLE 2007 Allowances  Contributions  Bonus paid: Total Total

B¥OEL  R¥EEL  A%EER  #%EEn BMEER  AMAER

j € J:5] Name of director HKS million  HK$ milion  HK$ million  HK$ miion  HK$ million  HK$ million”
R Song Lin 0.08 1.84 0.2} 1.07 3.22 .04
BB Chen Shutia 0.08 175 0.10 1.01 2.94 2.69
E8E Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 0.08 251 0.28 0.58 3.45 1.26
T Wang Qun 0.08 1.29 0.08 1.68 313 1.90
B Lau Pak Shing 0.08 2.99 0.3 0.77 4.17 3.96
B Kwong Man Him 0.08 2.51 0.07 0.56 3.22 2.97
EE Qiao Shibo 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.45
HER Yan Biao 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.48
-3 Jiang Wei 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.05
FhniE Wang Shuaiting 0,08 - - - 0.08 0.04
HBE Xie Shengxi 0.05 - - - 0.05 0.05
HYR Ou Wenmin 0.03 - - - 0.03 -
B Chan Po Fun, Peter 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.14
HAE Houang Tai Ninh 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.14
FRE Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.14
237814 Cheng Mo Chi 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.14
RER Benard Charnwut Chan 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.01
[F ke Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.01
&t Total 1.84 12.89 1.09 5.67 2149 -
ZRRAF 2006 112 1319 115 401 - 19.47
1 AR ENTE BB - BAALT 1 The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating
FRAERRATRRHBELRE - results, individual performance and comparable market statistics during

both years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T HABEHEL 11. Five Highest Paid Employees
FERRMBSHERISENL(ZFEN The five highest paid emplayees during the year included four
M) #EE - FEEHR LMt - & (2006: four) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out
B ZFFRE: —EBHERMR in note 10 above. The details of the remunerations paid to the
WX zBEFE0T - other one (2006: one) highest paid employees are follows:
L S = 1 topxg
2007 2006
HEMEWT HAEBEET
HKS million HE($ million
EXFERER Basic salaries and allowances 1.45 1.20
LmSHR Provident fund contributions - -
EAFEL Bonus paid 3.66 2.60
LARR 15 FE R4 K Share-based payment - -
5.11 3.80
H—E(ZREXRE  —{)REHEMAT The emoluments of this one (2006: one) highest paid ndividuals
THIEE - were within the following bands:
]
AR
) No. of persons o
I et L 2t IEERE
| Pk e HK$ 2007 ;{ 2006
|
| 3,500,001 — 4,000,000 3,500,001 — 4,600,000 - 1
| 5,000,001 — 5,500,000 5,000,001 — 5,500,000 1 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Staff Provident Fund

Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from these of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The amount of
contributions is based on a specified percentage of the basic
salary of employees and any forfeited contributions in respect of
unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s
contributions.

2007 2006
BWENR EMEET
HKS million HK$ million

Group contributions to staff
provident fund 33 35

B2 MR Forfeited cantributions utilised - -
RiRSBaRMBR2ZRIE Amount charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 33 15
s A B 2 SE UL R Un-utilised forfeited
contributions - -
Z FEA B Chinese Mainland

AREETERBEESAHRAMAER
HEBMAEENEREZRKRNEN
K8 - AEEREZ R ME THSE
HOEOER  (FAEMESR - FEBE
SR Bl —THE R S E R -

ABETNtEMMEABNERSE
ERPIOBAOEREIEREE 3T BT
(ZHFAREF - BM268887T) °

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account
in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese
Mainland amounted to approximately HK$334 million (z006:
HK$268 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+=.88 13. Taxation
) i “eetE  IEFAE
2007 2006
BN EE T r%;#t' SBT
HKS million HK$ million
BTG LR Continuing operations
FEMBIE Current taxation

HH Hong Kong 145 129
P ER Chinese Mainland 505 337
ikl Overseas - 1
650 467

BEBE Deferred taxation
e Hong Kong 97 73
P E R Chinese Mainland 17 22
764 562

CHEILRE .- Discontinued operation
FEEHA Current taxation

58 Hong Kong 58 84
R E A Chinese Mainland - 1
A Overseas 2 1
6o 86

IREEBE Deferred taxation
B Hong Kong (2) (4)
58 82
822 644

BEREMSHTEBRENEE 2 (G ERHE
FliEEB RB17.5% ZBBRNE © 17.5%) 5
oo BB L B2 B REE
HWEBREREGH ESEANEE -8
SRARES AR BABHE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits for the year. Chinese Mainland
income tax has been provided for based on the estimated
assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax laws
applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland. Overseas
taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the rsspective
jurisdictions.
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13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Taxation (continued)

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China promulgated
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax {the “New Law™) by Order No.63 of the President of the
People’s Republic of China. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law, The
New Law and Implementation Regulations will change the tax rate
to 25% from 1 January 2008 with certain transitional arrangement.
The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the respective periods when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate as follows:

—eetE  -ETTAE
2007 2006
BEEERT ANETEL
HKS million HK$ million
BRElAIRF( TEIEESRE QT Profit before taxation
< HEEFE) (excluding share of net
results of associates) 5,939 3,636
EBE175%(ZBFNF D 17.0%) Calculated at a taxation rate
HHzWE of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 1,039 636

HiFZEHERETRAREZ S

Effect of different taxation rates
in other jurisdictions 95 107

AR Z WA Income not subject to taxation (461) (213)
TrIBR 2 = Expenses not deductible

for taxation purposes 174 45
FERARRFRERER S B Utilisation of previously

unrecognised tax losses (53) €3]
FHEZZHE Tax loss not recognised 233 192
EEL(B)BBEE Underprovision/(overprovision)

on taxation in previous year 25 (14)
H PR R R BIE () Income earning companies

exempted from taxation (note) (230) (78)
AR Taxation charge 822 644

Bitk : @ P AR ENMBRRREET
Bipn e MR R - SO R A
SRR -

Note: The Group's subsidiaries operating in the Chinese Mainland are eligible
for certain tax holidays or concessions and were exempted from Chinese
Mainland income taxes for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THRE 14. Dividends
' a S N
2007 } 2006
AYEET Kiliod=g-
HKS million I'EK$ million
HTEHEEAREmS - FE Additional final dividend paid for
BMNREARERE the previous year as a result
of exercise of share options 1 1
“EECFNERETHREER 2007 interim dividend paid of
EimiE ot —BEARE HK$0.15 (2006: HK$0.14)
¥ o.147T) per ordinary share 357 328
ZEBFMEESEP SRS 2007 special interim dividend
BRI 0.607T paid of HK$0.60 (2006: HK$1)
ZETRE %) per ordinary share 1,427 2,356
ZET-HEMERE R RSN 2007 proposed final dividend of
ERRAEE 0 (ZBERE HK$0.30 (2006: HK$0.26)
B¥o.267T) per ordinary share 716 616
2,501 3,301
ERRFRIR _EENF=ZA=T—E817 At the meeting hetd on 31 March 2008 the directors proposed final
MER L EERIERIRSSRTEAR dividend of HK$0.30 (2006: HK$0.26) per ordinary share. This
B¥ 030t (ZFTNF  #¥o26iT) ° proposed dividend, which is calculated on the Compary’s number
BRERSDEAAARBITEEEEEE of ordinary shares as at the date of the board mee-ing, is not
e SRR ST E - R ER B ERE recagnised as a liability in these financial statements. The total
BHENRARBE - FEEUBREMR dividends paid by the Company, including the final cividend for
FEHALREMANREEECEE-FF the year 2006, amounting to HK$2,401 million (2006: HK%$32,265
ANEENEHRE - BESEE 40088 mitlion) are reflected in the current year financial staternents.
TT{ZBENE 3265 8EL) ©
+EH.CRIEE 2K 15. Discontinued operation

RE-FFCLFANAE - $2F2xMHUE
SREEE DB L EERMRABRE
oS HEETREE -

The Company completed the disposal of its petraleum and
related products distribution business at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$4 billion at the end of June 2007 to an
independent third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S'i'ATEMENTS

TH.EEEER 2 H¥ 0 15. Discontinued operation (continued)
EEBRRMED RIS REFa RN The results of the discontinued operation included in the
T consolidated profit and loss account are set out below:
—eRtE SERRE
2007 2006
AYMHET ANHET
HKS million HK$ million
AR E WA 2 kiR R Profit for the year from
discontinued operation
Wik Revenue 10,750 25,796
o Expenses (10,509} (24,688)
FRECAIE R Profit before taxation 241 1,108
IR Taxation (58) {82)
B fiig T Profit after taxation 183 1,026
B AR 7 FrRRF Profit on disposal of
discontinued operation 2,399 -
2,582 1,026
FEFHA SR Profit for the year attributable to:
FN B H R Shareholders of the Company 2,582 1,002
DEALEELS Minority interests - 24
2,582 1,026
LESKRIHEERER I AEFA Net assets of discontinued
operation disposed of 1,600 -
ERLEEMB 2R Cash flows from discontinued
operation
BEEWHrREGRARHE Net cash from operating
activities 67 1,034
EEEBZASHEAN/(RE)3EE Net cash from/(used in)
investing activities 13 (237)
BEEHzHAESRA(RD)PE Net cash from/{used in)
financing activities 64 (304)
BRERE Net cash flows 144 493

CELBEREREUERZ BELBH

RAEEHAME=1+_L8RE -

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
discontinued operation at the date of disposal are disclosed in

note 32B.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THRERET 16. Earnings Per Share
N e Y
2007 2006
AMENRT BEMEAL
HKS million HKS million
RHXSEEER LI BE Y For continuing and
discontinued operations
EREAEEHET TR The calculation of the basic
THIBREH and diluted earnings per
share is based on the
following data:
B Earnings
ARG HSRESENN Profit attributable to
AR FIRRE B HT shareholders of the
Company for the
purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 4,961 2,776
BfTEr AR FmEE a2 Interest saving on exercise of
convertible honds - 50
ARG SREEAMNN Profit attributable to
AR TARE ST shareholders of the
Company for the
purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 4,961 2,826
ZERtE CEERTF
2007 2006
fiig 4=] Number of shares
AU EERERRTE Weighted average number of
HiERARME TS ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 2,374,697,717  2,325.474.383
HEERER 2 BERIRE Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
~BRAeHE - Share aptions 20,615,831 36,205,744
— AT AR ¥ - Convertible bonds - 49,148,795
RBLAGtH G B H & T M Weighted average number of
BB METIO8 ordinary shares for the

purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 2,395,313,548 2,410,828,922
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+AREGRER () 16. Earnings Per Share (continued)
bt 2 2t ZETREF
2007 2006
BYEEET ABEEEIL
HKS million HK$ million
FAEE ¥R For continuing operations
TFRREFRBEERTTRE The calculation of the basic and
TEIEERAEH diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:
25 Eamnings
FELSHESREART 4 Profit attributable to
by Y Ay g shareholders of the Company
for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 4,961 2,776
A Less:
AL RS RIS 2 DR R B R Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company
from discontinued operation (2,582) (1,002)
RS ESRERBD R EHTIES2IE Profit attributable to
Z AR TIRERE(EEF shareholders of the Company
for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share from
continuing operations 2,379 1,774
B 17 o] AR iy 2 i B AL Interest saving on exercise of
convertible bonds - 50
AR ESREERH Profit attributable to
HEREERY shareholders of the Company
AR e AR T RE & 3 F for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations 2,379 1,824

SREFZAN L GRETRTAMGTH R
EXFRRE—B -

EREEESER

BECRILEE 2 BEMESHZQRMR
HREEEMAEE 22T L ( - BEAS
#: B AR R LNFFHINT
BEXZHNREREIRAZHGYE -2
BIMBR 2 ENERETBRAASR
B 1o (ZEERNE  FREY 043
) ERLERERrEBNSREERN
ABREE Lo ( ZFENE - SREY

0.427C) ®

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings per share.

For discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation is
HK$1.09 per share (2006: HK$0.43 per share) and diluted eamnings
per share for discentinued operation is HK$1.08 per share
(2006: HK$0.42 per share), based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company from the discontinued operation of
HK%2,582 million (2006: HK$1,002 million) and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T+t ERiTE 17. Fixed Assets
Rtfa# - HBRIERH
Other property, plant and equipment
AR
KIERERN
B3t 5 e
Interests in )80
leasehold BERE
land held Plant,
for own HE®F  machinery
BRyAK  useunder  Buildings  and other
Investment  operating held for fixed P &t
properties leases own use assets  Sub-total Tatal
BNEET ABEEL BYEERL AMBEL AMEEL A%aExn
HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ miltion
.40 | The Group
HASEE Cost or valuation
R-B%,~5-A-8 At 1 January 2006 5,402 2,391 5,680 15,291 20,971 28,765
BRER Exchange difference 23 4 196 499 695 764
i 1) WG g 11 - BN Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business - 34 136 295 43t 465
HEHBAR/ R EL Relating to disposat of
subsidiaries/business - (198) (153} (1,238) {1,391) {1,589)
W Additions 97 65 470 2,495 2,965 1,127
P Disposals (g0) (4) (66) {570) (636) (730)
B¥oE Reclassifications (61) (14) 400 {328} 72 (3)
BERS Adjustment on valuation 528 - - - - 528
RoBEAE+=HA=+-B At 31 December 2006 and
B-®¥+%-A-A 1 January 2007 5,899 2,320 6,663 16,444 23,107 31,326
53k ] Exchange difference 57 106 454 1,100 1,554 1,717
BRHMRL R/ EBHEA Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business - 363 322 628 950 1,313
HEMRNE/ E R Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business (28) (208) {154) {597) (751) 687)
i3 Additions 288 166 439 5,262 5,701 6,155
i Disposals (16) @) {47 (580} (627) (650)
BY98 Reclassifications 532 88 1,047 {1,691 (645) (24)
BiHER Adjustment on valuation 567 - 3 - 3 570
R-BRtE+-Az=+—8 At 31 December 2007 7,299 2,828 8,727 20,566 29,293 39,420
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T BREEAED 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
| Rt - BRRERH
| ) 7 ~ Other property, plant and equipment
‘ REEA
HERER
s} b -
Interests in EREED
leasehold BERE
{and held Plant,

for own BEA&S  machinery

BRRAWE  useunder  Buildings  and other
Investment  operating held for fixed hif &
properties leases own use assets  Sub-total Total
AMTET ANEEN AYEEn BYOErL A%O98n A%EER
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ mitltion  HK$ million

Rt REHE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
R-F2,F—H-E At 1 January 2006 - 331 1,130 5,867 6,997 7,328
ERER Exchange difference - 7 48 231 279 286
HEMRAT/ ER%EY Relating to disposal of
subsidiariesfbusiness - {19} {52) (205) (347) (366)
AFERE Charge for the year - 54 241 1,232 1,473 1,527
HERD Wiitten back on disposals - {1 (s8) (451) (509) (510)
R BEEH Impairment loss recognised - - 9 15 24 24
BENaE Reclassifications - (2} {1) - (1) 3)
RZFBNF+-A=+—B At 31 December 2006 and
k-22+F-F-H 1 January 2007 - 370 1,317 6,599 7.916 8,286
EXER Exchange difference - 13 107 492 599 612
AR/ E R Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business - (92) {47) (330} G377} (469}
REENE Charge for the year - 53 271 1,277 1,548 1,601
HERD Written back on disposals - (2) {30) (450) {480) (482)
CRE 2 HERH Impairment loss recognised - - 1 19 20 20
EFSE Reclassifications - (2) {3) {19) {22) {24)
RZER+E+_-RA=+—H Al 31 December 2007 - 340 1,616 7,588 9,204 9,544
RmFE Net book values
RoFELF+-A=+—0 At 31 December 2007 7,299 2,488 7,111 12,978 20,089 29,876
RIBERE+ZA=Z+—A At 31 December 2006 5,899 1,950 5,346 9,845 15,191 23,040
BToE XTI BE - Representing assets stated:
R At cost - 2,828 8,727 20,566 20,293 32,121
BoSRLFHERE At 2007 professional valuation 7,299 - - - - 7,299
7.299 2,828 8,727 20,566 29,293 39,420
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T+ BEIE 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
Hips BREDRHE
Other property, plant and equipment
Bk HihRE
Investment b £ Other it att)
properties Buildings assets Sub-total Total'

A%BET AMBERT EMEEL EMEET  AMBEET
HK$ millicn ~ HK$ miltion  HK$ million  HK$ million LHI($ million :

F- X The Company

HA%EE Cost or valuation
R-RBAEF—H—H At 1 January 2006 51 2 20 22 73
iy Additions - - 1 1 1
HE Disposals - - )] (1} it

B-BRAE+T-B=+—8 At 31 December 2006 and

R-_B8t+E—A-8 1 January 2007 51 2 20 22 73
TE Additions - - 2 2 2
He Disposals - - () 6}] {1
WoBRtE+-HA=+—-B At 31 December 2007 51 2 21 23 24

SHFEREE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
RIRFAE-A-B At 1 January 2006 - - 17 17 17
FEEHB Charge for the year - - 1 1 1
HERD Written back on disposals - - (1) 0 ()

R-FR E--A=+—B At 31 December 2006

E-%%tF-H—-E and 1 January 2007 - - 17 17 17
EEREAE Charge for the year - 1 1 2 2
HERE Written back on disposals - - {) (1) (0
R-OFRHE+-A=+—R At 31 December 2007 - 1 17 18 18

RmAE Net book values
RoEBHE+-A=1+—E At 31 December 2007 51 1 4 5 56
BoBRSFTZA=T—H At 31 December 2006 51 2 3 5 56
BIBAARR RE Representing assets stated:
R At cost - 2 2 23 23
E-RRrEUREAE At 2007 professional valuation 51 - - - 51
51 2 21 23 74
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tt BERE 17. Fixed Assets (ontinued)
| —gets —EEAE
2007 2006,
‘ ENEER BERERL
HKS million HK$ million
Pt 2 IREESK Carrying amounts of the
property interests comprise:
FHW The Group
| it Hong Kong
' EREAZOEEZDE Properties held on long
| lease 4,060 4,001
‘ HRREORE 2 DE Properties held on
medium-term lease 3,063 2,357
‘ RERENRE O Properties held on short
| lease - 18
‘ TRALY Chinese Mainland
| mRIRGRE 2 Properties held on long
lease 2,870 1,196
BEPHRRGOFE 2 DE Properties held on
medium-term lease 6,696 5,516
RREEEASaE 2 Properties held on short
‘ lease 64 67
B Overseas
EREHROBR o ME Propetties held on
medium-term lease 15 9
BESRORE 2R Properties held on short
’ lease 30 31
16,898 13,195
EZLT The Company
E- Hong Kong
ErHRRAFE T DE Properties held on
medium-term lease 51 51
PEA Chinese Mainland
BRHZOGE S mE Properties held on
medium-term lease 1 2
52 53
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+t EEEE:

Gx

“EFLFET_AZTRAZEE
WEEABLERGEMBERT
AR DR AE - AE2ER
BYREAZEHEMEE -

ARERREEONSACETEE
W_FE¥t+F+-R=—F+—HZE
AEEEHIERC(CTTAF
E¥EET) -

EREEAEY 208 BT ZFEX
£ B¥saET)ZBERER
ERERE R BT 2 HHER
(ZZBRHF  RHERES 2068
Bk EBEREREAT)IZK
B -

HEP-HAEXBERELER
BRMHETEETR - S3E
LR EERE -

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

A

The investment properties have been valued at 31 December
2007 by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent
professional valuer. The valuation was arrved at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets held under finance
leases of the Group at 31 December 2007 amounsed to HK$1
million (2006: HK$1 mitlion).

Fixed assets with carrying amounts of HK$210 miliion {(2006:
HK$153 million) are pledged for short term loans in the
sum of HK$249 million (2006: short term loans of HK$206
million and long term loans of HK$8 million).

Impairment loss was made as a result of the outsourcing of
certain production processes in connection with the change
of production plan relating to cne of the manufacturing
businesses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Fixed Assets (continued)
E Other fixed assets mainly comprise canstruction in progress,
plant and machinery, leasehold improvements, vessels,
cold storage facilities, furniture and equipment and motor

vehicles.
HRIR MBRE ARPREN
Construction Plant and Leasehold Hit a8
in progress machirery improvements Others Total
AXEEr AMeEEr AY%EEn #A¥o¥En  BERER
HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million  HKS millien  HKS millionJ
31| The Group
B hE Cost or vatuation
BR-RZ,%—H—H At 1 January 2006 906 9,186 1,752 31447 15,291
EHEE Exchange difference 3 367 56 45 499
BRI A/ RIHEA Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business - 292 - 3 295
LEHEIRE SR AT Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business (431) {389} (64) (354) {1,238)
T8 Additions 1,583 328 27 313 2,495
e Bisposals (1) (311} (61) (197) (570)
BHSR Reclassifications {1,220) 716 28 148 (328)
BWoR|EANFE+T-FE=+—8 At 31 December 2006 and
R-BELE—A—H 1 January 2007 868 10,189 1,982 3,405 16,444
EXEH Exchange difference 79 815 124 B2 1,100
WepaR LR, RIS A Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business 157 424 - 47 628
HERARR,/ ERNEE Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business - 75) (35) (487) (597)
8 Additions 430 360 367 214 5,262
e Disposals - {337) (142) (101) {580)
B¥98 Reclassifications (2.886) 1,725 9 {539) (1.691)
R-BR+E+L-A=+—8 At 31 December 2007 2,539 13,101 2,305 2,621 20,566
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+E.BEAED 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
’ - C ERIR MERE ERAKES
Construction Plantand  Leasehold Rt &t
in progress machinery improvements Others Total

ANGEL AMAER A%EEL BXSEn  BYAER
HKS million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million

REWERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
R-ZBEAF—H—A At 1 January 2006 - 3,728 735 1,404 5,867
ERES Exchange difference - 183 25 23 3
HERBRR RRRETH Relating to disposal of
subsidiasies/business - (236) {42) (17 (295)
EEEHE Charge for the year - 687 231 314 1,232
HESD Wiitten back on disposals - (237) (39} (175) {451)
ERR RERE impairment loss recognised - 14 - 1 15
RrB2RFE+-R=+—H8 At 31 December 2006 and
kBB -R-8 1 January 2007 - 4,139 910 1,550 6,599
ExZ8 Exchange difference - 38 61 50 492
HEM AR/ RN Retating to disposal of
subsidiariesfbusiness - {62} (32) (236) (330
KEHHH Charge for the year - 766 277 234 1,277
R Written back on disposals - {250} {112) (88} (450)
PEZEESA Impairment loss recognised - 1% - 3 1
g iipay ] Reclassifications - 63 {26) (56) {19)
R-IBE+F+-A=1+—-E At 31 December 2007 - £,053 1,078 1457 7,588
EBmAHE Net book values
R-_FEtFE+_A=+—B At 31 December 2c07 2,539 8,048 1,227 1,164 12,978
BWZBEAE+TZE=1T—B At 31 December 2006 863 6,050 1,072 1,855 9,845
BTHIR 32 A& - Representing assets stated:
i At cost 2,539 13,101 2,305 2,621 20,566
BEoSFLEEREE At 2007 professional valuation - - - - -
2,539 13,101 2,305 2,621 20,566
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LAY 5 18. Goodwill
S -  awasRT
HK$ millien
y. ¥4 | The Group
RAE Cost
RIZETAEFE—-F—R At 1 January 2006 3,084
EHER Exchange difference 6
WREHB AR, Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 348
EmREE (M) Goodwill adjustments (Note) 69
BEHMERLaREES Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 8
HEMB LR, % Disposal of subsidiaries/business (34)
RIBRAE+-_HA=1+—B8BE At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 3,481
—E2ZF+¥—-H—H
ELER Exchange difference 203
ol NG T Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 498
BEHB AT RERS Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 1,955
RIBBL+FE+R=1+—8 At 31 December 2007 6,137
RitEEEE Accumulated impairment losses
R E—HA-B8 -+=ZB=+—H At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006
EoRRE+—A=Z+—H and 1 January 2007 -
REERERSRA Charge for the year 4
RI2BRtHE+ZHE+—R At 31 December 2007 4
BREE Carrying values
R-BB+F+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 2007 6,133
HIBERE+_A=+—8 At 31 December 2006 3,481

ity : AR RBEEERBRE-_FFAEE+ A
Zt-BuSEEEAMBLARTRES
FREERL A2 MR -

Note: The goodwill adjustments mainly represent the adjustment on the
carrying amounts and fair values of fixed assets of subsidiaries acquired
during the year ended 31 December 2005.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREREEITAKAEZRGELHN
(feaul) - KRZRERETIRAZRM
HESEHIHEME 2 BEHE - AT H
BRI O RARE -

26
AT
Ao T BB
EaE

18.

Goodwill (:ontinued)

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash
generating anit {*CGU™) representing an operating entity within
the business segments identified by the Group for the purpose
of segment reporting. A segment level summary of the goodwill
allocation is presented below:

—wets CERAS

2007 2006

BEEET BN RET

HKS million FX$ miltion

Retail 1,221 1,183
Beverage 4,440 1,842
Food Processing and Oistribution 384 369
Textile 88 87

U AR R B R E MM ER N
e REHUSERABRBERERAY
ZFHMBEREMEL 2 HHRERM -
B = F Rz R RAETE kRS
T - MAERSRRDRFRRES
DZTIAYTE -

EHRE IRz EBRE -

8
#5
BRRNIREHE
s

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on a value in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period and a discount rate of 10% per
annum. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates are stated below.

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

BERERE
M ibtte
BMER

Nominal growth
rzte beyond
the Initial cash
flow projections

(%)
Retail 10.0
Beverage £.0
Food Processing and Distribution 8.7
Textile 5.0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THhBEEBEEE 19. Other Intangible Assets
’ e
[k 4 AN
Brand Patent =18
names royalty Total
EWEER BYEERT BWEHET
HKS million HKS million HKS million
Py The Group
BEAS Cost
HZFERF—A—H At 1 January 2006 250 507 757
EHZE Exchange difference 8 2 10
HEMB AT, 24 Disposal of subsidiaries/
business (44) (509) {553)
WoEE+F—-F—H At 1 January 2007 214 - 214
FEH =% Exchange difference 14 - 14
Wi BER R 2 R], B Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business 11 - 11
A _FTLF+—A=+—R At 31 December 2007 239 - 239
RHBHERE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
BZETFE—H—H At t January 2006 97 30 127
ERER Exchange difference 4 - 4
FEFE B Charge for the year 16 15 31
SRR RESR Impairment loss recognised 1 - 1
HEHBAT,E5E Disposal of subsidiaries/
business (17) (45) (62)
R-2T+F—A—8 At 1 January 2007 101 - 101
ERL=E Exchange difference 7 - 7
AT Charge for the year 9 - 9
CRBZHERR Impairment loss recognised 41 - 41
B-FET+F+-A=+-A8 At 31 December 2007 158 - 158
EEFRE Net book values
R-ZEZT+FE+-F=Z+—H At 31 December 2007 81 - 81
BoZBESF+-A=4—8 At 31 December 2006 113 - 13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. R AR 2 20. Interests in Subsidiaries
T cewes lzmas
2007 i 2006
HMEES EMEET
HKS million HLI($ million
b N The Company
FE RS - BANE Unlisted shares, at cost 15,268 15,927
FEM R 515 IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 49 757
15,317 16,684
FEL BT D R IR BE R R B 747 The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, and bear
E{ZBTRE - FR4E) - interest rate at 7.47% p.a. (2006 4% p.a).
R-FFLE+-AZ+—BZEEHE Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2007 are
REAFFEHERE 177 AEF 18 set out on pages 177 to 185.
St R AT 2R 21. Interests in Associates
N - . . . - R
—ReLE EETOUE
2007 l 2006
HHEE BEEEL
HKS million HLK$ million
FEM The Group
JE ki Unlisted
FEIEBRESEE Share of ret liabilities (100) (379}
FEURE & A RIRIE Amounts due from associates 1,547 1,532
1,447 1,153
BEUCES & 0 R EUAS AR - FRIRITHIB The amounts due from associates are unsecured, Interast bearing
ERFHANSREARLERRHT =@ at prevailing market rate and are not repayable within the twelve
AAiE- months from the balance sheet date.
RIBB+F+-_A=+—BzTEBE Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December zoo7 are
LRIFEDERE1y7E 2 F1BsH - set out on pages 177 to 185,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- MBS AR 2R 21, Interests in Associates (continued)
TAEATREHREAT ZHMOMMBER The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
H associates is set out below:
—getE  —FEAE
2007 2006
HEERT HBEHEL
HKS million HK$ million
HESHE Total assets 43,543 39,892
AffieE Total liabilities (46,124) (44,917)
BRE Net liabilities (2,581) (5,025)
AEEEEBEDT] Group's share of net liabilities
BERE of associates (100) (379)
Yz Revenue 13,143 12,476
BEFRN Profit for the year 3471 3,392
FEMELBE LA REE Group's share of net results of
F- et associates for the year 353 333
Tt AR 22. Available for Sale Investments
—BeLF TBRTRE
2007 2006
ANEEIT EHABET
HKS million HK$ million
mm The Group
MBI E Non-current investments
HREE LA - RARE Unlisted shares in Hong Kong,
at cost 9 1
B A IE MRS - Unlisted shares in Chinese
RAERESRE Mainland, at cost less
impairment loss 37 42
46 53

LA T BRI LMARG - IRRAEER
BEHBZHER - AN WL HERN
BUHARZFAG - ABATRNETE
HoshfEE -

The above investments mainly represent investments in unlisted
equity shares and are measured at costs less impairment at each

balance sheet date. As there is no active market for trading, their

fair values cannot be ascertained reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tt RfARE 23. Prepayments
" 7 —petsE  TTA
2007 2006
AMaNT EYaBT
HKS million FK$ million
M The Group
AEEaREE-B—A—8 Tank storage service fees
prepaid - at 1 January 302 324
B RFARAERZHE Less: Amount recognised during
the year {11) (22)
BOHECREHBEZER Less: Disposal of discontinued
operation (291) -
- 302
HEeR&RE Rental deposits 236 200
B+t_RA=+—BHz&H% Balance at 31 December 236 502
B —FREAZ 8 Portion to be utilised within
one year 31 35
R —FEER 2 B Portion to be utilised after
one year 205 467
W+-—A=+—-B2&8%k Balance at 31 December 236 502
“tRFH 24. Stocks
- - T :
=t 3 St CEEAE
2007 2006
BYEET BEEEL
HKS million K$ million
b3 -1, The Group
SEME Propetties held for sale 145 146
FREr Raw materials 1,710 1,170
PRREBEMH Consumables and packing
materials 3,014 1,761
£ Work-in-progress 313 247
BIRR ab Finished goods 3,808 3,401
9,080 6,725
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. Trade and Other Receivables

*mm ERH
The Group The Company
—RRtLE —TTSE —RRtF -TTAF
2007 2006 2007 2006

HBYEMT EB¥EESL EBRENRxT E¥BE=R
HKS million HK$ million HKS million  HK$ million

EWEBED Trade receivables 1,676 2,661 - -
BOREMR Provision for doubtful debts (165) (149) - -
1,511 2,512 - -
H b FE RIE - Other receivables, deposits
BEeRBEFGRE and prepayments 3,698 2,817 14 37
FEW R 2 FIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,744 1,042
il egsdaNEgh- Al Amounts due from fellow
Ui YN B subsidiaries 11 12 - -
FEMES & A RIRRIA Amounts due from associates 21 25 - -
5241 5,366 1,758 1,079

FRE-—RIETEPUT 2EHY -

(F) BRI R

(2.} RTRiRtE

REYENBRESERR BRSO

7

The Group normally trades with its customers under the following
credit terms:

(@ cash upon delivery; and

(b) open credit within 60 days

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the

T balance sheet date:
—RetF ZETR
2007 2006
BRENT AREER
HKS million HK$ million
¥ -1 The Group
0—130K o - 30 days 1,000 1,874
31— 60K 31 - 60 days 207 357
61— g0k 61 - go days 108 120
> 90K > 90 days 196 161
1,511 2,512
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZHE 88 R HMEBRE D
AEMRETANR SRR BEWREIER

25. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The fair value of the Group's and the Company’s trade and

A MERARIERS - other receivables at balance sheet date was approxirate to the
corresponding carrying amount.
BERERZOY Movement in the provision for doubtful debts
—eetiF “TTAE
2007 2006
BUMTAET ENEBT
HKS million HK$ million
w—AhA—8 At 1 January 149 152
C R BER Impairment loss recognised 10 15
HSEREmITEER Amounts written off as
uncollectible (4 (25)
HEEERHE Impairment losses reversed (2) 6
W R F A 2 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 7 -
[EHEEH Exchange difference 5 1
W+—-—A=+-—8 At 31 December 165 149
i HR (B K R (B AR R Y B Aging of past due but not impaired
=t L Ac ke & TR
2007 ‘ 2006
BAYEET BMAER
HKS million HK$ million
—_— ab .
BHT230H Less than 30 days past due 166 155
BH31—60H 31 - 60 days past due 46 £9
#1E61—90R 61 — 90 days past due 51 57
#iHAgo B A - Over go days past due 47 50
310 311

RAREHY - TRAEOERRE  FRE
FIABIANES - MhifBf FI B R0 -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tASIEERIA 26. Derivative Financial Instruments

|
A mm Tmm
' , _ o B ) ~ The Group The Group ]
—eetE _—R®LFE ZEBRRE ZTTRE

2007 2007 2006 2006
WE b=k | A =)
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

HBYERART BYERxT BAMSERT BWAER
HKS million HKS million HK$ million  HK$ million

g ataRE 2 Derivatives under hedge

fHTH accounting
BEmBEH Cash flow hedge:
HM S 49 Oil futures contracts - - 109 118
SMEREISH Foreign currency forwards
contracts - 1 - -
FlEEEal Interest rate swaps - 3 - _
- 4 109 118
HufiET A Other derivatives
e Qil futures contracts - - 52 33
SMERERG N Foreign currency forwards
contracts - - 2 —
MR H Interest rate swaps - - - 16
- 4 163 167
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IAETESBRI R

RERBHF-FBREHY

RS RRAXATERANMERLS
B —RNARERLAEH LRI FE
HRfEROT2MERMEENBESRER
B = R 3 5 3 B B B BB A R (r] B B
& EEAMERENESE  ERHTES
R ERIERO R - ERNRAEE -

WA EN RSN D TE - RAHEAE
B RS ORNERRE - LITERFRE
REmaAHE -

NERESFET X - FERNNFR
PR BEARITREFTB(THBOR]) °

HtbfTE TR - FEHH
FEEFAFEEE - HEAHBOREH
FllLB 27 &2 H P 30% E50%HHIBORE B
WHBRTTRZFL(TUBOR]) ¢

RERERELZAZ+—H - TEEE
EEEAE L sooB BT 2N BEEAHE
RE&AMERZHEE - MESHER=
BRAFLEH -

26. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedge - Interest rate swap

All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest
amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are designated as cash
flow hedges in order to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure
resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The
interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur
simultaneously and the amount deferred in equity is re:ognised in
the profit and loss account over the period that the floating rate
interest payments on debt impact the profit and loss account.

The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is
determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves
at reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract.

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis and the floating
rate on the interest swaps is the Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate
(“HIBOR™).

Other derivatives — Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to improve its risk profile
by swapping part of its HIBOR based borrowing from HIBOR to
London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR™).

At 31 December 2006, the Group had interest rate swaps with
notional contract amounts of HK$1,500 million that matched the
maturity of the related borrowings, all these contracts were fully
settled in 2007.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SfATEMENTS

HRBRAMGEARE 27. Trade and Other Payables
Fmm AaH
The Group The Company .
ZR®RLF CZTTRF ZBRELE FTEREF
2007 2006 2007 2006

BWERRE BEEEx ABYWEART BERER
HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million

B SRR Trade payables 6,901 6,017 - -
RN R R TRR Other payables and accruals
%M 9,582 6,430 21 8
g Provisions - 71 - -
REATBiT B 0 BIRR TR Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 104 63
A REE Amounts due to fellow
] NG E] subsidiaries 56 57 - -
[i3p)e SN Eree] Amounts due to associates 26 19 - -
16,565 12,554 125 71
REHFENRNESBRZEBRSTE The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
T balance sheet date:
ot 2 2 af: —TEX
2007 2006
HA¥ENET HEEEHET
HKS million HK$ million
Amm The Group
0—30R 0 — 30 days 3,962 3,847
31— 60K 31 - 60 days 1,655 1,288
61— g0k 61 - go days 536 330
>g0K >90 days 748 552
6,901 6,017
FEEAREHANREREGBEANTEAER The fair value of the Group's and the Company’s trade and
A AERAREEES - other payables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHERHBER 28a. Short Term Loans
—RRtF CEEAF|
2007 2006,
BYENT A EET
HKS millicn If{K$ millionj{
= The Group
ANERERS Current portion
—~HHERRTERK - secured bank loans - 3
— S PRITER - unsecured bank loans 626 30
—H i EE AR - other unsecured loans - 9
—EHREBOAN — of long term obligations
under finance leases 1 2
EHRITRAMER - Short term bank and other
St i loans, trust receipts and
overdrafts
—HiEH - secured 272 206
— B - unsecured 4,045 4,747
4,944 4,997
St BHAEfI 28b. Long Term Liabilities
ot 1 5ot ZEERHE
2007 2006
AWML HEMEHET
HKS$ million HK$ miltion
EHEW The Group
ARAEANEZFTIER Secured bank loans repayable
RITH within 5 vears - 8
ARAFAMEZ BIER Unsecured bank loans repayable
HMITHRK within 5 vears 7,991 3,741
BANAENEMITE . Unsecured bank loans not
ERMRTER wholly repayable
within 5 years 4 6
ARAERMRZEGE Other unsecured loans repayable
EFRER within 5 years 103 58
ARAERNRZRAE Obligations under finance leases
DR repayable within 5 years 1 3
BARAERERNR Other unsecured loans not
H a3 T whally repayable
within 5 years 31 68
8,130 3,884
PR TREN A Frz ENERER (R Current portion included in
current liabilities (627) (44)
7,503 3,840
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St RMR e 28b. Long Term Liabilities (continued
—RRLE TTRRE
2007 2006

BYEER AEREBT

HKS million HK$ million
]| The Group
FEHR f 2 JEENERER {0 R A The non-current portion of

TERRfE long term liabilities are
repayable as follows:
RITEK Bank Loans
—F A FERER After 1 year, but within 2 years 655 1
MEULEERFRA After 2 years, but within 5 years 6,710 3,717
AEE After 5 years 4 4
HitE® Other Loans
—FLEERFA After 1 year, but within 2 years 69 64
MEAEERFR After 2 years, but within 5 years 34 53
TE#R After 5 years 31 -
BRB AR Obligations under finance leases
—FALERTH After 1 year, but within 2 years - 1
7,503 3.840

ZFB+F+—A=+=H - ZUEEE On 22 November 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
HBLFERRITEEFRRER/ together with 10 banks, signed a 5-year revolving credit/term
FHRUERRERE Y28 - ER=F syndicated loan facility of HK$3.2 billion. Together with ancther
BAREHINS A FHEEMBETE% 0 g5-year syndicated loan signed in 2006 of HK$3 billion, the
B AEEBHAMEREEIRAS aggregate amount of committed borrowing facilities available to
BAEBe2BT - MARKIGEHIBOR/ the Group becomes HK$6.2 billion. Both loan bear interest rate at
LIBORM8H 52 - R-BRLF+= HIBOR/LIBOR plus 28 basis point. As at 31 December 2007, a sum
BA=+—8 CPHREERET(= of HK$4.9 billion (2006: HK$1.7 billion) has been drawn down,
FENRE  AMpEmr) -
BERREERTEFNRZ RIERRT Under the terms of the agreements of the Group's unsecured bank
BRZBHEH - TRATSERME)S loans repayable within five years, China Resources (Holdings)
BAar{{EREM)ERTATRES Company Limited (“CRH™), a holding company, is required to
ERBIB L% FRIREZ2RGaER remain as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares
HEBFLABE—RARRZZG (T of the Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether
RERJFBEMB R RMERGERE directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company.

i) -
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SN BBAfon

ERELLEYE  ETBARBABNY
FRMER B2 F|HMHIBOR - LIBORKEH
HARSFTHEZNERF =REHES -

FEEZRERZABFEAELZER
2.40% E7.20% (ZFFARF : 3.90% F

4.95"/0) TE -

28b. Long Term Liabilities (continued)

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked
to HIBOR, LIBOR and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China respectively.

The effective annual interest rates en the Group’s floating rate
borrowings range from mainly 2.40% to 7.29%. {2006: from 3.90%
to 4.95%).

“HABERE 29. Deferred Taxation
FRELHARERAMZ2E(HE— The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior
BB E 7 AEHAN 0T to offsetting of balance within the same taxation jurisdiction)
recognised during the year is as follows:
B Hih &t
) ~ ) ~ Taxlosses o Others ) Total
CRRtE CBESE CRREE _FERF DIRGEE CRESE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HKS million  HKS million HKS millon  HK$ milion  HIKS millien  HK$ million
HMENT EMEEx B%ONR AYEEx  IMERR ] AMOBT
b3 4. | The Group
REEEEE Deferred taxation assets
R—F—H At 1 January 54 76 69 64 123 140
ERLBENR {Charged)/credited to
(1K) /26& consolidated profit and
loss account (22) (24) 12 5 {10) (16}
RS g Effect of change in tax rates 7) - - - (4] -
I b Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 9 - 9 -
EXEE Exchange rate adjustment 3 2 - 4 2
R+-A=+-8 At 31 December 28 54 9 69 119 123

B HEEMRHARBER R AE
FRERBAFPRA LR - AHBER
HEmMER - R-FB+ET A=+
B AR EEEREE L5y
BET(Z2FAFE  #%o02581) -
AR E R E T S BREFAEKR
REESHWALY  HEERERAE
RHIRZ Rz HBEREEY8E
BIT(ZBENE - E¥4808ET) °

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December
2007, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,357 million
(2006: HK$902 million) which is uncertain as to whether it can
be utilised to set off against future taxable Income. Out of this
amount, the unrecognised tax loss of HK$958 million (2006:
HK$480 million) will expire within 5 years.
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SHABEBE 29. Deferred Taxation (continued)
RTAEEGAREAMRDPERZIEL The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
HRARERSHERFEAZEE) consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the years

are as follows:
EERRIRK  EBERN ‘1
Revaluation Accelerated ‘
of investment tax il
property depreciation Total |
AXOEL ANTET BETET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ millionj
3 -1 ] The Group

R-_FE~F—H—H At 1 January 2006 726 225 951

B EEEME/(5TA) Charged/{credited) to consolidated
profit and toss account 95 (23) 72
R-RE E+-A=+-BR At 31 December 2006 and 821 202 1,023

—¥F¥t¥—-A—-H 1 January 2007

BESEERNR/(HA) Chargedf{credited) to consolidated
profit and loss account 99 3) 96
HRYBHBLR Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries - 145 145
FEHEMHBRR Relating to dispesal of subsidiaries ) (17) (21)
RoE2+EF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2007 916 327 1,243

FORZERERARMABRAEYDR £
Hb BB T LA R AL E A IRBIRTE -

building and other assets,

The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relates to the
accelerated tax depreciation of its investment property, land and
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=t RBE 30. Share Capitat
—owtkEF ZBENE
2007 _2006 )
KMHRA mE  REmE | @@
Number of Nominal  Number of ' Nominal
shares Value shares Value
ARl BMERR BER jEMaEr
million HKS million million  HK$ million
EE Authorised
EREEE¥ T Ordinary shares
TiEne of HK$1 each 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
RIS ERA Issued and fully paid
»n—HA—A At 1 January 2,358 2,358 2,233 2,233
TEEARE Exercise of share options 27 27 125 125
®wi+=R=+—8 At 31 December 2,385 2,385 2,358 2,358
() FLRBRUBEESD  FlREfHEY (a) The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of

FRBZERD BAREFQALER
(TERETDIL) « BRULVASD - ARIBEALQ ] —TR
ERN—BF_F-A=+-HELERYE
RAERABERESD - I AETH
AT BT -

BN _EFE-_F—A=1T-HRzZBR
AECEERE BB - —-F—-A
Z+—RAERK - FRFMERTAESER
SHESHBRIE ZEFCEBLHESY
BEFEEZEMRTRIFRTTESE(E
MEBRERZAL)  BFERZ EE
B ShiTHEERIFNTHEMR T ABE
EFtz M - S0 7 TR AR -
EB - HXEMD - JFEERRAMERN
(BRRESRIBEY ElAL) - ARERE
TBABHIERE - 2REZRBERD
A - ALRZUL - BETRABREE
BEABRA - TERFNESR{(HME
TERERDANEERFENHNBA AN
g8 -

RRBRE —ARENES 2 EPM Tk AME IR LR
RiEESRRANFEZBRART - WEAHM
Bz RRE T F AT -

promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives
of the Company by the participants (the “New scheme"). In
addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under
a share option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and
was terminated on 31 January 200z (the “Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002 and shall expire on 31 January 2012,
The board of directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible participants including any executive or non-executive
directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as
such), any discretionary object of a discretionary trust 2stablished
by any employee, executive or non-executive direciors of the
Group, any executives and employees, consultants, professional
and other advisors to the Group {or persons proposed to be
appointed as such), chief executive, substantial shareholder of
the Company, associated companies of the Group, associates
of director, chief executive and substantial shareholder of the
Company, and employees of substantial shareholder and where a
substantial shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries
of a substantial shareholder.

Share aptions are generally either fully vested or vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance
of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years ilmmediately
after the date of grant.
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=t. B&un 30. Share Capital continued)
B AT H 5 2 B AR AR Bh 518 1 8 Details of the movements of the share options granted under both
iz - share option schemes are summarised as follows:
WEANE =51 1.8, 1=
Number of share options S DAME
jidmt 2 5 at:3 REFE REEE RAFE REEE RoSRLE Estimated
—-A—-A B e g %8 t=R=t+-B fair value of
TEM CESd Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed HRTHE the share
RHAN Exercise  Qutstanding at during during during during  Outstanding at option
Date of grant Price 1/1f2007 the year the year' the year the year 31f12{2007 granted
L ART
HKS HKS
Eith
Old Scheme
20f06{2000 7-190 475,000 - 161,000 - - 314,000 -
2112000 7.080 945,000 - 132,000 - - 813,000 -
1,420,000 - 293,000 - - 1,127,000
EHY |
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.170 634,000 - 350,000 - - 284,000 -
05/03/2002 7350 3,365,000 - 2,716,000 - - 649,000 -
19fo4f2002 7.500 284,000 - 40,000 - - 244,000 -
02/08f2002 8.320 720,000 - 350,000 - - 370,000 -
24f01f2003 7.250 50,000 - 50,000 - - - -
14/04/2003 6.290 394,000 - 190,000 - - 204,000 -
01/08/2003 7.100 80,000 - 40,000 - - 40,000 -
08/10/2003 8.900 352,000 - 230,000 - - 122,000 -
14/01/2004 9.720 15,113,000 - 9,516,000 - 400,000 5,197,000 -
20f04{2004 5.890 2,892,000 - 2,052,000 - - 840,000 -
25f05/2004 §.150 4,154,000 - 2,438,000 - - 1,716,000 -
02f06/2004 9.550 600,000 - - - - 600,000 -
22f07{2004 9.800 160,000 - 50,000 - - 110,000 -
o4/10/2004 10.350 17,622,000 - 7,726,000 - - 9,896,000 -
17/01/2005 11.400 120,000 - 40,000 - - 80,000 -
22f07f2005 12.500 720,000 - 230,000 - 80,000 410,000 -
47,260,000 - 26,018,000 - 480,000 20,762,000
48,680,000 - 26,311,000 - 480,000 21,889,000
AIREFETHE
Exercisable at the
end of the year 18,831,000

gl (B
Weighted average

exereise price (HK$) 9.40 - 9.52 - 10.18 9.69
BRIESEATHNT - Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
.15 ¢
Old Scheme
& BEmployees 1,420,000 - 293,000 - - 1,127,000
bikrg o
New Scheme
# FDirectors 600,000 - - - - 600,000
& B Employees 43,175,000 - 23,182,000 - 480,000 19,513,000
Hib28EOther participants 3,485,000 - 2,836,000 - - 649,000
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=t BEen 30. Share Capital (continued)
BREHE PRBREL
Number of share options e nnBE
R-TERE REFE REER REFE RFEEE WZURERF Estimated
—R—8 il {8 ) &8 +—RA=+—8 fair value of
EE HEITE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed #RIE the share
EHAaH Exercise Qutstanding at during during during during Qutstanding at option
Date of grant Price 1/1/2006 the year the year* the year the year 31/12{2006 granted
el A%
HK$ HK$
. fig
0ld Scheme
20f06/2000 7.190 7,945,000 - 7,470,000 - - 475,000 -
21/11/2000 7.080 3,395,000 - 2,454,000 - - 945,000 -
11,344,000 - 9,924,000 - - 1,420,000
g |
New Scheme
o07/02/2002 7.170 14,514,000 - 13,880,000 - - 634,000 -
05/03/2002 7.350 11,486,000 - 8,121,000 - - 3,365,000 -
08/03/2002 7.500 780,000 - 780,000 - - - -
19f04/2002 7.400 3,650,000 - 3,366,000 - - 284,000 -
23f05{2002 8.000 44,000 - 44,000 - - - -
02/08/2002 8.320 3,834,000 - 2,454,000 - 660,000 720,000 -
o7/11/2002 7.700 1,752,000 - 1,752,000 - - - -
24J01/2003 7.250 578,000 - 528,000 - - 50,000 -
14f04/2003 6.290 4,216,000 - 3,822,000 - - 394,000 -
01/08/2003 7.100 660,000 - 580,000 - - 80,000 -
08/10/2003 8.900 1,661,000 - 1,220,000 - 89,000 352,000 -
02{12{2003 9.000 1,070,000 - 1,070,000 - - - -
14f01/2004 9.720 38,963,000 - 20,868,000 - 2,982,000 15,113,000 -
20/04/2004 9.890 5,216,000 - 2,296,000 - 28,000 2,892,000 -
25/05/2004 g.150 24,443,000 - 20,289,000 - - 4,154,000 -
o2f0b/2004 9.550 5,022,000 - 4,422,000 - - 600,000 -
22/07/200¢ 9.800 1,590,000 - 1,252,000 - 178,000 160,000 -
04f10f2004 10.350 45,464,000 - 27,514,000 - 328,000 17,622,000 -
17/01/2005 11.400 1,580,000 - 580,000 - 880,000 120,000 -
22fo7{z005 12.500 960,000 - 240,000 - - 720,000 -
167,483,000 - 115,078,000 - 5,145,000 47,260,000
178,827,000 - 125,002,000 - 5,145,000 48,680,000
AJREETE
Exercisable at the
end of the year 30,722,000
IMETSETER (B%T)
Weighted average
exercise price (HK3) 9.23 - 8.29 - 9.86 9.40
BREREAINDOT Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
B
Old Scheme
# EDirectors 5,986,000 - 5,586,000 - - -
{€ e Employees 5,358,000 - 3,938,000 - - 1,420,000
HEN
New Scheme
H EDirectors 24,266,000 - 23,666,000 - - 600,000
{€ d Employees 131,453,000 - 83,133,000 - 5,145,000 43,375,000
Hip 8 EE Other participants 11,764,000 - 8,279,000 - - 3,485,000
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=t Baxen 30. Share Capital (continued)
P& - Notes:
1 FAETTHERBRIERTHE S B2 NG Fi9R 1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
MAHEN 2772 (G E : EW16.80 options exercised during the year was HK$27.72 (2006: HK$16.8¢).
T e
AEERBE-_FF+LFE+T-AZ+—8 The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$4 million for the
U FEHRADRMEERIESEAERAEH year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: HK$23 million) in relation
B, BER(ZFFERF  E¥238H to the share options granted by the Company.
jT) e
- e 31. Reserves
F.3--1. The Group
FEABEHESUFHEENRFZ103HZE104H Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
M ERFEREREER - consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 103 to 104.
FEEFRERFANCLBLARMBEL The retained profits of the Group include approximately HK$109
RIFFRB 2 HFANES 1B BT(ZFF million (2006: HK$92 million) retained by associates of the Group.
NEHEMBETT) -
EAR
HREH
Employee nERe
R{EM  share-based -] REEH
Share  compensation Wamant Retained &8
premiurm reserve reserve profits Total
BYERT BYEAR LT oo HEEERT EMENT
HK$ million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
ALTH The Company
R-FE8, 5—H-R At 1 January 2006 11,624 145 168 3,361 15,298
FITRER Premium on share issued 983 - ~ - 983
BARHTA Share issue expenses (1) - - - ()
{& BRARHEER Employees share option benefits - 23 - - 23
AMugEasRIAREL Release upon repayment of
compound financial instrsments - - (168) 168 -
EEEHH Profit for the year - - - 2,065 2,965
idc) Dividends - - - (3,265) (3,265}
RIBEAFE+-RZ+—H At 31 December 2006 and
E-$%t+%-8-8 1 January 2007 12,606 168 - 3,229 16,003
BIRHER Premium on share issued 224 - - - 224
FIRHEA Share issue expenses (1) - - - 1)
2 A REBEEN Employees share option benefits - 4 - - 4
REFHEN Profit for the year - - - 2,360 2,360
Re (&+m) Dividends (Note 14} - - - {2,401) (2,401)
R-B2rE+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2007 12,829 172 - 3,188 16,189

ADEIn DR AR A RE%,188
BET(ZBEE  B%3,22088T) ¢

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to the
shareholders amounted to HK$3,188 million (2006: HK$3,229
million).
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St GoRARLDRME
B SEEDZRIRA

Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows from operating activities

—RRLF  ETAFE

2007 . 2006
BYTHL A EET
HKS million HK$ million
FREBLATIR A Profit before taxation 6,292 3,969
B/ Adjustments for:
Atk BANETE it ] Share of net results of
associates (353) (333)
L& R D8] ERREET Profit on disposal of
HEMS QTR MSHT subsidiaries/business (2,399) (517)
Profit on disposal of
associates (78) (1)
HEEEAREER Profit on disposal of available
for sale investments (2) -
TTESMIAARMAES R Net fair value gain on
derivative financial
instruments (08) (104)
FELETTA AR BKA Dividend income from
unlisted available for sale
investmeants (%) (7
FlEHA Interest income (291) (273)
ezl interest expenses 487 B2
HEBTEEERRR Net loss on disposal of fixed
assets 29 36
ERBzEEAEREER Impairment loss recognised
on fixed assets 20 24
O 2 B Em [ Impairment loss recognised
R _ on goodwill 4 -
DERZEIRERESR Impairment loss recognised
on availahle for sale
investments 6 -
B2 LB AERERR Impairment loss recognised
on other intangible assets 41 1
i) Depreciation 1,601 1,527
HibEREEMRE Amortisation of other
intangible assets 9 31
HRAEWAZ KB Discount on acquisition
recognised as income (5) -
EE Az HRETE Tank storage service fee
) utilised 11 22
BEMESGRS Valuation gain on investment
properties (567) (528)
BAHE R FIRR Z BRI R K Share based payment charged
against equity 4 23
E&EHSTEERTAM Release of hedge reserve upon
ES PR EELD sattlement of derivative
financial instruments - (2)
HERSRBATZBERA Operating profit before
working capital changes 4,707 4,309
SEWRZ 2 Changes in properties held
for sale 1 5
Hppirl oz 2 Changes in other stocks (2,852) 812)
HaRHABBRE B8 Changes in trade and other
receivables (998) (652)
FIETRIA S Changes in derivative financial
instruments 8s5 79
HEEEMBARIRZ B8 Changes in trade and other
payables 4,737 2,459
WamE RS Cash generated from operations 5,680 5,388
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32.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(continued)

Z HEHMaF ¥R B  Disposal of subsidiaries/business
=t 1 3t —RERE
2007 2006
AYEET EREET
HKS million HK$ million
HERESRE Net assets disposed of:
BErEAE Fixed assets 518 1,223
ke Goodwill - 34
HitB\BREE Other intangible assets - 491
REE DR 2R Interests in associates - 19
AERE Available for sale investments 1 27
FEfIERIR Prepayments 270 -
534 Stocks 661 620
H 5 R E MR RE Trade and other receivables 1,646 936
TESMIA Derivative financial
instruments 93 -
AR EBIE Taxation recoverable 2 -
B& REITET Cash and bank balances 955 979
5 REMEMRIE Trade and other pavables {1,509) (1,285)
FIESHIA Derivative financial
instruments (70) -
BHIER Short term loans (a77) {96)
FEFIBIIR Taxation payable (69) (49)
RHEX Long term loans {500) {303)
BB IR A Deferred taxation liabilities (22) -
1,600 2,596
PR R Minority interests - (119)
(AR Reserves released ® (45)
HENB LS Profit on disposal of
FRis T subsidiaries/business 2,399 517
3,991 2,949
ATRIEES Satisfied by:
BaEfE Cash consideration 3,991 2,949
HEH WA R, Analysis of the net inflow of
FAzZRERREEE cash and cash equivalents
RABETH in respect of disposal of
subsidiaries/business
2HEENE Cash considerations received 3,991 2,949
HERE RRTTETE Cash and bank balances
disposed of {955) (979}
3,036 1,970
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St GRS HORME D

32. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

{continued)

A WBHRLR R C  Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
—®eLE BRI
2007 2006
BARERA AEEET
HKS million FK$ million
WRRFTG R A E 2 BREE The carrying amounts and fair
BEoABE: values of the net assets
acquired:
BrEE Fixed assets 1,313 #65
[k Goodwill 2 -
BEiEfEE Other intangible assets 11 -
Bh=£::5- Available for sale investments 2 -
PERE AR 2R Interests in associates 7 -
w& Stocks 166 48
85 R H b FEW TRIR Trade and other receivables 393 27
BEHAEE Deferred taxation assets 9 -
Re RBFTEF Cash and bank balances 207 10
HAREMENTR Trade and other payables (694) (93)
FE(S PR Taxation payable (11) @
RIETCHEA Deferred taxation liabilities (145) -
EHER Short term loans (161) (98)
REE®R Long term loans (43) -
1,056 358
LEEE R Minority interests (275) (53)
WBRELSZER Goodwill on acquisition 496 348
W RBRFEE £ 7 1T iR Discount on acquisition () -
| 1,272 653
LTEIARA S Discharged by:
Re Cash 1,191 593
REf R EAE A Balance of consideration
payable 81 60
1,272 653
WENB MR T W2 Analysis of the net outflow of
REEREEH cash and cash equivalents in
T BESH respect of acquisition of
subsidiaries/business’s
undertaking
BEARERE Cash consideration paid (1,191) (593)
WHEER SRS RIRTTET Cash and bank balances
acquired 207 10
(984) (583)
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S EEAMN 33. Capital Commitments
FeEm F48
The Group ) The Company -
~“RetEF —ETRF “RRLE —BEAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
HEART AWEET  B¥ERx BKAER
HKS millien  HK$ milllon  HKS million  HK$ million
REFRRERTERZ Capital commitments outstanding
BARFRBOT at the balance sheet date
are as follows:
EENBHEAEE Contracted but not provided for 3,054 999 - -
SHEERAEDN Authorised but not contracted for 3,491 1,249 - -
6,545 2,248 - -
=M. 4 R AR 34. Operating Lease Commitments
() #ERFHA (a) As lessee
M b. 325
o ) ~ B o ~The Group ~_ _The Company
—RRtE  —FTRF CRRLE ZFEXRF
2007 2006 2007 2006
ENERRT  E¥EET BMERR A%GEETR
HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million-
REER - BETAFE At the balance sheet date, the
R KRR TR total future minimum lease
%17 RERTHOREE payments under non—
cancetlable operating leases
are payable as follows:
—-E—%N — Within one year 1,255 978 - -
—ER-FEFAE - In the second to fifth year
(BEEREME) inclusive 4,128 3,105 - -
—nFEzE — After five years 6,707 5,020 - -
12,090 9,103 - -

EEHARTRETRBRE LS TRENT
IRz zEe - HOXEE E
=T FARFEHEE -

Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the
Group for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are
negotiated for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 30 years.
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=0 ERENA 34. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)
(Z) fEHHEA ()  As lessor
Fam X4
i The Group The Company ‘
—eetE  —TTA ZQPLE |“TTAE
2007 2006 2007 ‘ 2006
AMENET AETER EMTUET  A%EER
HKS million  HKS million  HKS million LHI(S million
REHD - RIBTATH At the balance sheet date, the
gERHROTEHE total future minimum lease
W7 BB FOREH - payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable
as follows:
—E—FH - Within one year 554 463 1 1
~-AETEZERE - In the second to fifth year
(RREEERTE) inclusive 940 560 1 1
Sl k(4 - After five years 971 297 - -
2,465 1,320 2 2

ENE2BEEFEERAFHT T1E10

These properties have committed tenants for an average term

1F o from 1 to 10 years.
ZHEHAR 35. Contingent Liabilities
b3 | ELH
i i N The Group The Comany
ot 2 Dt ZETAE k. 3 13 b2 ZEBN
2007 2006 2007 ‘ 2006
HMERT  A¥EET  AWEER  A¥EER
HKS million HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ miltion
MEHB - ART5BTH4NE] At the balance sheet date, there
RHETREMETER wete contingent liabilities in
MmEEZ KARAE respect of guarantees for banks
loans provided to
—HEAR - subsidiaries - - 7,943 7,826
——[HRE R - an associate 500 500 500 500
500 500 8,443 B,326

HMAZAM LT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F48



SHREARERS
¥ FRrEEMBAR(BRERRZRME A

AEVETTZRBERGERE FHE -
FBETHEFRE - RERBREST
BRsZHRERN  FREETTIE
HEAREZS -

mEELTMAER

BET 2R 2 ARF
—REE A F
£ 72 B R 2 [ R 22 7)

HEDR]

BTHIRaEEER
it
(SACIE S Pdth) VN

kNG

EESFASSE AL din): Yausibsaiis
AR

EEREHZE
—FRHER 22 B
[SYACE - NG

BERR

faeh AR 7 7%
—fEER 2 E
BRREEZHBLRF

S ERHEE TREM AT
NEWMMEER

—RER LR
BREKE2HBATE

REBEHEREEREETE
BT S
6 T 5 2 F R ER AR TR B
— AR A
ISP SC el PN

W—EERARE N AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. fMiaterial Related Party Transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consalidation and are not disclosed in this note. In addition to the
transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions.

—gRLE  TTAE

2007 2006;
AYENR %%E%ﬁf
HKS million HK$ million !
Purchase of goods from
associates 446 368
Receiving of services from
A holding company 1 1
Feliow subsidiaries 81 237
Associates 23 25
Sales of goods to
A holding company - 1
Fellow subsidiaries 3 42
Associates 69 142
Rendering of services to fellow
subsidiaries 3 5
Operating lease payment
A holding company 3 3
Fellow subsidiaries 52 53
Associates 2 2
Tank storage service fees
A holding company 70 140
Fellow subsidiaries 1 2
Management fee received for
provision of certain services
at oil depot
A holding company 1 1
Fellow subsidiaries 9 19
Transaction under godown
management agreement and
facilities management
Receipt of service fee from :
A holding company 131 172
Fellow subsidiaries 96 86
Payment of monthly fee to
a holding company 36 36
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR EXRBHEZ S 36. Material Related Party Transactions (continued)
B A (continued)
AEEF TR EAREZ SN The Group had the following material related party balences:
= 1 ¥ = 2
2007 ! 2006
BYMAET EREET
HKS million_ }:;!K$ million:
FEMRIE - Amount due from:
FRERZHBAT Fetlow subsidiaries 11 12
MELT] Associates 21 25
AR Amount due to:
SR RIEEZHERE] Fellow subsidiaries 56 57
BERa) Associates 26 19

2 HEpPEADBEREEERITSE B  Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in
£ - Chinese Mainland. _
SEEFSALHEENGNT(ZATH The Group itself is a part of a larger group of compenies under
hERMFES)ET—AEA AT Em CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
KB -pHEREanTEE RN REME transactions with CRNC group and the associates of the Group, it
DR RSN  FEETERT ¥R also conducts businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned
R R G E R FEERBE RS or controlled by the PRC government in the ordinary course of
JERBETERET -ESERLS  BER business. The directors are of the opinion that those entities
MOTIHREN ZETEYEEL T other than the CRNC group do not have the power to govern or
SIRBIITAEME A% RIELINE - g participate in the financial and operating policies of the Group.
ERRETZTS (A EEEEREIRKE) The transactions including sales and purchases of goods and
TR A EE—REEIBETT - AE@ER services, with these entities are conducted in the ordinary course
B HHFEALTHRER ZEETEE of the Group’s business. The Group believes that it has provided,
R EFSEEEsS: - at the best of its knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure

of related party transactions as summarised above.

A TETEBEASZHM C Compensation of key management personnel
THTFTETEERAB(BEEERCTESR) Remuneration paid for key management personnel include solely
ZHEE M TP EE - the directors of the Company as disclosed in note 10.

St HERERE 37. Approval of Financial Statements

B AER B HB M RECHE
FER-"EBRNE=A=+—BitE -

The financial statements set out on pages g7 to 185 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2008.
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FEMBARREE QR
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

R-FRtET-R=+—1 At 31 December 2007

REAS

CROEERRZEE/ .
HRE Percentage of capital
Nominal valae of issued AEME XADEH KELREE
HNASERELT ordinary share capital/ attributable held by heldby ERE
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group the Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(=) o
{1) Retail
RERORAL
Incorperated in Hong Kong
FH(EB)FRAR 5,000,000 ER A 100.0 - 1000 BELE
Chinese Ants & Crafis (H..) L ANTA Retail business
Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each
ERBZ(EH)ERAA 90,000,000 SR E 100.0 - wos BHER - REFREESR
China Resources Vanguard BT SRR HE
(Hang Kong) Company 90,000,000 ordinary shares of Supermarket operations,
Limited HK$1 each investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise
AEARARLT 1,000,000 S HE 100.0 - woo BRARARER
Yuen Fat Wharf & Godawn AT TR Wharf & godown services
Company Limited 1,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
RYRASERRT
incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
" AREFARLT AR¥14,403,000,0007C 100.0 £5.0 3o BHEH
{China Resources Vanguard RMB 1,403,000,000 Supermarket operations
(o, Ltd)
= MR RE RS % 226,200,000 100.0 - w0 HBHEH
BELE HK$226,200,000 Supermarket operations
* BRERBMNETERAE  12.006u0%T 100.0 - woo BNEER
(China Resources Vanguard US$12,096,140 Supermarket operations
(Suzhou) Sepermarket Co.,
Ltd}
* HRETERLE A ¥582,820,0007C 85.0 - 8.0 LR
{Suguo Supermarket Co., 11d)  RMBg82,820,000 Supermarket operations
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

ERFRARRARE/ BaEAL

BARE Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued ES L 3 XDHEE
K¥R2IRBELR ordinary share capitalf atiributable held by
Subsidiasies and associates registered capital to the Group the Company

() B850
(1) Retail (Continued)

RbBREERET(E)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
P HIERSEREBLERDT  AE%1240000007 100.0 -
(China Resources Cikelong RMB 124,000,000
{Zhejiang} Supermarket Co.,
Ltd}
* BRBR AT (EA) AE%30,000,0007C 100.0 -
ERAA RMB 30,000,000

(China Resources Yanguard
{Guangzhou) Superstore

(o, Ltd)
r HERIRREGR AT 1,000,000E 7T 51.0 -
US$1,000,000
RERALZHEBEMEL

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@ Tactical Solutions Incorporated 100k SREEET 2 HEM 510 -
100 ordinary shares of US$1 each

(Z) &%
(2) Baverage

RERRERRERARY

Incorparated in British Virgin lslands

SRERREER R 42,800,200 BREEET 510 510

China Resources Snow JEER

Breweries Limited 42,800,200 ordinary shares of

US$1 each
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MRLEEE
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

510

FTERR
Principal activitias

b3

Supermarket operations

HikH

Supermarket operations

REREHHEESHE
Whalesale and distribution of
apparel and a:cessories

RS

Investment holding

BRI

Investment holding




e A ==

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSQOCIATES

ERHERRATR/ BrEAL

HERER Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued FAMAE XLARHE HRARRE
HMLRRBRLE ordinary share capital/ attributable teld by held by EERE
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group the Company subsidiaries  Principal activities

() BR(E)

(2) Beverage (Continued)

B RAbERE L
Incorporated in the Chinese Maintand
“ERSRRAMNERTT  AE%1241538537T 510 - 000 NHEHNFESEESR
| RMB124,143,853 Manufacturing and distribution
(China Resources Snow of beer produtts
Breweries (Sichuan) Co.,
Limited)
* ERSRRR(ERGERE  ARMum50E 510 - 000 DEAMESEES
23] RMB113,792,501 Manufacturing and distribution

of beer products

* EREERARLIERAE  ARN35,000,0007 510 - w000 HERNSREEES
| RMB35,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(China Resources Snow of beer products
Limited)
 ENERTEEE)ARIETE  AR®100,000,0007 510 - 000 HERSESAEES
AT RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
{China Resources Snow of beer products
Breweries (Mianyang) Co.,
Ltd)
*ERSERECHRERLT  AE¥16,240,000TT 5.9 - 0.0 RENSHEEEER
RMB116,240,000 Manufactwing and distribution
of beer produgts
» URSRER(RAERAT  AR%246,0000007 51.0 - w00 BENSEQEER
{China Resaurces Snow RMB246,000,000 Marufacturing and distribution
Breweries (Anhui) Co., Ltd) of beer products
*ERSERE(RAERLT  AR%s570,000,0007 59 - o000 MHENIEEEER
(China Resources Snow RMB570,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
Brewery (Wuhan) Co., Ltd) of beer products
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HELGRERELE
Subsidiaries and associates

(Z) BB
(2) Beverage (Continued)

RerBRABERED(R)

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

DRGBERRATE/
330 €3

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capitalf
registered capital

Incorporated in the Chinese Maintand (Continued)

~ FESERE(PR)RE
HRAR

" RESRRERE)ERAA

* EREENB(R)ERAR

~ 2RIRBE(KE)GBRAF
(China Resources Snow
Brewery (Dalian) Co., Ltd)

= KBS EHERRER AR
(China Resources (Dalian)
Bangchuidao Brewery Co,,
Ltd,)

* ERREREGRDARAR

» ERSERBECIR)ERAR
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (liangsy) Co.,
Ltd.)

399.542.916% 7L
US$399,542,916

60,814,180 T
US$60,814,189

6,500,00057C
US$6,500,000

21,200,000 70
1iS$21,200,000

AEH96,000,00078
RMBgé,000,000

AR%120,000,0007C
RMB120,000,000

114,000,000 7T
US$114,000,000

BzE

Percentage of capital

.y 3L 0 AREHE
atiributable held by
to the Group the Company
510 -

5t.0 -

51.0 -

£1.0 -

510 -

35.7 =

510 -
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MELERE
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

70.0

100.0

TEER
Principal activi?es

RALR

Inzestment holding

HENAEE Em
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer produc:s

RENSERIER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer producs

RENSERAER
Manufacturing 4nd distribution
of beer producs

HERS BRER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer producs

HERSEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer produc's

HEASHENER
Manufacturing and distribution
of heer praducs



MRLARBEAE

Subsidiaries and associates

(Z) AR MIREH

(3} Food Processing and Distribution

RERTREL
Incorporated in Hong Kong

ERTERAE
Ng Fung Hong Limited

IR KERRRA

Ng Fung Frozen Meats &
Aquatic Products Ca.
Limited

@ PERSERARAE
Chung Kong Luen Livestock
Company Limited

REARBERAL

{ncorporated in Cayman Islands

A @ (HEERARELT)
China International Fisheries
Corp

REMR LB M ERA L

ERTREBERATE/
SARE

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

1,046,258, 000/ SRR AARH
o2 ERR

1,046,258, 000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each

5,000,000 R EEE T
ZEER
5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

60,000 BREEE% 1,000
JERR

60,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1,000 each

fo 864 B BEET..
il

60,864 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

Incorparated in British Virgin Islands

@ Victory Retun Corporation

WERAEET BBR

1 ordinary share of US$1 each

AEmES

atiributable

to the Group

100.0

940

357

51.0

510

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BEES:
Parcentage of capital
ARFRE WML RRE
held by held by
the Company subsidiaries
- 100.0
- 94.0
- 51.0
- 51.0
- 100.0

Principal activities

IERE

HERRANLY ES
8% AaRBERESR
Distribution of fresh, tive and
frozen foodstuff, abattoir
operation, acting as food
agent and investment holding

DERARKE
Trading of frozen meats and
2quatic products

THBE
Wholesale of live pigs

AR

Investment holding

BAERRENEERR
ERER

Marine fishing and the
provisian of ship stores and
fishing supplies
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BRLATRBELT

Subsidiasies and associates

{Z) RBRNIRERED

ERIEBRNARS/
FRARE

Hominal value of issued
ordinary share capitalf
registered capital

(3) Food Processing and Distribution (Continued)

RYBAERRL

Incorparated in the Chinese Maintand

* AERR(AI)ARDA

(Ng Fung Faods (Shenzhen}

Co., Ltd)

* R IRRAARERLE
(Hangzhou Ng Fung United

Meat Co., Ltd)

RERRERAL

Incorporated in the Panama

@ Jin Feng S.A.

([ 4R
(4) Textile

REZEMAL

Incorporated In Hong Kong

REHR(ER)ARLA

China Resources Textiles

(Holdings) Company Limited

AR B543,000,0007
RMBs 43,000,000

AR ¥50,000,0007T
RMBs50,000,000

woRGREE:EL BB

200 ordinary shares of US$1 each

100,000,001 FRAEEE T
ZERR
100,000,001 ordinary shares of
HK%$1 each

3 £ 1T
atfributable

to the Group

700

65.0

51.0

100.0
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BAAM

Percentage of capital
RRERE KHELERE
held by held by
the Company subsidiaries
- 70.0
- 65.0
- 100.0
- 100.0

IERE
Principal activities

BERE  EHAE -
ARNIRRAHE
Livestock raising, abattoir
aparation, meat products
processing and poultry
wholesaling

BARS R AR
Wholesale and fistiibution of
meat

kg MELAREEAR
HEREH 2 & REERE
Marine fishing, vessel
chartering and the provision
of ship stares, f shing supplies
an< bunker oil

RARR

[wvastment holding




Co,, Ltd)

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

e 2pigi

ERIHEREEER/ )
ERRE Percentage of capital
Nomina! value of issued AEMEL XLRKE
MALARRELT ordinary share capital/ attributable held by
Subsidfaries and assodiates Tegistered capital to the Group the Company
(m) HEE
{#) Textile {Continued}
REREMAL(E)
Incorporated in Hong Keng (Continued)
ERSSRERAR 500,000 SREEAY T2 100.0 -
China Resources Texiles TR
Company Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1
each
Wan Hsin Company Limited REREEEY 00072 100.0 -
gl
2 ordinary shares of HK$1,000
each
HLGRERAT 2,000,000 BREEAE T2 100.0 -
Hsin Hung Textiles Limited Eipft
2,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$:
each
ROSRMEREY
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
@ ERGERABRERDGR  73,200000%7 100.0 -
(China Resources Textiles US$73,200,000
Investment & Development
o, Ltd)
e WRLEETADEARAR  0430000E0 100.0 -
(Shandong Lizocheng China US$20,430,000
Resources Textiles Co., Ltd.)
@ BRRERNARAT AR%120,665,7187T 510 -
(China Resources Jinkua Co., RMB129,665,718
L1d.)
@ BRERBERRLR 13,315,000 7L 65.0 -
(China Resources Yantai Nylon ~ US$13,315,000

HRLFRA
held by

subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

510

65.0

Principal activities

TEER

DERBERRALR
Trading of textiles and
investment holding

PHEERRAAR
Trading of textile products
and investment holding

BREHRR AR
Trading of apparel and
investment holding

RARREHEDH
Investment halding and
trading of cotton

PLEERBERRAER
Manufacture and trading

of textile products and
investment holding

PREEREERRARR
Manufacture and trading

of textile produts and
investment holding

hREIEREH
Manufacture and trading of
fabri¢ products
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

KEAAREELR
Subsidiaries and assocates

(B) fi%
(s) Property

REZERAL
Incorporated in Hong Kong

ERnR(ER)ERAR
CRE Properties (Hong Kong)
Limited

(RE Property (Nan Fung Centre)
Limited

(RE Property (Argyle Ceatre)
Limited

(RE Property (Silvercord)
Limited

ERERERAE)
Worldfaith Properties Limited

{N) RURAL
{€) Investments and Gthers

REBZMAL
Incorporated in Hong Kong

ERAEME(ER)ARLR
CRE Finance (Hong Kong)
Limited

RR8EEEARY
Incorporated in Cayman Islands

Purple Finance Limited

ERTEERRAEA/
HRRE

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capitat

BERAREM T EER

2 ardinary shares of HK$1 each

BERBEERTCEER

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

BERTERE T HAR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

AERAEENIT EAR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

EEhEEEN T EAR

3 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

BERAEES T FAR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

MREREERT 2 EER

2 ordinary shares of US$: each

EREEL
athributable

to the Group

100.0

100.0

100.0

939

100.0

100.0
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Pertentage of capltal

LN
held by
the Company

100.0

100.0

HRAFEE
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

IERR

Principal activiies

RARRERRER
Investment holding and
property manajtement

B

Praperty investment

bR

Praperty investment

MRIRR

Praperty investment

7k 3

Property invest nent

B

Financing

B

Financing




PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

ERERRRATE/ BaRAL
kA Percentage of capital '
Nominal value of issued ERREL XLFRE HRLERE

NEATARYRAR ordinary share capital/ attributabe held by heldby TERB

Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group the Company subsidiaries  Principal activities

(7 BRRBRMB(E)
(6) tnvestments and Others (Continued)

REARLZBREREY
Incorporated in British Virgin lslands
@A HIT Investments Limited 200f ERE@ETZ BRAMR 100 - o AHFEHAROERESE
200 ordinary "A" shares of Irvestment in container
US$t each terminal operations in Hong
Kong
@#A Hutchison Ports Yantian w0l BRER LT EER 10.0 - 100 HPEANBEEETERSE
Investments Limited 200 ordinary shares of US$: eath Irvestment in container
terminal operations in the
Chinese Mainfand
Pt
Notes:

— WFEEhH EEHNAEHEBRBELFTHRMAEINIARTE S LRAARIHANEAAXAEARNEEN I HB AR RBRE DR -

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the results or assets of the
Group.

bt

BRAFEEAEN AR EERRMERF MR EMA Y AEDY -

Y

Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.

= EP@RANEMAREZA0] REXREARSE ZUERRRTE -

3 For companies incorparated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company.

M TR ARERAANENS:HATEARTREREZEE - HPENTHRER-FRLFAN - AREEEEFHNEBREFFE L7 TE
BEARTHRERAENNIENRHT -

4. During the year, the Group acquired equity interests in certain brewery companies for an aggregate considesation of HK$893 million of which

HK$812 million was paid in 2007. As a result of the acquisitions, the Group's profit for the year and the net assets at the year end have both
heen decreased by HK$23 million.

A BHERE
A Associates
-V - ¢
* Equity Jeint Venture
- AR

b Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

e FHEHER

*+*  Listed Joint Stock Company

A PR EAEHE

A Chinese trade name

# FAFHSRERBECRZHTERGRMITERANYEN -

# Significant influence is exercised through the participation of regular board meeting of the associates
@ EIEHIET - AR OHATEIZZAT -

@ Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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TEMEME
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

R-_FF+FEF+=H=+—8 At 31 December 2007

xmE  SEER
PR (F73K)
Group's  Floor Area Bk HROEH

{ B Location Interest (sq.m.) Type lease term

FERENR
Properties held for investment

FiH
Hong Kong

it APO—H
M EARD « TR 1-418  4BEE o
REMZ @AY REEEHIME REBER

NEERE AR HEe88 R E R EH6c R
Argyle Centre, Phase |

100%

7,216 ] £
C Long

Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/fF,

1 to 4/F and Flat Roof of 4/F, 5/F and

Part of External Walls and the Sign board of Portion A of
Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung Choi Street South and
Argyle Street and scavenging lane, '

688 Nathan Road

65 Argyle Street

Mongkok

Kowloon

MY

M3 B 7B

A034-Ao41 - Aogy ~ A128 -

Ag201 - Aq301 - Agso2A4602 8807 -

B EEBEOGETS)

BB RAICERRARAIEM 2 T/

FREMT UK 264~298% 100% 7.075 [k PH

Nan Fung Centre cjcp Medium
Lorry parking space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement

Units Ao34-Ao41, Ao44, A128, Agz01, Ag301,

A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with

Flat Roof and the space hetween the floor ceiling

and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F

264-298 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territaries

BRI

M T oBYRAE — 10ATR & B — B4

MR BB FER 100% 1,309 il B
Star House C Long
Shop 9B — 10A on G/F & Shop B on yfF

3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
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{ #Location

FERR MR

Properties held for investment (continued)

EHAm)
Hong Kong (continued)

B8O

T 5-188% - 20A 208 R 20C R
BREAD(AADEHAD(BAR) -
1IE3 B 2B RAEREATS
EEREMETNE 19-315 RFEE2-80
Lok Sing Centre

Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 208 and 20C on G/F
Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A}
Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)

the whole of 1/F to 3/F

and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level
19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

AP L

M T 38R 3o M R lB R M

13 14+ 15 - 1617 BT
NBERYHBEH B30

Silvercord

Shop Ne. 38 eon the GfF

Shop No. 3¢ on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F
Tower 1 and Car Park

Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement

30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

FREAN
NEEBRIE R 1655
CAC Tawer

165 Hoi Bun Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

ARE  BEEMR

Fri it (FHHK)
Group's  Floor Area A HOFH
Interest (sq.m.) Type Lease term
100% 8,982 [5] R Hj
C Long
100% 7,849 Sl = HA
cjcp Long
100% 13,900 I o Y
! Medium
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

FribmE (BREXK)
Group's  Floor Area Ag HOER
{ WLocation Interest (sq.m.) Type |.ease term

- . - . - R - - - pl

FERRD ¥
Properties held for investment (continued)

Fam
Hong Kong (continued)

K ER AR

T s - 1388 - 152082 E(EEXE)

BN 123 SREM

NERDOOHE 5% 100% 14,782 I% PE
Chung Dah Godown Building Ifcp Medium
Ground floor, 5 to 11/F, 13/F,

15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)

and car park Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor

115 King Lam Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

R L

W11 HE 2B EEEEES -

ELRE  ERE -

2124 HETHER -

E{7P1-P103 * L1-L15 * L17-L43

A SRR 88 R 100% 33,485 I wf Hf
Riley House I/CP Medium
Unit 101 on 1fF, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,

Unit 401 on 4/F, Godown on 6/fF,

Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,

Car Parking Spaces P1-P103, L1-L15, L17-L43,

88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories

e E

NBEEHE 2332395 89% 9,599 ] +H
JD Mall, C Medium
233-239 Nathan Road,

Jordan, Kowloon
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HERBYHE @
Properties held for investment (continued)

EHEm
Heng Kong (continued)

ET B

BE7 ' 8RoETIER

HEL39 ' L4o * Lgs ' L46 ' Loz BL48 R E B
NERIBEEBE L3R

Yau Tong Industrial City

Workshop on 7/F, 8/F and g¢fF of Block B
and Lorry Parking Space

Nos. L39, Lgo, Las, Lgb, Lg7 and

L48 on Basement

17 Ko Fai Road

Yau Tong

Kowloon

HRFAM

T E 8

& W EBHETE 4884909
Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

PE A
Chinese Mainland

ERETIMMRREREFEE
TP iR AR BR 196 3R

TP TR B & MR IR R M 305k
R A FEYI h 7 = R IR

R AEREAERER

BSEm R R R 0%

At EE: e AR F: &=

Note: C: Commercial R: Residential

F3--f: |
FRib 2%
Group's
Interest

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

B EES
CP: Car Park

e

s

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

BEER

(ERHK)

Floor Area
(sq.m.}

9,702

3,125

62,915
43,566

16,212

53,051

AT
Office

R®
Type

IiE
lycp

~ o

R SRS

Lease term

ek

Medium

R
Long

FH

Medium

]

Medium

T

Medium

A

Medium

Industial
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AFHBEERER
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ITETMF

I_

PERLE

—ETRF —EERF ;
2003 2004 2005 2006 ! 2007
EHEET AW EERT AYEErT E¥EEnT HYAERR
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million
- . " - —_—
=¥ | Consolidated results
i3] Turnover 34,671 47,078 53,891 65,437 62,123
iz F S opreg Profit attributable to shareholders 1,429 1,480 2,220 4,776 4,961
BREERT Basic earnings per share HK$0.69 HK$o.70 HK$1.02 HK$1.15 HKS$2.09
SRS Dividend per share
chEf Interim HK$0.10 HK$0.11 HK$0.13 HK$0.14 HKSo.15
FEA Final HK$o0.14 HK$0.16 HK%0.25 HKSo.26 HKSo.30
HK$0.24 HK$0.27 HK$0.38 HKSo0.40 HKS0.45
15 Rk ER Special interim i Note 1 - - HK$1.00 HKSo.60
RSEERME  Consolidated balance sheet
BIFE&E Fixed assets 14,820 19,215 21,436 23,040 29,876
ik Goodwill 1,346 2,319 3,084 3,481 6,133
Hibmpgg Other intangible assets 204 21 630 113 81
EHEA Long term investments 1,976 1,659 1,147 1,206 1,493
EftEE Prepayments 458 960 411 467 205
EIEHHEEE Deferred taxation assets 141 167 140 123 119
mEBAERAE Net current assets 2,928 3,140 2,086 1,398 1,003
A&ER Employment of capital 21,873 27,671 28,934 29,828 38,910
AR 7 Share capital 2,090 2,123 2,233 2,358 2,385
GaE Reserves 10,910 13,002 15,563 16,783 20,486
i B 2R Shareholders’ funds 13,000 15,125 18,196 19,141 22,871
LB E L Minarity interests 3,859 4,811 4,747 5,824 7,293
REA 6T Long term liabilities 4,184 6,797 5,040 3,840 7,503
RAEFAIE B Y Deferred taxation liabilities 830 538 951 1,023 1,243
DiERTES Capital employed 21,873 27,671 28,934 29,828 38,910
ek Note:
1. ZRR=FFIFHERLNERE TREL ARG 1. The 2003 special interim dividend represented a special distribution in specie

B —RERARERERAR R AR

g .

of one share in China Resources Cement Holdings Limited for every ten shares

of the Company was distributed.
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BREAFASRERE

SUMMARY OF NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ATHRESEREFATASIMRES - R
BEERIGEHR AR R TR 2Rk -

BRI R AREIRFERNEHA-+A

AEMNTHFZH=T5  REFESFERE

26 REF A Lo BBITHRERERE - LER

BTHEH

HRRER

1. HUEREBEE_RT+E+-ZA=1+-—
AIMFEEERIHBEHTEEERS
BB TAZBATRE -

2. EMEZERBRS -

3. HREAESEMEHRAMREZHAE -

4 HEZENERSEZRGESLTHEME -

5, FBTFHE—RIMELUEBRDTHBADBTE
K% 2 {7 -

6. BFEHE-HREBEUBRTTHEASETR
E20%2 BIMED -

7. HNABERNBBLRBREAMBE

ZREE  UERATAMETRER
BT 2 —RBHE

o

Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general meeting,
the full version of which is set out in the circular to be dispatched to
shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited will

be held at soth Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 3:30 p.m. for the

following purposes:

Ordinary Resolutions

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the
Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditor's Report for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

2. Yo declare a final dividend.

3. To re-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares
nat exceeding 10% of the issued share capital.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue additional
shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital.

7. To extend the general mandate to issue shares under item

6 hereof by the addition thereto of the number of shares
repurchased under item & hereof.
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£1le No.82-4177
THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you
should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager,
solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold all your shares in China Resources Enterprise, Limited, you should at
once hand this circular and the accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or to the

bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale was effected for transmission to
the purchaser.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

M empsERAR

China Resources Enterprise, Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited lability)
(Stock Code : 291)

PROPOSALS FOR GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES

AND 2z = =
33y H
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS e E om
AND S ;_g
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING e E
S 0O om
R O
A
T vy

The notice convening the annual general meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited
to be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 3:30 p.m. is set out on pages 16 to 19 of this circular.
Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, you are requested to complete and
return the accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the annual general meeting. Completion of the proxy form and its return will not
preclude you from attending and voting at the annual general meeting if you so wish.

Hong Kong, 25 April 2008
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DEFINITIONS

In this document, the following expressions have the following meanings unless the context

requires otherwise:

“Annual General Meeting”

“ Articles of Association”
“China” or “PRC”

“Companies Ordinance”

“Company”

“Directors”
”'Gl’oup”

“Hong Kong”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Repurchase Proposal”

“Repurchase Resolution”

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at
50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 3:30
p.m., notice of which is set out on pages 16 to 19 of this
circular

the articles of association of the Company
the People’s Republic of China

the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

China Resources Enterprise, Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability whose
Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code : 291)

the directors of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

21 April 2008, being the latest practicable date prior to
the printing of this document for ascertaining certain
information contained herein

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

the proposal to give a general mandate to the Directors
to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase
Shares during the period as set out in the Repurchase
Resolution up to a maximum of 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of the Repurchase
Resolution

the ordinary resolution to be passed as referred to in
item no. 5 of the notice of the Annual General Meeting




DEFINITIONS

"Securities and Futures
Ordinance”

“Share(s)”

“Share Repurchase Rules’

“Stock Exchange”

“Takeovers Code”

uH K$M

’

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

share(s) of HK$1.00 each in the share capital of the
Company

the relevant rules set out in the Listing Rules to regulate
the repurchase by companies with primary listing of their
own securities on the Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

A EHEIREBRAA
China Resources Enterprise, Limited

{Tncorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code : 291)

Directors: Registered Office:
Executive Directors: 39th Floor

SONG Lin {Chairman) China Resources Building
CHEN Shulin (Managing Director) 26 Harbour Road

WANG Qun (Deputy Managing Director) Wanchai

LAU Pak Shing (Deputy Managing Director) Hong Kong

KWONG Man Him (Deputy Managing Director)

Non-executive Directors:
| YAN Biao
| JIANG Wei

WANG Shuaiting

LI Fuzuo

DU Wenmin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
CHAN Po Fun, Peter

HOUANG Tai Ninh

LI Ka Cheung, Eric

CHENG Mo Chi

Bernard Charnwut CHAN

SIU Kwing Chue, Gordon

Company Secretary:
LEE Yip Wah, Peter

Hong Kong, 25 April 2008
To the shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSALS FOR GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES
AND
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
AND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2007, a general
mandate was given to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase
Shares. Such mandate will lapse at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. I is
therefore proposed to seek your approval of the Repurchase Resolution at the Annual

-3-
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

General Meeting to give a fresh general mandate to the Directors to exercise the powers of
the Company to repurchase Shares. An explanatory statement as required under the Share
Repurchase Rules to provide the requisite information of the Repurchase Proposal is set
out in Appendix I to this circular. '

GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

It will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting two ordinary resolutions
respectively granting to the Directors a general mandate tc allot, issue and deal with
Shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
resolution {i.e. not exceeding 477,317,624 Shares based on the issued share capital of the
Company of 2,386,588,120 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming that such
issued share capital remains the same at the date of passing the resolution} and adding to
such general mandate so granted to the Directors any Shares representing the aggregate
nominal amount of the Shares repurchased by the Company after the granting of the
general mandate to repurchase up to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of the Repurchase Resolution.

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Executive Directors of the Company are Mr.
SONG Lin, Mr. CHEN Shulin, Mr. WANG Qun, Mr. LAU Pak Shing and Mr. KWONG
Man Him; the Non-executive Directors of the Company are Mr. YAN Biao, Mr. JIANG
Wei, Mr. WANG Shuaiting, Mr. L1 Fuzuo and Mr. DU Wenmin and the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are Dr. CHAN Po Fun, Peter, Mr. HOUANG Tai
Ninh, Dr. LI Ka Cheung, Eric, Dr. CHENG Mo Chi, The Hon. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
and Mr. SIU Kwing Chue, Gordon.

Pursuant to Article 110 of the Articles of Association, Mr. SONG Lin, Mr. CHEN
Shulin, Mr. KWONG Man Him, Mr. HOUANG Tai Ninh, Dr. Ll Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr.
CHENG Mo Chi will retire from office at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election. Pursuant to Article 115 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. LI Fuzuo and Mr. DU Wenmin will hold office only until the Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
Details of the retiring Directors proposed to be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting
are set out in Appendix II to this circular.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Set out on pages 16 to 19 of this circular is the notice convening the Annual General
Meeting,.

At the Annual General Meeting, resolutions will be proposed to the shareholders in
respect of ordinary business to be considered at the Annual General Meeting, including
re-election of retiring Directors, and special business to be considered at the Annual General
Meeting, being the Ordinary Resolutions proposed to approve the Repurchase Proposal,
the general mandate for Directors to issue new Shares and the extension of the general
mandate to issue new Shares.




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

ACTION TO BE TAKEN

A form of proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed with this circular.
Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, you are requested to complete and
return the accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the Annual General Meeting. Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not prevent you from attending and voting at the meeting if you so wish.

RIGHT TO DEMAND A POLL

Pursuant to Article 60 of the Articles of Association, at the Annual General Meeting,
resolutions put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands, unless a
poll is taken as may from time to time be required under the Listing Rules and/or any
other applicable laws and regulations or unless a poll is {before or on the declaratior: of
the result of the show of hands) demanded by:

(a) the chairman; or

(b) not less than five shareholders present in person or by proxy and having the
right to vote at the meeting; or

(c)  a shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy representing not
less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having the
right to vote at the meeting; or

{d) a shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy holding Shzres
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate
sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid
up on all the Shares conferring that right.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors believe that the Repurchase Proposal, the proposed general manclate
for Directors to issue new Shares, the proposed extension of the general mandate to issue
new Shares and the proposed re-election of retiring Directors are all in the best interest of
the Company and its shareholders. Accordingly, the Directors recommend that all
shareholders should vote in favour of such resolutions to be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting.

Yours faithfully,
SONG Lin
Chairman




APPENDIX I EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This appendix serves as an explanatory statement, as required by the Share
Repurchase Rules, to provide requisite information to you for your consideration of the
proposal to permit the repurchase of Shares up to a maximum of 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the Repurchase Resolution.

This appendix also constitutes the memorandum as required under Section 49BA(3)(b)
of the Companies Ordinance.

1. SHARE CAPITAL

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the issued share capital of the Company comprised
2,386,588,120 Shares.

Subject to the passing of the Repurchase Resolution and on the basis that no further
Shares will be issued or repurchased prior to the Annual General Meeting, the Company
would be allowed under the Repurchase Proposal to repurchase a maximum of 238,658,812
Shares representing not more than 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

2 REASONS FOR REPURCHASE

The Directors believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. Such repurchase may, depending on market conditions
and funding arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net assets and/or
earnings per Share of the Company and will only be made when the Directors believe that
such a repurchase will benefit the Company and its shareholders.

3. FUNDING OF REPURCHASE

In repurchasing Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available for
such purpose in accordance with its memorandum and articles of association and the
Companies Ordinance. The Companies Ordinance provides that the amount of capital
repaid in connection with a share repurchase may only be paid from the distributable
profits of the Company and/or the proceeds of a new issue of Shares made for the purpose
of the repurchase to such an extent allowable under the Companies Ordinance.

There might be an adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the
Company as compared with the position disclosed in the audited accounts contained in
the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2007 in the event that the power to
repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal was to be carried out in full at
any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the Directors do not propose
to exercise the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal to such
extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working
capital requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the
Directors are from time to time approfiriate for the Company.




APPENDIX I EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

4, SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange
during each of the previous twelve months before, and the period from 1 April 2008 to,
the Latest Practicable Date were as follows:-

Shares

Highest Lowast

HK$ HK$

April 2007 30.05 25.30
May 2007 29.00 26.45
June 2007 32.00 27.35
July 2007 34.80 29.35
August 2007 32.60 23.20
September 2007 33.95 30.40
October 2007 36.00 31.70
November 2007 34.45 25.60
December 2007 35.00 29.05
January 2008 35.00 24.55
February 2008 29.20 24.80
March 2008 27.90 20.10
April 2008 (up to the Latest Practicable Date) 27.00 23.20

5. UNDERTAKING

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may
be applicable, they will exercise the powers of the Company to make repurchases pursuznt
to the Repurchase Resolution and in accordance with the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws of Hong Kong.

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, their associates, have any present intention to sell any Shares to the Company
or its subsidiaries under the Repurchase Proposal if such is approved by the shareholders
of the Company.

No connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) have notified the Company
that they have a present intention to sell Shares to the Company or its subsidiaries, or
have undertaken not to do so, in the event that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by
the shareholders of the Company.




APPENDIX I EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

6. TAKEOVERS CODE

If on the exercise of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase
Proposal, a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company
increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of Rule 32 of the
Takeovers Code. As a result, a shareholder or group of shareholders acting in concert,
could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to make a
mandatory offer in accordance with Rules 26 and 32 of the Takeovers Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, China Resources National Corporation (“CRNC"),
the ultimate holding company of the Company, is interested in 1,232,764,380 Shares
(representing approximately 51.65% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at
the Latest Practicable Date). In the event that the Directors exercise in full the power to
repurchase Shares under the Repurchase Proposal, then (if the present shareholdings
remains the same} the attributable interest of CRNC would be increased to approximately
57.39% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The Directors are not aware of any consequences which may arise under the
Takeovers Code as a result of any repurchases made under the Repurchase Proposal. In
the event that the Repurchase Proposal is exercised in full, the number of Shares held by
the public would not fall below 25%.

7. SHARES REPURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company had not repurchased any Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or
otherwise) in the six months preceding the Latest Practicabie Date.




APPENDIX II DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION

The following are the particulars of the eight Directors proposed to be re-elected at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 29 May 2008:

Mr. SONG Lin

Mr. SONG Lin, Chairman, aged 45, was appointed Chairman of the Group in
December 2004. He is concurrently Vice Chairman and President of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH"”) and CRNC. The former is the immediate holding
company of the Company and the latter is the ultimate holding company of the Comparuy.
Mr. SONG is also Chairman of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China
Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”) as well as China Resources Microelectronics Limitad
(“CR Microetectronics”), shares of the three companies are listed on the Stock Exchange
and the three companies are also subsidiaries of CRH. Mr. SONG is the Deputy Chairman
of China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited (a company listed on tae
Stock Exchange) and The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited. Mr. SONG is also the Chairman
of a fellow subsidiary of the Company, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, tae
listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange was withdrawn on 26 July 2006. Mr. SONG was
the Chairman of a fellow subsidiary of the Company, China Resources Logic Limited
(“CR Logic”) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange) and an independent non-executive
director of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. {(a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
Shanghai Stock Exchange) from which positions he has resigned. Mr. SONG is a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. SONG has extensive experience in corporate
management and is currently responsible for the overall business development and strategic
planning of the Group’s business. Mr. SONG holds a Bachelor’s degree in Solid Mechanics
from the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai, China. He joined CRH in 1985. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. SONG did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years or any position with the Company or other members of the Group. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. SONG is and was not connected with any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. SONG has no fixed term of service with the Company. He is subject to rotational
retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles
of Association. Mr. SONG is entitled to a monthly remuneration of HK$153,000, an extra
month’s pay as fixed bonus, a discretionary bonus as approved by the compensation
committee of the Board from time to time with reference to his duties and responsibility
with the Company, the Company’s performance and the current market situation and is
entitled to the Directors’ fee as determined by shareholders at its annual general meeting.
At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 31 May 2007, it was approved that the
Executive Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December 2007 be determined at HK$80,000
per annum. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. SONG has personal interest in 1,700,000
Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. SONG has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders and
there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2} of
the Listing Rules.
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APPENDIX II DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION

Mr. CHEN Shulin

Mr. CHEN Shulin, Managing Director, aged 54, has been an Executive Director of
the Group since December 1998 and was appointed Managing Director in March 2005. He
is also the Director and Vice President of CRH and CRNC. The former is the immediate
holding company of the Company and the latter is the utlimate holding company of the
Company. He is also the Chairman of Ng Fung Hong Limited and China Resources
Vanguard Company Limited, the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. CHEN was the Vice
Chairman of Xuzhou VV Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange) from which position he has resigned. Ms. CHEN is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to joining CRH, Mr. CHEN was a senior
official with the MOFTEC (currently known as Ministry of Commerce) and a commercial
attaché in Australia and New Zealand. He obtained his Bachelor’s degree from Beijing
Foreign Languages Institute, China and MBA degree from Victoria University, New
Zealand. Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHEN did not hold any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years or any position with the Company or other
members of the Group. Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHEN is and was not connected with
any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. CHEN has no fixed term of service with the Company. He is subject to rotational
retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles
of Association. Mr. CHEN is entitled to a monthly remuneration of HK$145,000, an extra
month’s pay as fixed bonus, a discretionary bonus as approved by the compensation
committee of the Board from time to time with reference to his duties and responsibility
with the Company, the Company’s performance and the current market situation and is
entitled to the Directors’ fee as determined by shareholders at its annual general meeting.
At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 31 May 2007, it was approved that the
Executive Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December 2007 be determined at HK$80,000
per annum. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. CHEN has personal interest in 1,932,000
Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHEN has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders and
there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Mr. KWONG Man Him

Mr. KWONG Man Him, Executive Director, aged 43, joined the Group as an Executive
Director in February 2002 and was appointed Deputy Managing Director in March 2006.
Mr. Kwong is also a director of China Resources Vanguard (Hong Kong) Company Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. KWONG has a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.
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APPENDIX II DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION

Mr. KWONG has extensive experience in corporate planning, financial analysis, equity
research and merchant banking. He is in charge of the Group’s finance and treasury
function, corporate planning and development as well as merger and acquisition activities.
He also manages investor relations and promotes corporate governance. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. KWONG did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years or any position with the Company or other members of the Group. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. KWONG is and was not connected with any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. KWONG has no fixed term of service with the Company. He is subject to
rotational retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings pursuant to
the Articles of Association. Mr. KWONG is entitled to a monthly remuneration of
HK$218,000, an extra month’s pay as fixed bonus, a discretionary bonus as approved by
the compensation committee of the Board from time to time with reference to his duties
and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance and the current marlcet
situation and is entitled to the Directors’ fee as determined by shareholders at its annual
general meeting. At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 31 May 2007, it was
approved that the Executive Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December 2007 be
determined at HK$80,000 per annum. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. KWONG has
personal interest in 1,194,000 Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. KWONG has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought tc the attention of the shareholders and
there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Mr. LI Fuzuo

Mr. LI Fuzuo, Non-executive Director, aged 43, was appointed a Non-executive
Director of the Group on 1 February 2008. He is currently an Assistant President of CRH,
the Company’s immediate controlling shareholder, General Manager of the Strategy
Management Department of CRH as well as non-executive director of CR Logic, CR Land
and CR Microelectronics, shares of the three companies are listed on the Stock Excharge
and the three companies are also subsidiaries of CRH. Mr. LI joined CRH in 1990 and was
the General Manager of Enterprise Development Department of CRH and China Resources
Investment and Asset Management Company Limited (formerly known as China Resourzes
Development & Investment Company Limited). Ile was also the General Manager of
China Resources Golden Corn (Heilongjiang) Co., Ltd. and the Deputy Chairman and
General Manager (resigned from both positions on 6 March 2006) of China Resources
(Jilin) Bio-chemical Co., Ltd., shares of the latter company are listed in China. Further, Mr.
LI was a non-executive director (resigned on 30 March 2006) of China Resources Peoples
Telephone Company Limited, the listing of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange was withdrawn on 29 March 2006. Mr. LI obtained both his Bachelor’s and
Master’s Degrees in Mechanical Manufacturing Engineering from the Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics in 1987 and 1990 respectively. Save as disclosed above,
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APPENDIX II DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION

Mr. LI did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the last three
years or any position with the Company or other members of the Group. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. LI is and was not connected with any directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. LI has no fixed term of service with the Company. He is subject to rotational
retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles
of Association. The Directors’ fee payable to Mr. Ll as Non-executive Director is determined
by shareholders of the Company in annual general meeting. At the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 31 May 2007, it was approved that the Non-executive Directors’
fee for the year ended 31 December 2007 be determined at HK$80,000 per annum. As at
the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. LI does not have any interest in the Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. LI has confirmed that there are no other matters relating
to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders and there is
no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. DU Wenmin

Mr. DU Wenmin, Non-executive Director, aged 44, was appointed a Non-executive
Director of the Group on 6 September 2007. He is the President of the internal Audit
Department of CRH, the Company’s immediate controlling shareholder. He is also a non-
executive director of CR Land, CR Microelectronics and CR Logic, shares of the three
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange and the three companies are also subsidiaries
of CRH. Mr. DU joined the CRH Group in 1985 and has previously held positions as the
President of China Resources Construction (Holdings) Limited, a subsidiary of CRH, and
the Assistant President of the Human Resources Department of CRH. Mr. DU received a
Master of Business Administration degree from the University of San Francisco in the
United States of America. Mr. DU holds the professional qualification of Economist issued
by the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC and the Evaluation Committee of CRH and has
over 20 years of experience in human resources and business management. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. DU did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years or any position with the Company or other members of the Group. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. DU is and was not connected with any directors, senior management
or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. DU has no fixed term of service with the Company. He is subject to rotational
retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles
of Association. The Directors” fee payable to Mr. DU as Non-executive Director is
determined by shareholders of the Company in annual general meeting. At the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 31 May 2007, it was approved that the Non-executive
Directors” fee for the year ended 31 December 2007 be determined at HK$80,000 per
annum. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. DU has personal interest in 100,000 Shares
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

-12 -



APPENDIX 11 DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. DU has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders and
there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Mr. HOUANG Tai Ninh

Mr. HOUANG Tai Ninh, Independent Non-executive Director, aged 54, has been a
Director for the Group since 1988. He is also a director of Forcon Investments Limited,
Sino Petrochem Development Limited and China & Overseas Resources Limited. Mr.
HOUANG obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies degree from the Polytechnic of No:th
Staffordshire, United Kingdom. Mr. HOUANG did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years or any position with the Company or other
members of the Group. Mr. HOUANG is and was not connected with any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. HOUANG has no fixed term of service with the Company. He is subject to
rotational retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings pursuant to
the Articles of Association. The Directors’ fee payable to Mr. HOUANG as Independent
Non-executive Director is determined by shareholders of the Company in annual general
meeting. At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 31 May 2007, it was approved
that the Independent Non-executive Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December 207
be determined at HK$160,000 per annum. Mr. HOUANG did not receive other emoluments
for the year ended 31 December 2007. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. HOUANG has
personal interest in share options to subscribe for 200,000 Shares within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. HOUANG has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders and
there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Dr. LI Ka Cheung, Eric (FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP)

Dr. LI Ka Cheung, Eric, Independent Non-executive Director, aged 54, has been a
Director of the Group since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising), member of the Eleventh National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and an adviser to its Ministry of
Finance on International Accounting Standards. He is a former member of the Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He holds directorship irt a
number of listed companies, including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Bank
Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International
Holdings Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, RoadShow Holdings Limited,
Meadyville Holdings Limited and Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Dr. Li was formexrly
an independent non-executive director of China Vanke Co., Ltd., CATIC International
Holdings Limited and Sinofert Holdings Limited. Save as disclosed above, Dr. LI did not
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hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years or any
position with the Company or other members of the Group. Dr. LI is and was not connected
with any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Dr. LI has no fixed term of service with the Company. He is subject to rotational
retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles
of Association. The Directors’ fee payable to Dr. LI as Independent Non-executive Director
is determined by shareholders of the Company in annual general meeting. At the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 31 May 2007, it was approved that the
Independent Non-executive Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December 2007 be
determined at HK$160,000 per annum. Dr. LI did not receive other emoluments for the
year ended 31 December 2007. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Dr. LI has personal
interest in share options to subscribe for 200,000 Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. L1 has confirmed that there are no other matters relating
to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders and there is
no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Dr. CHENG Mo Chi (GBS, OBE, JP}

Dr. CHENG Mo Chi, Independent Non-executive Director, aged 58, has been a
Director of the Group since November 2005. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong,
United Kingdom, Victoria Australia and Singapore and is the Senior Partner of Messrs.
P.C. Woo & Co., a firm of solicitors. He is currently director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and had served as a member of the Legislative Council from 1991 to
1995. Dr. CHENG is the Hon. President and Founding Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Presently, he holds directorship in a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong and Singapore, including Beijing Capital International Airport Company Limited,
China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, China Mobile Limited, City Telecom (HK)
Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (formerly
known as K. Wah Construction Materials Limited), Kader Holdings Company Limited,
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, ARA Asset Management Limited, Shui On
Construction and Materials Limited as well as Tian An China Investments Company
Limited. Save as disclosed above, Dr. CHENG did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years or any position with the Company or other
members of the Group. Dr. CHENG is and was not connected with any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Dr. CHENG has no fixed term of service with the Company. He is subject to rotational
retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles
of Association. The Directors’ fee payable to Dr. CHENG as Independent Non-executive
Director is determined by shareholders of the Company in annual general meeting. At the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 31 May 2007, it was approved that the
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Independent Non-executive Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December 2007 be
determined at HK$160,000 per annum. Dr. CHENG did not receive other emoluments for
the year ended 31 December 2007. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Dr. CHENG does not
have any interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. CHENG has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders and
there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

V) EHRIEBRAF]

China Resources Enterprise, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code : 291)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of the Company will
be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
on Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 3:30 p.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the Directors’
Report and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December
2007.
2. To declare a final dividend.
: 3. To re-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.
i
i 4, To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.
5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution

as an ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the
powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$1.00 each in the
capital of the Company on the Stock Exchange or on any other stock
exchange on which the securities of the Company may be listed and
recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Listing Rules or of
any other stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which the
Directors of the Company are authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and
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(c)

for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period
from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of :

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked
or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting of the Company.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution

as an ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“"THAT:

(a)

(b)

(c)

subject to paragraph (c) below and pursuant to Section 57B of the
Companies Ordinance, the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of
the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares of HK$1.00
each in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and debentures
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might requize
the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) to make
or grant offers, agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant
Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an
option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than (i) a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) an issue of shares under any
option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company;
(iii) an issue of shares upon the exercise of the subscription or conversion
rights under the terms of any warrants or any securities of the Company
which are convertible into shares of the Company; or (iv) an issue of
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shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company from time to time, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

(d) for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earliest of :

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(if)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked
or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting of the Company; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the
Directors of the Company to the holders of shares of the Company on
the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings
of such shares as at that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors of the Company may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory
outside Hong Kong applicable to the Company).”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the passing of the resolution as proposed under items nos. 5
and 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted
to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares
pursuant to the resolution as proposed under item no. 6 set out in the notice
convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of
an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital
of the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority granted
pursuant to the resolution as proposed under item no. 5 set out in the notice
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convening this meeting, provided that such amount of shares so repurchased
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued shere
capital of the Company as at the date of the said Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
LEE Yip Wah, Peter
Secretary

Hong Kong, 25 April 2008

Notes:

1. Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or mare proxies to
attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other autherity (if any) under
which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the registered office of the
Company at 39th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

3. With regard to item no. 2 in this notice, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends a firal
dividend of HK$0.30 per ordinary share payable on or about 13 June 2008. The register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 26 May 2008 to Thursday, 29 May 2008, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23 May 2008.

4. With regard to item no. 3 in this notice, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes that eight
retiring Directors, namely Mr. SONG Lin, Mr. CHEN Shulin, Mr. KWONG Man Him, Mr. LI Fuzuo, M.
DU Wenmin, Mr. HOUANG Tai Ninh, Dr. LI Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr. CHENG Mo Chi who shal! be
eligible for re-election, be re-elected as Directors of the Company. Details of these Directors are set oat
in the appendix II to the circular to shareholders dated 25 April 2008. The Board of Directors of the
Company recommends to the shareholders that the Directors’ fee for the year ending 31 December 2008
shall be determined at HK$80,000 per annum for each executive and non-executive Director ard
HK$160,000 per annum for each independent non-executive Director, pro-rated, where appropriate, ard
payable in December 2008.
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File No.82-4177

% =HEIEER AT RECEIVED

China Resources Enterprise, Limited |
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 5335 f'.’sY - f D ?: L
(Stock Code : 291) B ‘

TFinE OF g
Proxy form for use at the Annual General Meeting of CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED (thé',f;’ﬁ'(\}q} ,
be held at 3:30 p.m. on Thursday, 29 May 2008 and at any adjournment thereof. ) |

1/We (notel)
of
being the registered holder(s) of shares (note 2) of HK$1.00 each in the capital of the Company, hereby appoint the
Chairman of the meeting or (note 3)
of
or failing him
of
to act as my/our proxy at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 3:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thercof and to vote on my/our behalf as indicated
below (note 4).

AT THE
DISCRETION
FOR AGAINST OF PROXY ABSTAIN
(note 4) {nete 4) (note 4) (note 4}
1. | To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the Directors’
Report and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December
2007.
2. | To declare a final dividend.
(a) To re-elect Mr. Song Lin as Director.
(b) To re-elect Mr. Chen Shulin as Director.
(c} To re-elect Mr. Kwong Man Him as Director.
(d) To re-elect Mr. Li Fuzuo as Director.
(e) To re-elect Mr. Du Wenmin as Director.
(N To re-elect Mr. Houang Tai Ninh as Director.
(g) To re-elect Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric as Director.
(h) To re-elect Dr. Cheng Mo Chi as Director.
(1) To fix the fees for all Directors.
4. | To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.
Ordinary Resclution in Item No. 5 of the Notice of Annual General Meeting.
(To give a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares of the
Company)
6. | Ordinary Resolution in ltem No. 6 of the Notice of Annual General Meeting,.
(To give a general mandate to the Directors to issue new shares of the
Company) .
7. | Ordinary Resolution in Item No. 7 of the Notice of Annual General Meeting.
(To extend the general mandate to be given to the Directors to issue shares)
Dated this day of 2008 Shareholder’s signature: (nofe 5)
Notes:
1. Full name(s) and address(es) to be inserted in BLOCK CAFPITALS.
2. Please insert the number of shares of HK$1.00 each registered in your name(s}. if no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to
all the shares in the Company registered in your name%s).
3. If any proxy other than the Chairman is preferred, strike out “the Chairman of the meeting or” and insert the name and address of the proxy desired in
the space provided. ANY ALTERATION MADE TO THIS PROXY FORM MUST BE INITIALLED BY THE PERSON WHO SIGNS IT.
4. IMPORTANT: IF YOU WISH TO VOTE FOR ANY RESOLUTION, TICK THE BOX MARKED “FOR” BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION.
IF YOU WISH TO VOTE AGAINST ANY RESOLUTION, TICK THE BOX MARKED “AGAINST” BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION. IF
YOU WISH TO ALLOW YOUR PROXY TO CAST HI5S VOTES ON ANY RESOLUTION AT HIS DISCRETION, TICK THE BOX MARKED “AT THE
DISCRETION OF PROXY” BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION. 1F YOU WISH TQO ABSTAIN FROM VOTING ON ANY RESOLUTION,
TICK THE BOX MARKED “ABSTAIN” BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION. Failure to complete any of the boxes for each item will entitte
your proxy to cast his votes on the relevant resclution at his discretion.
5. This proxy form must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or in the case of a corporation must be either under its common seal
or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
6. Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may vote at any meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such
share as if he were 501c7‘y entitled thereto; but if more than one of such joint holders be present at any meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the

said persons so present whaose name stands first on the register of members in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

7. To be valid, this proxy form, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy
thereof, must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 39th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less
than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

8. Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. The
proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting in person to represent you.

9. Completion and deposit of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting at the meeting if you so wish.
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China Resources Enterprise, Limited
(Incarporated in Hong Kowng with limited liability)
(Stock Code : 291)

25 April 2008
Dear Shareholders,

Letter to Existing Shareholders - Election of Means of Receipt of Corporate Communications

We are pleased to enclose the 2007 Annual Report, the Circular dated 25 April 2008 and the Proxy Form.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company's corporate communications by electronic means through the
Company’s website at www.cre.com.hk in lieu of in printed form and, for any reason have difficulty in receiving or
gaining access to the above documents, will upon request in writing to the Company's Share Registrars, Tricor Standard
Limited, be promptly sent such documents in printed form free of charge. Please kindly complete Part A of the attached
Instruction Slip and return the completed Instruction Slip to the Company's Share Registrars by facsimile or by post
using the pre-paid envelope provided.

Please note that you may change your choice of means of receipt at any time, free of charge, by completing Part B of the
Instruction Slip and returning the completed Instruction Slip to the Company's Share Registrars. A copy of the Instruction
Slip can also be obtained from the Company’s Share Registrars.

If you have any queries relating to this letter, please call our Share Registrar’s hotline at (852) 2980 1333.
Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of

China Resources Enterprise, Limited

Lee Yip Wah, Peter
Company Secretary

Encl.
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File NO.o<-4l/7

m EHEIERRAFE
China Resources Enterprise, Limited

(Incarporated in Hong Kong with limited lighility)
(Stock Code : 291)

25 April 2008
Dear Shareholders,
Letter to New Shareholders - Election of Means of Receipt of Corporate Communications
In order to protect the environment, China Resources Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) proposes that as a shareholder
of the Company you may choose to receive its corporate communications (i) by electronic means through the Company’s
website at www.cre.com.hk {the “Electronic Communication Option”); or (ii) in printed form. Corporate communications

include annual reports, interim reports, notices of meetings and circulars, etc.

The purpose of this letter is to ascertain_shareholders’ choice of means of receipt of the Company’s corporate

communications.

Please kindly complete Part B of the attached Instruction Slip and return the completed Instruction Slip to the Company’s
Share Registrars, Tricor Standard Limited, by facsimile or by post using the pre-paid envelope provided.

If you elect the Electronic Communication Option and have specified your email address in the Instruction Slip, we will
send you, on the day of issue, an email notification each time new corporate communication is posted on the Company’s

website. In case you have not provided your email address, we will notify you by mail instead.

Please note that you may change your choice of means of receipt at any time, free of charge, by completing and
returning to the Company's Share Registrars the instruction slip, a copy of which will be sent to you together with
future corporate communications or can be obtained from the Company's Share Registrars.

Shareholders who have opted for the Electronic Communication Option and who for any reason have difficulty in
receiving or gaining access to the relevant corporate communication will upon request in writing to the Company's

Share Registrars be promptly sent such corporate communication in printed form free of charge.

If we do not receive your completed Instruction Slip, we will continue to send you corporate communications in
printed form until you inform us otherwise.

If you have any queries relating to this letter, please call our Share Registrar's hotline at (852) 2980 1333.
Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of

China Resources Enterprise, Limited

Lee Yip Wah, Peter
Company Sccretary

Encl.
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China Resources Enterprise, Limited

{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabitity)
(7 B HE AL M S By A7 BR 22 7))
(Stock Code: 291)
(B2 {1 1L 8% - 291)

Please complete, sign and return this instruction slip to
the Share Registrars of China Resources Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”),
Tricor Standard Limited, using the pre-paid envelope provided.
HAZRHEETIRFOK YUERRANERNGHNTOBIANETRLIT ([F28])
ROBFEEBIEREFRLA-

INSTRUCTION SLIP 1 R E %

Part A — To receive printed version of the 2007 Annual Report, the Circular dated 25 April 2008 and the Proxy Form
{the “Enclosed Documents™):

F-YH-—SPLtEERN SR \FOA-THEAZERNREEARRE (THAMXH]) 2R *:

O I/We have chosen to receive the Enclosed Documents by electronic means through the Company’s website but
would like to receive them in printed form.

FA/EHDREBERA LRGN T 00 TER S (25 BRI B A&

Part B — To elect/change the means of receipt of future corporate communications:

ZH-BR /ERARKBMATNERZER:

I/We would like to receive the Company's future corporate communications:
BRELF B HERGRL AN RN BEK:
(Please tick only one box) (R A IEHF — LW AU TEWMEBM ET/IR)

O in printed form: or

ROl BCEp R 4% ; 5K

[0 by electronic means in lieu of in printed form.

VLR J7 SRR BT R 2

My/Our email address:
AN B i bt

(Please ensure your email address is properly filled in for the purpose of receiving the notification of
release of corporate communications)

(MERALEBGBESA LITRE L EFIRFENEMZH)

Name(s) of Shareholder(s) in English Name(s) of Shareholder(s) in Chinese
{Please use BLOCK LETTERS) g N e -
U E XK (AKX EER)

Registered address of shareholder(s)

L SR T M b
Contact telephone number
o E N D
Siggature(s) Date:
3 TRk _
Notes: 1. The above instruction in Part B will apply to all corporate communications of the Company to be sent to you until you
inform us otherwise.
2. If any shares are held in joint names, all joint holders OR the joint holder whose name stands first on the Company’s
register of members should sign this form in order for it to be valid.
3. Printed version of all the Company’s future corporate communications will be available from the Company or its Share

Registrars on request in writing to the Share Registrars of the Company. Such corporate communications will also be
available on the Company’s website at www.cre.com.hk.

fEdE: 1. EMZmZzETAEARAL RO TR HE BTARTERRAIL.
20 HMEfREG G E SR AD WA AT ARSI FLRARNEMO WA BAHAZR LB ERER TR K-
3. ALFBEREFMAAREAGEDRE  TERNHRRMALFTRGEF YREER - Z S0 TN IR SRR LR

Y (www.cre.com.hk) »



